651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Minutes - DRAFT

To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject: September 28, 2018, NCPA Commission Meeting

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Bob Lingl called the meeting to order at 10:43 am at the Hyatt Regency Monterey, 1 Golf
Course Road, Monterey, California. A quorum was present. Introductions were made. Those in
attendance are shown on the attached attendance list.

2. Approve Minutes of the August 23, 2018, Regular Commission Meeting

Motion: A motion was made by Teresa O’Neill and seconded by Basil Wong to approve the Minutes
of the August 23, 2018, Regular Commission Meeting. The motion carried unanimously on a voice
vote of those members present.

PUBLIC FORUM

Chair Lingl asked if any members of the public were present who would like to address the
Commission on the agenda items. No members of the public were present.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

3. General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update

General Manager Randy Howard reported that NCPA'’s Leadership Training graduates will be
representing their team projects to the Commission, and a graduation ceremony will take place following
their presentations. Mr. Howard thanked Human Resources Manager Vicki Cichocki and her staff for
their efforts in putting together a great program.

Bob Marshall, Plumas-Sierra, read the story for this month’s 50" Anniversary commemorative pin that
was provided to the Commission. This month’s pin highlighted NCPA's past Annual Conferences.

Chair Lingl took the Commission into recess at 11:04 am.

Chair Lingl reconvened the Commission meeting at 12:26 am.



4. Executive Committee

Committee Chair Lingl reported that the Committee did not meet since the last Commission meeting.
The next Executive Committee meeting is scheduled on October 25 at NCPA’s Roseville Office.

5. Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer reported the Committee met once since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee discussed items 12 through 20 on today’s Agenda, and the
general consensus of the Committee recommended Commission approval. However, a quorum of
the Committee was not established.

6. Finance Committee

Committee Chair David Hagele reported the Committee did not meet since the last Commission meeting.
A Special Committee meeting is scheduled on October 9 to review and approve NCPA’s FY 2018 Annual
Audit. The next regular meeting will be held on November 13 at NCPA'’s Roseville office.

7. Legal Committee

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt reported that the Committee met once since the last Commission
meeting. The Committee discussed closed session item 21 on today’s Agenda. No reportable

action was taken on the closed session item.

8. Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Committee Chair Teresa O’Neill reported the Committee met once since the last Commission

meeting. The Committee heard a panel presentation from Edie Chang, Deputy Executive Officer,
California Air Resources Board; Michael Wara, Senior Research Scholar, Stanford Woods Institute

for the Environment; and Robert Weisenmiller, Chair, California Energy Commission. Thanked the
Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Team for their efforts in putting together a good Annual Conference.

The next Committee meeting is scheduled on November 28 at NCPA'’s Roseville office.

9. Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting

No member announcements or meeting reports mentioned.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to determine
if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar. No
items were pulled from the Consent Calendar for discussion. No items were pulled for discussion.

Motion: A motion was made by Greg Scharff and seconded by Teresa O’Neill to approve the Consent
Calendar consisting of Items 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, and 20. The motion carried by a

majority of those members present on a roll call vote with the abstentions noted below for each item. San
Francisco BART, Plumas-Sierra and Ukiah were absent.

10. NCPA’s Financials for the Months Ended August 31, 2018 — approval by all members.

11. Treasurer’s Report for the Months Ended August 31, 2018 — accept by all members.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 2
September 28, 2018



12. Resolution 18-73, Advanced Turbine Support, LLC - Five Year Multi-Task Consulting Services
Agreement for borescope inspection and non-destructive testing services; Applicable to the
following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members —
adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Advanced Turbine Support, LLC for borescope
inspection and non-destructive testing services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $250,000 over five years, for use at
all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $250,000 to be
used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of
the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland abstained.

13. Resolution 18-74, Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. — First Amendment to Five
Year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement; Applicable to the following projects: All
NCPA Generation Plant Facilities, Members, Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”) or SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General
Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to Multi-Task Professional Services
Agreement with Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc., with any non-substational changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount
from $1,000,000 to $4,000,000, for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by Agency, its
Members, SCPPA, or SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Total cost of the project is $4,000,000 over five years to be used out of NCPA
Approved Annual Operating Budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the
terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA Procure Policies and
Procedures.

14. Resolution 18-75, Ernie & Sons Scaffolding dba Unique Scaffold — Five Year Multi-Task
General Services Agreement for scaffolding services; Applicable to the following projects: All
NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all
member authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Ernie & Sons Scaffolding dba Unique Scaffold for scaffolding services, with
any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shall not exceed $2,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA,
its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000 to be
used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of
the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland abstained.

15. Resolution 18-76, Fairchild & Wells, Inc. dba Fairchild & Associates — Five Year Multi-Task
Consulting Services Agreement for well inspections and testing services; Applicable to the
following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the
General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with
Fairchild & Wells, Inc. dba Fairchild & Associates for well inspections and testing services, with any
non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall
not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 to be used
out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the
Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland, Redding, Shasta Lake, and Truckee Donner abstained.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 3
September 28, 2018



16. Resolution 18-77, Nozomi Networks, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Consulting Services
Agreement for cyber security consulting, vulnerability testing and solutions; Applicable to the
following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Members —
adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Nozomi Networks, Inc. for cyber security consuiting,
and vulnerability testing and solutions, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for use at
all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over five
years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders
referencing the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement
policies and procedures.

17. Resolution 18-78, Petrochem Insulation, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement; Applicable to the following Projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members,
SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager
or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Petrochem Insulation,
Inc. for maintenance services, including insulation on steam piping and tanks, noise abatement,
scaffolding, and fireproofing, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(SCPPA), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the
time services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place agreements for similar services
with Sunshine Metal Clad, Ernie & Sons Scaffolding dba Unique Scaffolding, and Brand Energy
Services, and seeks bids from as many qualified providers as possible. Bids are awarded to the
lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services
needed at the time the service is required.

Port of Oakland abstained.

18. Resolution 18-79, Rodney Bray — Five Year Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement for
assisting in development of new or production well workovers, interpretation of well analysis
reports and supervision during drilling operations. Applicable to the following projects: All
NCPA Facility Locations — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his
designee to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Rodney Bray for assisting in
development of new or production well workovers, interpretation of well analysis reports, and
supervision during drilling operations, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved
by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 to be
used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of
the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Port of Oakland, Redding, Shasta Lake and Truckee Donner abstained.

19. Resolution 18-80, Western Hydrologics, LLP - Five Year Multi-Task Consulting Services
Agreement for environmental regulatory compliance reporting, forecasting/modeling and
design services; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members,
SCPPA and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members 80 authorizing the General
Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Western
Hydrologics, LLP for regulatory compliance advice and complex engineering modeling services, with
any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which

shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA,
its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 4
September 28, 2018



Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $1,000,000 over
five years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders
referencing the Terms and Conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement
policies and procedures.

20. Resolution 18-81, MFP Connect, LLC — Five Year Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement
for Energy Workforce Services on an Interim Basis and To Mentor Staff for Success in Public
Power — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with MFP Connect, LLC (a Hometown Connections,
Inc., partner) for the provision of energy workforce services to fill critical skills gaps on an interim
basis and mentor staff for success in public power, with any non-substantial changes recommended
and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for
use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public
Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five
years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets or passed through to its Members through the
Support Services Program as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

CLOSED SESSION

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt did not take the Commission into closed session and noted that item 21
will be discussed in closed session at a Special Commission meeting scheduled on October 4, 2018.

21. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of Roseville,
and City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims No. 14-817C.

NEW BUSINESS

No new business was discussed.

ADJOURNMENT

The September 28, 2018, Commission meeting was adjourned at 12:46 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

CARY A. PADGETT
Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 5
September 28, 2018



CONSENT CALENDAR

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to
determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL

Commission Meeting Date: September 28, 2018
Vg Ve ,\}
Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: # [’\f' to# ZU

Consent Items Removed from the Agenda and Approved Separately:

. A

ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBERS: @A, / g

Member Iltem Numbers Abstained Vote Absent

Alameda

BART 4

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland \ ~ , \\Y : \() L] \X

Redding \5 i\%

Roseville

Santa Clara

Shasta Lake \ (>, \%

¥ QI ATARY R +-._( Sy FATAW { -,

Truckee Donner \“H \ %/
!

Ukiah

<A

Plumas-Sierra

ATTEST: K \U[\ ) ( X/ /\

Cary A. Pa&’g’ett
Assistant Secretary to the Commission




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of September 28, 2018

COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME

ALAMEDA V/C;MZW‘T >

_— —~

BIGGS 5{) f \

GRIDLEY

HEALDSBURG

LODI

LOMPOC

PALO ALTO

PORT OF OAKLAND @ 0&% ( \,Qmé\
' 7 -

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC W

REDDING

LE i 7 m— '
ROSEVIL s [

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT (BART)

SANTA CLARA

SHASTA LAKE

TRUCKEE DONNER

UKIAH




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of September 28, 2018
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
‘//ﬂ//l{e'j /ﬂéé@ﬁa %40—5 P L‘;ée
\);f Vida S ser LADu P
ﬂ//r‘ i < g0€ A/ ?/52
C) o \-'(Cvui\-/ Caty o(— \-Qe,orle‘s\m-vx
{ £ wy Cuowl,&o/ HEL:-DsB(M,Q
Joya My elComa P~ ot e (Lo
Vs Oeck, WA
Aiprra Yueomore SANTS. L pzA
HMANvEaL P eDA SAMITA  CLAN/)
Sg\\m\«\ Tare N OA
Denice naadich. Cakg A oo
Mucs /DJ S A—MP
ffﬂ &)/‘{C /ggkwfb

(ofz:Q ful\# /

7V
C\.’”‘“li;i’l

N\ow‘w\ Pl mgPﬂc

Sreve (awet <upP
DAND ORNSrpe Gro W o
%@@M (cd
Kowdy boersox NCPA
NMelissa Pace L ou

(Rﬁzﬁﬂwwﬁ C-’*‘-( of Low,

5’(~o‘rr' T mMPSHEFSKY N CcPA




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of September 28, 2018
Teleconfernce Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
) .
Ulan/ Coenniaoid/ NoVA—
| 41:4(1 ?«z.mf 2l J\}C?/%
\mw oY N,\of PONS O\
JO Litn. /)/:(/1 N KJQA'
A'/lrhh‘\ (oo Sy
4757'8\/‘8 CAHIL) ‘741¢1P
CAvL Eckees LD,
A"W\ Helcvo SVEP ’
Songa  Ardepsen WAPA
:_Z"LL tC;C)?
NTAM Y EAVER < (ekang SNE26H

ich QP/l Da/anlcj

NCRA

M
ez Sismae]

Nz

oA STNAN Lo PO C
DeRRA LLOMD PALo ALTo
Zes//c Bfu&’/n ﬂ:‘/"f 67/ IP{?&@/}”}?G
ﬁ/)r/r ﬂrnc’f‘ A7 dj
ST TOLBIE WAPA
TED MILLER. REDDIN & LrEfcrR/c
NG CRAATHR DN AN R
(s20y Esin PV g

2y Aagh

¢ lreon V'QH‘%/ DoV

Jf\\(& E\/fma hi™

NCPA




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of September 28, 2018
Teleconfernce Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
-]—ﬂﬂ“\ E;.—;ﬂblb/ A/("?A’
\}—’bZ’r AA , Z’OM e

]’]\A 0 | (u)fl/kflff AL [\Cﬁ&

P
-

?\Qﬂt}—m/ B W\ N Py

L@W\)»&c&%& (A




F?f.f"' NePa ) 651 Commerce Drive

I P - \ay Roseville, CA 95678
{ ;

\ rﬁg‘““.ﬁiﬂ-"’@g“% ! phone  (916) 781-3636

"ANNIVERSARY - fax  (916) 783-7693

Mg i i web WWW.NCpa.com

Minutes - DRAFT

To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject:  October 4, 2018, NCPA Special Commission Meeting / Teleconference

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Roger Frith called the meeting to order at 10:01 am at NCPA'’s Roseville Office at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, California. A quorum was present. Introductions were made. Those in
attendance are shown on the attached attendance list, as well as the Members attending via
teleconference.

PUBLIC FORUM

Chair Frith asked if any members of the public were present who would like to address the
Commission on the agenda items. No members of the public were present.

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt took the Commission into Closed Session.

CLOSED SESSION

2. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of Roseville,
and City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims No. 14-817C.

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION

General Counsel Jane Luckhardt convened the Commission meeting to Open Session.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated that reportable action was taken on
Closed Session item 2. The Commission approved Resolution 18-82 authorizing NCPA staff to pursue
the appeal of the Opinion and Order issued in the Court of Federal Claims Case No. 14-817C (filed on
July 30, 2018, and Judgement entered on July 31, 2018), and selected Spiegel & McDiarmid as Special
Counsel to litigate the appeal. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those members
present. San Francisco BART, Gridley and Truckee Donner were absent.



ADJOURNMENT

The October 4, 2018, Commission meeting was adjourned at 10:55 am.

Respectfully submitted,

CARY A. PADGETT
Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Attachments

NCPA Special Commission Meeting Minutes
October 4, 2018



ADJOURNMENT

The October 4, 2018, Commission meeting was adjourned at 10:55 am.

Respectfully submitted,

CARY A. PADGETT
Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Attachments

NCPA Special Commission Meeting Minutes
October 4, 2018



Northern California Power Agency
Special Commission Meeting / Teleconference of October 4, 2018

COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
1 - ALAMEDA Jerry Serventi
2 - BIGGS Roger Frith (Chair)
3 - GRIDLEY
4 - HEALDSBURG Terry Crowley
5 - LODI Mark Chandler
6 - LOMPOC Bob Lingl
7 - PALO ALTO Gregg Scharff
8 - PORT OF OAKLAND Basil Wong
9 - PLUMAS-SIERRA REC Fred Nelson
10 - REDDING Dan Beans
Bonnie Gore

11 - ROSEVILLE

12 - SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT

13 - SANTA CLARA Teresa O’Neill

14 - Shasta Lake James Takehara

15 - TRUCKEE DONNER

16 - UKIAH Mel Grandi




Northern California Power Agency
Special Commission Meeting / Teleconference of October 4, 2018
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Nico Procos Alameda
Liz Kirkley Lodi
Dean Batchlor Palo Alto
Jon Abendschein Palo Alto
Bob Marshall Plumas-Sierra
Michelle Bertolino Roseville
Bob Schmidt Roseville
Joe Mandell Roseville
John Roukema Santa Clara
Ann Hatcher Santa clara
Manuel Pineda Santa Clara
Jane Luckhardt NCPA
Jane Cirrincione NCPA
Randy Howard NCPA
Cary Padgett NCPA




"/ MNcea

— —

ANNIVERSARY

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEMNO.: D

Date: October 25, 2018
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: October 3, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral

Committee report.



o 651 Commerce Drive
) Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

——— —

NI‘\H\"FQSAR

Minutes - DRAFT

Date: October 12, 2018
To: NCPA Facilities Committee
From: Carrie Pollo

Subject: October 3, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

Call meeting to order & Roll Call — The meeting was called to order by William Forsythe,
Representative from the City of Roseville. A sign-in sheet was passed around. Attending via
teleconference and/or on-line presentation were Debbie Whiteman and Alan Hanger (Alameda),
Shiva Swaminathan (Palo Alto), Jared Carpenter (Port of Oakland), and Lowell Watros
(Redding). Those attending in person are listed on the attached Attendee Sign-in Sheet.
Committee Representatives from BART, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lompoc, Plumas-Sierra,
Santa Clara, TID, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was not established.

PUBLIC FORUM
No public comment.

2,

Approve minutes from the August 1, 2018 and September 9, 2018 Facilities Committee
Meetings, and the August 14, 2018 Special Facilities Committee Meeting — Since there was
not a quorum of the Committee, no action was taken. These minutes will be taken to the next
Facilities Committee Meeting on November 7, 2018 for approval.

All Generation Services Facilities, Members, SCPPA — WSA Engineered Systems MTGSA
— Staff gave background information and was seeking a recommendation for Commission
approval of a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with WSA Engineered Systems
for equipment, materials, and off-site maintenance labor of automatic brush/ball tube cleaning
systems, with a not to exceed amount of $1,000,000, for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, its Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members. All purchase orders issued
pursuant to the agreement will be charged against approved Annual Operating Budgets. A draft
Commission Staff Report and the draft agreement were available for review. This is an enabling
agreement with no commitment of funds.

Since there was not a quorum, the general consensus of the Facilities Committee recommends
Commission approval authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-
Task Consulting Services Agreement with WSA Engineered Systems, Inc. to provide



equipment, materials, and offsite maintenance labor of brush/ball tube cleaning systems, as well
as on-site supervision and operator training on new systems, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000
over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its members, by the
Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members. This item will
move forward to the next Commission Meeting October 25, 2018, and placed on the consent
calendar.

4. NCPA Generation Services Plant Updates — NCPA Plant Staff provided the Committee with
an informational update on current plant activities and conditions.

CTs — The Lodi CT1 has had only 5 starts in the last few weeks due to the cloudy and cooler
weather. The Alameda CT1 U1 parts are currently in Houston. The blades were tested for
momentum/balance, and will be matched and balanced out based on the computer run. They
passed the high speed rotor balance test. The planned shipping date is October 14, with
completion of the repairs scheduled for October 31.

Hydro — The Donnell Fire is still currently burning at a very high elevation. It is mostly contained
at this time, with the fire fighters letting it smolder out on its own. The Collierville Unit 2
generator rewind is currently in progress. The stator has been removed and is on deck going
through a full mechanical disassembly. A team of six (6) individuals are removing the copper
bars. These bars are very tightly glued in, with the glue being sand blasted out. The rewind was
ahead of schedule, however this process has slowed the schedule down, but is still slightly
ahead of schedule. The core has undergone a loop test for damage. Most of the core is OK,
with the areas being repaired that aren’t. The next steps are to begin the winding installation,
the re-assembly, and then commissioning tests. The unit should be finished and released by
approximately December 21, with the demobilization and site cleanup completed in mid-
January. Please contact Randy Bowersox if interested in visiting the plant during the rewind.

5. SFWPA Services Update — Staff provided an update regarding ongoing discussions with South
Feather Water and Power Agency (SFWPA) about NCPA'’s possible provision of Services to
SFWPA. SFWPA has expressed interest in services offered by NCPA when their current
contract with PG&E expires June 30, 2020. The services provided by NCPA would be similar to
the MEID and PCWA services.

SFWPA owns and operates 120 MW of hydro generation, through four projects including
Woodleaf, Sly Creek, Forbestown, and Kelly Ridge. The extra 120 MW would impact NCPA's
operations and resources. With the addition of the 120 MW, NCPA’s assets would most likely
change from a low impact entity to a medium impact entity (1500 MW), which would have
different and/or additional WECC/NERC standards and requirements than currently.

Tony Zimmer, Dennis Sismaet, and Michael Brush, toured the SFWPA facilities September 19.
NCPA would also like to send staff from the IT department, SCADA, and Hydro operations to
tour the facilities. SFWPA is looking for a longer term agreement and establishing relationships.
This would be a good resource in NCPA'’s portfolio. SFWPA is actively working with a consultant
to consider options. They should know by the end of the year if they would like to move forward
with services from NCPA. They have also provided NCPA with a high level term sheet, that
NCPA will distribute to members if requested. Staff will come back with updates to the
committee for review.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 2
October 3, 2018



6. Cotenancy Agreement — Staff provided background information and an update regarding
ongoing discussions in response to CDWR's notice of termination of its entitiement in the
Agreement of Cotenancy in the Castle Rock Junction-Lakeville 230-kV Transmission Line.

The Agreement of Cotenancy is between NCPA, SVP, CDWR, and PG&E for the Castle Rock
Junction-Lakeville 230 kV Transmission Line. The agreement establishes rights of tenants-in-
common for use of the Castle Rock Junction-Lakeville 230kV transmission line for the delivery
of power from the geothermal facilities to the CAISO grid. The original entitiement shares are
distributed as follows; PG&E = 931 MW, SVP = 60.1 MW, NCPA 49.9 MW, and CDWR = 165
MW. CDWR has assigned 55 MW to NCPA and SVP, which remains effective as long as NCPA
and SVP remain cotenants. The cotenancy line is a key element of the Large Generator
Interconnection Agreement among NCPA, PG&E, and CAISO, for the Geothermal Generating
Unit 2 Project.

On July 30, 2018, CDWR provided notice of its intention to terminate its share, which can be
terminated one year from this notice. The remaining cotenants have the option, but not the
obligation, to assume a share of the line from CDWR. If no cotenant assumes the share of the
line, the line is to be decommissioned and salvaged.

NCPA met with PG&E on September 20, 2018 to discuss options. PG&E does not want any of
CDWR’s share. NCPA and SVP are seeking to have PG&E take control of the entire line, and
CDWR has expressed that they can terminate cotenancy, and long-term transmission service at
will. NCPA is working to schedule another meeting to discuss pending questions and a possible
outcome. Options to consider are that the three entities can assume a pro-rata allocation of
CDWR's share, and the cotenants can calculate the cost of decommissioning the line and
collect the amount from CDWR and distributed to PG&E, NCPA, and SVP. The key issue is long
term contingent liability of the line and the fire risk with associated liability. One more option to
consider, is to sell a share of the line to Calpine, as they may need the line. Ken Speer will
contact Calpine regarding this option. As well, CDWR may need future resources. More
geothermal will be available beginning 2022, and could be an option as a potential partner with
NCPA. Staff will keep the committee updated as things progress, and may come back for a
recommendation.

7. Planning and Operations Update —

- Business Continuity Project Bid to Bill — Due to internal issues recently with the system
provider that caused problems transmitting the schedule through the CAISO, staff is
investigating options with certain redundancy and critical points of failure. Staff will keep the
Committee updated with progress of this project.

- The NCPA 2019 planned outages have been filed at the CAISO for RA due at the end of
October. Please contact staff if you haven’t scheduled the RA, or with any other questions.

- FERC Order TO18 — The outcome is pretty positive and should result in material TO18
refunds.

- FERC Order TO19 —~ Has been negotiated lower than TO18 rates, which is only the second
time it's been lower than the previous year.

- PG&E has filed TO20 using a formula rate instead of a fixed rate.

- NCPA has filed rehearing of the prior order regarding NCPA’s PG&E Order 890 compliant.

- Randy Howard, NCPA General Manager, and Mike Webster, SCPPA Executive Director,
recently met with CEC Commissioners regarding working with LADWP on their 500 MW
Project for Energy Efficiency. Through SCPPA’s 5 Year Letter of Intent, NCPA Members will
have access to this agreement through shared services.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 3
October 3, 2018



Bill Forsythe commended NCPA on a great Annual Conference, and wonderful 50 Year
Anniversary Celebration.

8. Schedule Next Meeting Date — The next regular Facilities Committee meeting is scheduled for
November 7, 2018.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 10:50 am.

Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 4
October 3, 2018



Northern California Power Agency
October 3, 2018 Special Facilities Committee Meeting

Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by
members of the public is voluntary.

NAME

AFFILIATION
(curvie Yollo V1C PA
Mardy LeBxt- Ne g
e (Laa Lopl
BV Forg L/v/-/ﬁ Voseville
T;”‘ﬁ ?lm/bu.«-/ /VC/A" .
%M 5 > J\C)’/)?d@j/ W/}{
ﬂwou, Ho o ~ A NCPA
/uz /h/ Ui 17 4F NL'F/‘(*
‘\'\(Mu ks N PA-
‘.iﬁ'"}é‘s{/' (éOW’:M N CPA'

@ U gn»tf '

L0 PA

[




Northern California Power Agency
October 3, 2018 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee Members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER

NAME

ALAMEDA

BART

BIGGS

GRIDLEY

HEALDSBURG

LODI

f:\“;,&uf c/w,‘cmg

LOMPOC

PALO ALTO

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

PORT OF OAKLAND

REDDING

ROSEVILLE

%L L rorgytihe

SANTA CLARA

TID

UKIAH




651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

N C PA phone (916) 781-3636

NORTHERN CALIFGRNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693
web Www.ncpa.com

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEM NO.._6 _

Date: October 17, 2018
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: October 9, 2018 Special Finance Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral
Committee report.



651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web Wwww.ncpa.com

e/

CANNIVERSARY

Minutes

To: NCPA Finance Committee
From: Trisha Zimmer

Subject: October 9, 2018 Special Finance Committee Meeting Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order
The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair David Hagele at 10:01am.

2. Roll Cali
The meeting attendees either present or participating remotely are as follows: Finance
Committee representatives: David Hagele (Healdsburg), Melissa Price (Lodi), Ann Hatcher
(Santa Clara) and Bob Orbeta (Alameda); NCPA Staff: Monty Hanks, Randy Howard,
Sondra Ainsworth, Trisha Zimmer, as well as John Wang (PFM), and Russ Hissom (Baker
Tilly). A quorum of the Committee was established.

PUBLIC FORUM

Mr. Hagele asked if anyone wished to address the Committee on matters within the jurisdiction
of the Committee. No one from the public was present at the site or at any of the
teleconference locations.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE ACTION ITEMS

4. Review of the June 30, 2018 Audited Financial Statements and Related Reports
Russ Hissom of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause provided a presentation including the FY2018
NCPA financial audit overview as well as required governing body communications. Mr.
Hissom took a moment to thank NCPA staff for their hard work, cooperation and
responsiveness during the audit process. Mr. Hissom reported that the NCPA audit was
performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and that the financial
statements of NCPA received an unmodified opinion. Baker Tilly found no material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in controls. Baker Tilly agrees with NCPA’s
accounting policies and disclosures. No adjustments were made to the financial statements.
There were no other audit findings or concerns. The Committee had no comments or
concerns for Baker Tilly.

Sondra Ainsworth thanked the staff at Baker Tilly for their work on this year’s audit. The
Statement of Net Position was reviewed. NCPA’s assets decreased $34.3 million, liabilities



decreased $35.5 million and the net position had an increase of $4.0 million. The Statement
of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position revealed operating revenues increased
by $94.1 and operating expenses increased $90.8 million.

Ms. Ainsworth reported that the Agency applies GASB 62 for regulatory accounting. This
allows regulated entities to defer revenue and expenses and better match those with the
timing of revenue collections, smoothing impacts to members/participants/cutomers and
requires Committee approval. The 2018 audited financial statements include accounting for
regulatory assets and liabilities. The following regulatory assets are included: net change in
swaps valuation, net pension and OPEB liabilities (deferred outflows), and the difference
between annual depreciation and debt service. Additionally, the following regulatory
liabilities are included in the financial statements: pre-paid insurance, funds received in 2003
Hydro refunding, and MID construction advances.

Staff is recommending the Committee recommend Commission acceptance of the 2018
Audited Financial Statements as well as confirm authorization for regulatory accounting.
Motion: A motion was made by Ann Hatcher (Santa Clara) and seconded by David Hagele
(Healdsburg) recommending that the Commission accept the 2018 Audited Financial
Statements as well as the authorization of regulatory accounting as listed above. A vote
was taken by roll call: YES = Healdsburg, Santa Clara, Lodi, and Alameda. ABSENT =
Roseville. The motion passed.

NEW BUSINESS

5.

Other items of Interest to the Finance Committee

Monty Hanks informed the group that a Request for Proposal was issued on September 14,
2018 for Underwriting or Direct Purchase Services for the Hydroelectric Power Project
Number One Revenue Bonds, 2010 Refunding Series A. The proposal deadline was
October 5. NCPA received 9 underwriting proposals and 2 direct purchase proposals.
Staff, along with PFM are currently reviewing the proposals and will bring the results to the
Committee at the next regular meeting on November 13.

Next Finance Committee Meeting
The next Finance Committee meeting is scheduled for November 13" at 10am.

ADJOURNMENT
Meeting was adjourned at 10:25am.

October 9, 2018 Special Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 2



Jlecea NN

F

1

Ot

15

iv

/<f

ANNIVERSARY'

Commission Staff Report

October 15, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  October 25, 2018

SUBJECT:

September 2018 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

Alameda Municipal Power

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members [X City of Lodi
O City of Lompoc
San Francisco.Bay Are? O
Rapid Transit
City of Biggs [ City of Redding
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville
O

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

a
O
City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC
O
O
d

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 207:18



September 2018 Financial Report (Unaudited)
October 15, 2018

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency for the month reported herein, will
be approved at the October 25, 2018 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The following page is
a summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited September 2018 financial reports are
also included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

spectfully submitted,

ARS

NDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 207:18



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of September 2018

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,145,980
3,349,369
252,897
726,768
7,242,794
29,009,827

$ 41,727,635




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 25%
This Actual Year FY 2019
Month To-Date Budget % Used
GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 1,466,108 $ 4401486 $ 16,699,691 26%

Debt Service (Net) 2,929,735 8,789,206 35,156,824 25%
Annual Budget Cost 4,395,843 13,190,692 51,856,515 25%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 3,318,618 7,559,332 29,488,515 26%

Debt Service (Net) 411,408 1,234,224 4,936,896 25%
Annual Budget Cost 3,730,026 8,793,556 34,425,411 26%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 560,304 1,507,021 3,805,701 40% (a)
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 256,879 570,023 977,410 58% (b}

Other Plant Cost 215,156 529,870 2,048,734 26%

Debt Service (Net) 476,392 1,429,177 5,716,708 25%
Annual Budget Cost 948,427 2,529,070 8,742,852 29%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 2,243,470 10,664,680 33,092,116 32% (©)

Other Plant Cost 2,129,838 5,151,444 24,544,632 21%

Debt Service (Net) 2,173,321 6,519,963 26,079,852 25%
Annual Budget Cost 6,546,629 22,336,087 83,716,600 27%
Member Resources - Energy 4,536,791 17,335,455 64,448,814 27%
Member Resources - Natural Gas 406,171 1,223,424 3,098,278 39% (d)
Western Resources 1,292,342 4,702,422 31,349,618 15%
Market Power Purchases 2,063,253 5,965,124 15,539,033 38% (e)
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 25,818,313 68,302,437 273,858,269 25%

Net GHG Obligations - 615,100 1,122,972 55% ®
50,298,099 146,500,388 571,964,063 26%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 321,945 1,239,453 3,662,271 34% (9)
Wheeling Access Charge 8,818,846 27,254,799 104,569,875 26%
Ancillary Services 1,015,855 2,242,513 3,040,303 74% (h)
Other Charges (2,463,997) (2,463,997) 1,5649274  -159% (i)
7,692,649 28,272,768 112,821,723 25%
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 144,056 503,226 2,023,068 25%
Regulatory Representation 57,659 144,076 886,616 16%
Western Representation 49,232 126,556 848,160 15%
Member Services 39,685 93,094 438,389 21%
Judicial Action 69,898 70,806 625,000 1%

Management Services continued on next page



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 25%
This Actual Year FY 2019
Month To-Date Budget % Used
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 561,776 1,412,110 6,107,416 23%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 258,132 628,107 2,775,167 23%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 27,960 70,301 438,813 16%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 79,801 216,364 1,134,623 19%
Green Power Project 27 79 2,964 3%
Gas Purchase Program 7,075 16,748 77,781 22%
Market Purchase Project 9,008 22,251 112,014 20%
Energy Risk Management 5,486 32,027 259,585 12%
Settlements 46,644 151,823 941,392 16%
Integrated Systems Support 1,848 41,919 272,850 15%
Participant Pass Through Costs 31,503 135,839 1,619,170 8%
Support Services 296,536 367,526 - N/A
1,686,326 4,032,852 18,563,008 22%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 59,677,074 178,806,008 703,348,794 25%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 6,322,267 45,394,608 100,456,289 45% 0)
Member Resource ISO Energy Sales 2,325,583 12,667,349 28,186,777 45% (k)
NCPA Contracts ISO Energy Sales 1,621,363 7,616,704 14,720,326 52% k)
Western Resource Energy Sales 1,251,673 10,399,897 23,182,775 45% (k)
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 31,247,926 38,579,684 131,328,609 29% 0]
Ancillary Services Sales 484,150 1,600,857 4,409,129 36% (M)
Transmission Sales 9,198 27,594 110,376 25%
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 1,357,837 5,220,637 37,414,086 14%
44,619,997 121,507,330 339,808,367 36%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 15,057,077 § 57,298,678 $ 363,540,427 16%

(a) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT1 is at 133% of budgeted MWhs at 9/30/18. Fuel costs, CA 1ISO
charges, and other variable costs have all increased as a result of increased generation.

(b) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 458% of budgeted MWhs at 9/30/18. Fuel costs and CA 1ISO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(c) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. LEC is at 116% of budgeted MWhs at 9/30/18. Fuel costs and CA ISO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(d) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation at CT1, CT2, and LEC. See notes (a), (b), and (c).

(e) Variance due to unbudgeted market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted deals made after the FY19 budget including certain
NextEra and Shell deals.

() Purchases made several months in advance. Increase primarily due to greater than anticipated GHG allowances purchased at auction for
Alameda and the City of Lodi.

(g) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (a), (b), and (c).
(h) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (a), (b), and (c).

(i) The budget to actual variance is caused by unbudgeted CAISO costs including imbalance costs, neutrality allocations, congestion
offsets, and other cost allocations. These costs are not budgeted due to their unpredictable nature.

(i) Variance due to higher than anticipated 1SO energy sales and higher market prices for the Lodi Energy Center (LEC), CT1, CT2, and Hydro.
(k) Increase due to higher market prices caused by California wildfires.

() The load aggregation energy sales variance calculated above uses 3/12 of the annual budget. When comparing actual sales to
monthly budgeted amounts, the variance is less than 1%. The above variance is expected to normalize throughout the year.

(m) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. See notes (a), (b), and (c) and corresponding increase in ancillary services costs.



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Participants

Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Unused vendor credits
Preliminary survey and investigation costs
Investment in associated company

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

September 30,

2018 2017

(in thousands)

34,936 $ 20,096
50,529 61,756
181 431
1,396 1,127
478 247
9,746 9,799
881 662
98,147 94,118
37,296 38,934
165,883 167,699
717 644
203,896 207,277
1,504,774 1,502,795
(981,206) (950,449)
523,568 552,346
182 151
523,750 552,497
229,872 235,406
- 24
74 -
265 -
1,056,004 1,089,322
39,507 44,992
19,200 13,506
58,707 58,498

1,114,711 § 1,147,820




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounts and retentions payable - restricted for construction
Member advances
Operating reserves
Current portion of long-term debt

Accrued interest payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension and OPEB liability
Operating reserves and other deposits
Interest rate swap liability
Long-term debt, net
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits
Pension and OPEB deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

September 30,

2018 2017

(in thousands)

19,489 § 36,695
50 -
1,104 993
22,515 20,599
41,950 41,870
8,646 9.612
93,754 109,769
76,002 64,589
146,605 142,280
11,818 15,433
664,182 705,660
898,607 927,962
992,361 1,037,731
69,866 71,338
3,195 4,460
73,061 75,798
(43,148) (44,603)
42,255 41,332
50,182 37,562
49,289 34,291

1,114,711  § 1,147,820




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

Three Months Ended September 30,

2018 2017

(in thousands)

97,504 $ 90,450
88,279 77,112
185,783 167,562
83,161 85,740
22,709 16,239
43,250 38,719
7,739 7,736
5,432 4,274
4,551 3,989
166,842 156,697
18,941 10,865
(10,109) (11,389)
4,545 2,334
1,575 1,229
(3,989) (7,826)
(1,275) (839)
(2,456) (1,969)
11,221 231
38,068 34,060
49,289 § 34,291




1LY $ pl16091 €0€°91 §  €5579¢ B $  CSTHIY § OLEE 091°T€ 676 PSE #02°98
LOL'8S 00Z°61 - - - €50T = 598 ¥00°SE 585°1
00T'61 00Z°61 2 ¥ - - - S - -
LOS 6€ - - - . £50°C - 598 #00°SE $85°1
$00°950'I PILTIHT £0€'91 £55°9¢€ = 661°TTy 9L£'¢ S6T 1€ SH6'61€ 61978
$9T S92 - = : - - - = E
vL & vL - - - - - - =
TL8'6TT T6L19 - €0TYT - #80°01 0STvEL Lse)
0SLETS LO8T 0T€ - - S8L'8EE $66°1 161 122°0€1 169°€€
81 - - # - 81 - - 3 -
895°€TS L08'T 0ze - - £09°8E€ $66'1 1£6°S1 122°0€L 169°€€
90z186) (ev1e) (zzv) ® (oeL’L) (oz°s8) (ozs've) r16'sy) (L19%97) (1v9%9¢s)
PLLYOS T 056°S L - 9EL’L 0I8'€Th 125°9¢ SP8Po 8E8V6E zEE'0LS
968°£0C 66£0L > 668'LT - 8v6°ZE - 0s§°Z 06LTY 01€'4Z
LIL 3 - - ¥ 8zt - ] i 621
£88°691 88695 - 095°€Z - 078°9T 5 620°C Tv9°€E v¥8°TT
96T'LE 0L0°€l ® 65 - 0009 - £1s LEO'S LEEY
LY1'86 1S%°9 606°SL ¥59°8 - £92°9C 18€'1 0ELT v8LTI SL6ET
- (iL6°6L) 0r8SL 0ITL s TL6'ET [§2) 90T 8pS 11 99¢61
188 L8b 9 - - L01 9l it 9s1 86
WL - - : - 11'e Sop°L w9 6L0°T 60Sp
8Ly 293 i szl - - - - : =
96¢€°1 SL - 61E°L - - - - L [
181 181 ¢ - - - « - -
62505 62505 - - . e - -
9E6'VE $ L6LYE €9 § - - $ € $ 1 i - 1
m.u:_ﬂEOU .ﬁocv_m.< muum\r“vm Gommmm-:mcw.-.ﬁ 33O ON .BEMU >,m.\_v=m u:O ON m@—,a___u,mu— o.n:uoﬁoo._ﬁ.ﬂw —dEhustDO
uu_ﬁo ._Un_Eoz P Jamog _._Omwm_—:m-au.—. pog 1D Easo
PR1RIDOSSY paseyoing u_&a_:z
STOUNOSTY NOISSINSNY UL 2 ONILVIINTD
8107 ‘0¢ 1oquiaydag

UOLEWIQUIOD) Uf POTRUIIT 4

SHOYNOSTY 40 SMOTILNO ATIITAFA ANV SLASSV TV.LOL

SIDYNOSTY 40 SMOTALAO AFNII4dd TV.LOL
S[eJI9JOp uoIsuad
1g2p JO SUIPUMYAI UO 1500 $SAOXT

SFIYNOSHY 40 SMOTILNO ATIILIAA
SLASSV TVIOL

Auedwod pa1eIdOSse Ul JUSUISIAUL
$1S00 Uor 1 pue AaAIns Areunuiarg

§19558 Ec«n_z.wuy—
SLASSV ¥dHLO

INVTd ORLIITd TVLOL
ssa1501d-Ul-310M UOHONNSUO)

uonewaidop pareunoIe §SI]
2901135 I Juefd oupdd[g
INVTd ONLOFTH

SLASSV AILONLSTE TV.LOL
3]qBAI331 15319IU]
SIUSWIISIAU]
sjua[eAinba yseo pue yse)
SLISSY AALONILSTH

SLISSY INTNIND TVIOL
LswerSoxd 1ayjo pue Aousy wox ang
sasuadxa predaig
sayddns pue A1ojuaaug
9qeAIDal 1S313U]

Ryo

syuedioteg
3[qBAIS331 SJUNOIDY
SIUSUEISIAU]
sjua[eamba yses pue ysed

SLASSV INTIIND

SLASSY

(peaniwo ,000)

SNOLLVIOJU0D dIMO4d TALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNTOV 4AMO0d VINJOITTVD NITHLION

NOLLISOd LAN 40 INTWILVLS ONINIFINOO

NOLLVINIOANI TVIONVNIA YAHLO



LI § ¥16091 D $ ESS9E s - $ TsTvey § 9LEE $ o09lzE $ 6vetsE $ p0C98 $ NOILISOd LAN ANV STOMNOSTE 40
SMOTINI ATYEAEA ‘STLITEVIT IVIOL

68760 PLTT 6LEL (0gbe) - £Ev 8l £9€ 76T 1956 LIvYI NOILISOd LN TV.IOL
78108 $89'C SE9L (8YT'€) = 9IbLL £9¢€ wie £59°11 908711 paroLsalun
SSTTY [€317)] (950 (z81) 2 SLL9I 3 LOET 918°LL 90T'9 potoLsay
(8¥1'er) - - - - (8sL's1) = sty (806°61) (s62°€) sjasse [endes uf JusunsaAul 19N
NOILISOd LAN
190°€L [ £LT * - 0Z5°0p 0917 $26 680t 059'81 SHOYNOSTY 10 SMOTANI ATIIFIId TYLOL
S61°€ S61°€ - - - : ® = - - S[eLIRJOp GHJO PUE UOISUG
998°69 6vT°E €LT . % 0zs‘or 091z S26 680'% 059'81 supas Aiojenday
SADUNOSTY 40 SMOTAINI ATYIATA
19€7766 961°TS1 1598 £86'6¢ = 667 S9¢€ €58 £76°0€ 667 LbE LET'ES SALLITIEVIT TVIOL
£09°868 £18°9p[ 3€£'8 907°8Z - G88°TEE = 766'ST T61°91¢€ 181°0% SALLITIAVIT INTTINO-NON TVIOL
781799 - - - - 801°'1€€ . 766'ST 776°98C 001°0T 10U 1q2p WLA1-8u0]
318°L1 - - s - - - - 81811 - Aupqer] dems 331 353:93u]
S09°9Y1 118oL 8€€'8 902°8C - LILT - - (AT Al 180°0T sysodap 1oy10 pue saasesas Sunesado
T00°9L T00°9L - - - - ‘ - - - Aiqen gad0 pue uoisuad 1aN
SHILITEVIT INTHEND-NON
vSL'E6 £8€°C €1€ LLLTL - yibTE €58 156 LO1°ST 956°C1 STLLITIEVIT NN TYLOL
99's - - - g 3434 s €T piv'E pEL 3[qeded 15219101 panIooy
0561y - - - - 08t'11 . S6LY 08112 $60°S 199p wi93-Buo Jo uoriiod JusLny
3544 - - - : S10%%1 433 €IS 0sT 5889 soatasax SuiesedQ
yor'1 - A% - 2 = = - - 16L S20UBAPE JOQUISA
0S = - - - or - - o1 - UONONIISUGD 10] PAIOLIISAI - A|qeArd SUOIUSISI PUE SIUNOIDY
68t°61 § €8€S $ - § LLLTL $ - $ 20T $ 1 § - $ €Sz § 1S $ sasuadxe paruooe pue sjqeded sjunosoy
SHLLITEVIT LNTIIND
SHLLITIEVIT
pauiquo) Aousiy EERINEN ISST 1 UOISST I} 12108 Afreug auQ 'ON sanie] LAPOIPAH [euLaylosny
Pyo Qe @ 10MOg 1po] 10 fende)
pareroossy paseyaIng oA

SHDMNOSTI NOISSINSNVYL % ONLLYYENTD

8107 ‘0¢ Joquapdag
(panwo s,000)
SNOILVIOI 0D HAMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
AINAOV YIMOd VINHOATTVD NYTHLIYON

NOLLISOd LAN 10 INTWILVLS ONINIZNOD

NOLLVIARIOANI TVIDONVNIA YdHLO



wONRUIQUOY) U PTRURMIT

68Z°6% $ vLTT $ 6LEL § (oere) $ - § €ev'8l §  €9€ $ T6T $ 1956 § LIP'YI $ POpuU3 poldd ‘NOILISOd LN
890°8¢ L£8 L6LD 9608 - (A3 (9z9) 60t L8€°L vT6'1l 12 jo BumuiSeq ‘NOLLISOd LN
12211 LEY'T 786 (9zs'11) - 681°G1 686 i) yLIT £6v'C NOILISOd LAN NI (SVTYOHQ SYIIONI
9s¥7) (608°1) (601) vz9) - - L6 ol [C34] S1T SINVJIOILYYd OL SANNITY
(sLz'n - - - - (434 = (es) (165) LS SINNOWY TTIVEIACOTT TANLNAL
(686°¢) ¥29°T [34 [ - ($817) 1 LLL (S6€°S) L0€ SANNAATE (SISNAIXT) ONILY43dO NON TV.LOL
SLST 0zz - €9 - 16L - 108 - - pelitle}
SKSy vor'c [%4 56€ - vIL 1 8y 61§ 12 AWIOOUY 1S3IAUL
(601°01) . - - - (689°¢) - (zL9) 16 (en) asuadxa 38259}
SHNNIATE (SASNIIXH) ONILVIEJO NON
1r6°81 729 899 (G E 65691 168 07T 96€°8 SYST SANNIATY ONILVYEJO LAN
758991 (o15) 0Ly S16°€Tl - 9L6'61 1587 059°T 08L9 99.°8 SASNAIXH ONILVYEdO TV.LOL
- - (€1) 1 - oL 74 81 7L (sL) 10U ‘saseqaund (sojes) Auedwiooisiug
155y (109) 1L8°1 = - 55Tl oLl €81 LyL 97Tl [e15uaT pue SAHENSIUIWPY
(4329 - €l - - ¥96 S6€ €51 6€€°1 895°T SDUBUIUIEIN
6EL'L 8 vT = " $59°€ Ly 1ss 16£'T L86 uoneIdocy
0sT'ey - i £Y9'TY 3 81T IS 11 87T 86 UOISSTWISUEL ],
60L°TT - (248 [xaa # s 99 00L €26 128 suoneredQ
191°¢8 z - 6008 - LET'L 144 vE 080°1 £23 1amod paseyaing
SASNAIXH ONLLYYIdO
£8L°681 901 88€°C SSSTIL - S£69€ wrT 0L8'T 9LIST TIET SANNAATY ONILYYIIO TVIOL
6,788 2 00€ £78°01 - $S0¥T 7861 088 . 79501 LLT'OL Aued-payy 24O
¥05°L6 $ 901 § 880°¢ $ TELIL $ - $ 088CL $ 098 $ 066 $ VLY $ pell $ swedonred
SANNIATE ONILYVITIO
pauIqUIO)) fouaiy SIOIAIAS UOISSH 1L 1SSt 1L 191U AdIauy suQ ON sanIey JLIIO3[R0IPAH [COIEITREYS)
|o Jaquispy 29 1oMog 1poT 1D fende)
PaIRIOSSY paseyaIng ardumy

SAANOSTE NOISSTNSNY YL 2 ONLLVIENTD
8107 ‘0€ 19quIaydag papu SYIUOJA] 1Y, Y} 10

(panwo 5,000)
SNOLLVHOJYO0D YAMOd QALVIDOSSY ANV
AJDNAOV HAMOd VINYOAI'TYD NUAHLION

NOLLISOd LAN NI STONVHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘SEONIATE 40 INFWALVLS ONINIFINOD

NOLLVINYOANI TVIONVNIA ¥AHLO



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
September 30, 2018

Status Participant / Customer Description Amount
CURRENT $ 1,395,106
PAST DUE:

1-30 BART FY19 SCPA Balancing Acct Adj 172,601 *
Lodi FY19 SCPA Balancing Acct Adj 9,586 *
31-60 WAPA SEL Transformer Training 144
61-90
91 -120
Over 120 Days
PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 1,577,437

* Denotes items pending authorized Letters of Direction

AR FY 2019Sep Rpt 2018




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of September 2018

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 1,145,980
3,349,369
252,897
726,768
7,242,794
29,009,827

$ 41,727,635




o —

ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

October 17, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  October 25, 2018

SUBJECT:

Treasurer's Report for Month Ended September 30, 2018

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth==>_% _? .. METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A
Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

If other, please specify

All Members X Cityof Lodi O City of Shasta Lake

Alameda Municipal Power [J City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah
San e tranee ] CityofPaloAlto 0 Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD

City of Healdsburg [  City of Santa Clara [ Other

o o o o o O

SR: 208:18



Treasurer's Report for the Month Ending September 30, 2018
October 17, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Agency policy and State of California Government Code Sections 53601 and
53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for your information and acceptance.

Cash - At month end cash totaled $7,155,245 of which approximately $245,004 was applicable
to Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $3,945,809 to Debt Service and $2,964,432 to Operations
and other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments - The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $281,438,267 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $277,919,738.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 1.998% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 2.026%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $172,903,000. September maturities totaled $55 million and monthly receipts totaled
$20 million. During the month $36 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occeur.

Interest Rates - During the month, rates on 90 day T-Bills increased 8 basis points (from 2.12%
to 2.20%) and rates on one year T-Bills increased 12 basis points (from 2.47% to 2.59%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of September 30, 2018
are in compliance with the Agency’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and
investment maturities to meet next month's cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment

SR: 208:18



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS S

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Cash & Investment Balance

September 30, 2018
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 1,029,180 $ 111,468,156 $ 112,497,336 38.98%
Special Deposits $ 905,727 §$ - $ 905,727 0.31%
Construction $ 1,029,525 $ 3,967,803 $ 4,997,328 1.73%
Debt Service $ 3,945,809 $ 16,265,801 §$ 20,211,610 7.00%
Special & Reserve $ 245,004 $ 149,736,507 $ 149,981,511 51.98%
$ 7,155,245 § 281,438,267 $ 288,593,512 100.00%
Portfolio Investments at Market Value $ 277,919,738

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B - The total portfolio book value includes General Electric (GE) bonds totaling $1,232,765 with maturity date
1/09/2023. S&P Global Ratings (S&P) downgraded their credit rating of GE from A2 (rating at time of purchase) to
BBB+ on 10/2/18, while Fitch and Moody’s maintained their current ratings at A and A2, respectively. NCPA will

continue to monitor the economic outlook for the issuer.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
September 30, 2018
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE /
OPS/CONSTR __ (NOTE B) (NOTEA)  OPS/CONSTR _ (NOTEB)  FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 19,620,548 $ 61,122 $ 48,860,884 $ (20,315,792) $ (28,832,340) $ (19,011,474) $ 382,948
Special Deposits 718,137 1 - (15,199,768) - 13,427,934 (1,053,686)
Construction - - - - - - -
Debt Service - 387 - - (2,225,023) 6,165,805 3,941,169
Special & Reserve - 37,752 6,238,368 (1,090,573) (4,603,282) (582,265) -
$ 20,338,685 $ 99,272 $ 55,099,252 $ (36,606,133) $ (35,660,645) $ - $ 3,270,431

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments,



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary
September 30, 2018

(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE/
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 28,832,340 $ (48,860,884) $ 7,581 § - $ - (20,020,963)
Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction - - (594) - - (594)
Debt Service 2,225,023 - 24,271 - - 2,249,294
Special & Reserve 4,603,282 (6,238,368) (6,280) - - (1,641,366)
$ 35,660,645 $ (55,099,252) $ 24,978 § - $ - (19,413,629)
Less Non- Cash Activity
Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale (24,978)
Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity (19,438,607)

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.




Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

September 30, 2018
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE BOND
INTEREST EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED 1.998% . 2.026%
OPERATING FUNDS: 1.937% 2.042%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 2.252% 2.423%
Capital Facilities 2.280% 2.268%
Hydroelectric 1.989% 2.024%
Lodi Energy Center 1.906% 1.595%
INTEREST RATES
3.25 -
3.00 -
1
KEY INTEREST RATES glgg 1
PRIOR 118
CURRENT _ YEAR 128 = TR, - .. T e
5
Fed Fds (Overnight) 1.92% 1.16% | 025 -
T-Bills (90da.) 2.20% 1.06% 0.00 ot Vay g | Aw | se
Agency Disc (90da.) 2.16% 1.01% ¢ P
T-Bills (1yr.) 2.59% 1.31%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 2.59% 1.28% -
T-Notes (3yr.) 2.89% 1.59% —+— T-Bills (90 days) —#- FED FUNDS
ety T-Bills (1 yr) ey T-NoOtes (3 yr)




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
September 30, 2018
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 15 6-10
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent
US Government Agencies $ - $ 20,106 $12,483 $ 4,907 $ 1,160 $ 120,297 $2,000 $ 160,953 56.85%
Corporate Bonds (MTN) - - - - - 48,960 - 48,960 17.29%
US Bank Trust Money Market 2,369 - - - - - - 2,369 0.84%
Commercial Paper 6,324 - - - - - - 6,324 2.23%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 57,874 - - - - - - 57,874 20.44%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 2,183 - - - - - - 2,183 0.77%
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note - 2,548 119 - 137 146 - 2,950 1.04%
Certificates of Deposit 10 - - - - 1,500 - 1,510 0.53%
Total Dollars $ 68,760 $22,654 $12,602 $4,907 $1,297 $170,903 $2,000 $ 283,123 100.00%
Total Percents 24.29% 8.00% 4.45% 1.73% 0.46% 60.36% 0.71% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully
collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



wie 2zZ:80 8102/c0/01

860°'€6Y ¥5592 84d0/9¥80 STE'S8Y 980°€ 9z9'L £202/5L/E0  08E'T6Y 8L0T/LT/EQ  0S2T 000°00S o08an | kemeyieH asusyieg
£25'06% €1992 yo13Terye 00888y vaz'e 219 £202/90/€0  $.8'68Y 810Z/ZL/90  008C 000'00S ooan O lended a199Q uyor
296'586 87992 SUVOLEZOE 089'/46 890°€ zL9'L €202/L0/E0  0SV'G86 gL0Z/€0/80  92LT 000'000'} 008N 1e10d10D (IO UOXX3
L0e'68Y 95592 GHAX68E89  OVZ'Ser ySLE 865'L €Z0Z/SLZO  0LO'ssy 8LOZ/LTIED  §29T 000'00S 208N ‘di0D 8peIO
1z8'sey £0992 GND2088Z8 00Z'€8Y Yor'e ¥85'L £Z0Z/L0/20  S8G'¥8Y 8LOTISLIGO 05T 000'00§ 208N dnou9 Auadoid uowis
9/9'G.6 S¥99Z §1319€268 020°LL6 SLEE €95°'L €20T/LL0 092126 8L0T/€0/80  00LT 000°000°'L oo8n 1pa1D JO0N Bl0A0 L
£5.'76€ Lv992 90Y0928Z6 090'26€ gEL'e Ges'l ze0e/viieL  TSSvee 8102/€0/80  008C 000'00% oo08n “ou| BSIA
158187 $5592 o8vYr9L99L S68'L8Y 800°€ 9z5'L 7202/50/2L 09468V 8L0Z/LZ/IE0  SGET 000'005 o08n ‘diod uosaeud
€ee'6ey #1992 LVOMG99Z0  028'v8Y 51 105°L zT0T/9LLL  05S'8sy 8L0Z/ZLI90  009T 000'00S o08an Ueuis BpUOH Uesliawy
Lip'esy z1992 YNBEZ0260  009'08% v20€ 06¥'L zzoz/oe/0L  08L'E8Y 8L0Z/ZLI0  002T 000'005 o08n "0 Buisog
z95'98y 9199¢ ZOVOLZ0L9 0L5°08F [4d%3 Siv'L 220z/5LI0L  08Y'veY 8L02/2L/90  SLET 000005 ooan "00 LRI JBISN
6LL'zeL't 62592 LDOEE8LED 289'880'L 622 8Le'L Z20ZLLIGO  996°IZL'L 8L0Z/L0/Z0  DOET lee'ezl’L 208N ‘ou} eiddy
zL9's8y 15592 zLasybeL. S6L'vaY ¥26'T 60€'L Z20Z/20/150  §00'28Y 8l0Z/LZIE0  0SZT 000'005 208N ‘ou] 0Q1sdad
620'76F 10992 83VAQET/8 09£'06Y GLEE 8/Z'L TTOZ/LOM0  GBE'EEY 8l0T/GLIS0  0S6'C 000°005 208n spenuswyY dL
1G€'9.6 12992 yao09L8Ly 0SE'9L6 7862 zA T202Z/IE0/E0  OVL'9L6 8L0z/02/60  0SZT 000°000'L 208n uosuyof g uosuyor
686'G/6 €2992 zAQ8LIZYL OVL'TL6 090°€ vzz'L 2202/90/20  014'GL6 8L0Z/0Z/60  00€'C 000°000't 208N 2lqwes @ Je3001d
000202 £0v9Z TEAVOPELE  LSY'SEL 00z %A 2e0z/9e/l0 000202 LL0Z/0EN0 0022 000'202 208N 1N UeOT SUWOH fesepay
S81'666 5992 8VEA6.G88 00€'866 81L0'¢ 640'L L20zZ/PLIB0  08V'666 8L0Z/LZ/E0  000'€ 000°000°L 008n fuedwo) We
0v9'656 69992 $OEMGI9Z0  0£9'/56 (4R v20'L 1202/60/60  0ZZ'656 8L0z/0Z/60  00L'L 000'000°L 008n Ueul BPUOH Ueduauwy
000'005'€ 58692 PHAVOYELE 060'00E'S 005'L 160'L 120z/cT/80  000°005'€ gLoz/ge/LL  00S'L 000'005°€ 208N I\ UBOT SWOH |esepad
£50'609'C S9v9z GYSHIEELE Z05°8LST 0z9'L 620'L L202/92/1L0  ¥8L'LLO'T 1102/82/80  0ZL} 0002092 208N Wpa1D Wied [elopad
000°000°} 82992 9VOSOVELE 0.E'866 0662 100"t 1202/82/90  000'000°L 8L02/82/90 00§ 000°000°} oo0an 1N UBOT SUIOH |esapad
ovy'esy 21992 8XaL80LL. 0£L'S8Y 858 9.6 L202/e0/90  OElL'/8Y 8L0C/CLI00  056'L 000°005 208N ouf Jazid
9L€'696 0.992 OMYOPL8Sy 000'996 6L6'C 196 LZ0Z/6L/IS0 096896 8102/02/60  00L'L 000°000'L 2080 diod 18l
126'68F 85592 §199/0/8F GZb'L8Y wez €16 L20Z/L0/P0  008'.8Y 8L0Z/LZ/E0  000T 000'00 o08n "ou| jodeq SWoH
000'000'€ #9592 919SOPELE 0£E'0L6'T 0£52 o6 L20z/6Z/e0  000'000'€ 810Z/62/€0 08T 000°000'€ 208N 1N UBOT BLUOH [BI1Bpa
Sv2'286 29992 £Q9¥GLZ.L 0LL'6/6 696 188 1202/82/20 020286 8102/0Z/60  00TC 000°000°} 208n ‘Ul swajsAg 03sIO
88Z'¥8LC §5€92 08d8VOELE 9EL'€69'C L L¥8 LZ0Z/6LIL0  809'€8LC 9L0Z/6LIL0  0OY'L 000'68.'2 208N eg ueo 8WoH |eJspad
68Z'26Y 9,992 zzl3zevve SLL'Lev 160 08 L20Z/80/L0 G616V 810Z/L2/60  0SE'T 000005 o08n O [exded 21980 uyor
658'6.6 1992 LV3AZYLLEE 0286 8r8Z 908 0Zoz/SLIZL 085616 8102/0Z/60  006'L 000°000'L 208N ETRTETUETY
855'v86'Y 99v9z 9MIEVOELE GEQ'898'Y 06'L 559 0Z0Z/LLILO  €1€°086'% 210Z/82/80  009'L 000°6.6'7 208N eg B0 SWOH |eJepa
666'866 89992 GVE0SS69E  08S'/66 156 885 020Z/LLISO  086'866 8L0Z/02/60  §/8T 000'000°t 208N solweuAq feleus
60L'2007 15292 1OAVILELE OVO'086'E ostL we 610Z/0E/50  09L'SK0'Y GLOZ/60/90  OSL'L 000°000'% 208N N UBOT SWOH [esepad
T56'529'¢ 08292 ord43eeLe  689°'129°€ 00g'L 6 gLoz/BL/LL  BYE'YZI'E sLoziLerel 0BT 000°929'€ 208N WpaID uued [eispady
000°0L 80€0€ 80S0ESAS 000°0L 0500 9 8L0Z/20/0L 0000 8102/0/0 0500 000°0b asn yueg SN
£90'90L'e 96002 9G00/SAS £90'00L'E 0580 L 190°90L'€ 2L02/72/80 0580 290'90L'€ asn ueg SN
821'620'% 05002 0S00/SAS 81L'620'L 1000 L 8/1'620'L €L0Z/0E/00  LOOO 8/L'620°L asn ueg SN
9022/ 71002 YLO0LSAS 90122 2000 13 902222 €L02/L0/Z0 2000 90.'2.T o08n ojieD Jo yueg uoun
£26'298'0€ 00002 0000.SAS €/6'79€'0€ 6681 L £16'79€'0¢€ €L02/10/0 668 £16'7920€ 4V unsaau) Kousby [g00]
008'2LT'€ LoLo.L LOLO/SAS 008'2L2'E 0sZ'L I 008°212'e vL0z/9ZILL  0SZT'L 008'2L2°€ asn W'N Sueg sn
anfep bufued # JUSWIISBAU| dISND  @njep 1oen PIRIA Kumepw ajeq adud Aaea ajey anjeA pajels ue|pojsny / 39Sy Janss)
AInb3 oysheq  Aunen paseysing aseyaind jJsasau|
spuog
BunesadQ
8102/0€/60

| abed

uoday sJainseal)

Kouaby 1amod eiulojljed uldoyHoN

ADNIEY Y3MDd VINEDEYE NUIHIEON

VdDON



we zz:30 8L0Z/£0/0L
202'666'L 8/992 SINMSOPELE 0T8'966'L 186°€ 128t £202/92/60  00T'666'L 8L0Z/92/60  000°€ 0000002 o08n WA UBOT] BWIOH [esapad
122'105°T 5992 9ZNSOYELE 00£'TLY'T 6£0°€ z6LL £202/82/80  0SZ'10S'T 8L02/82/80  0S0°€ 000'005°Z o08n N UBOT] BWIOH [e1apad
ovL'96r 9z99z €HALBOLLL OVE'veY 0sL'e gL'l €202/51/90  055'96Y 8L02/22/90  000'€ 000°005 208N oul JeZild
108'€09'C £599¢ SANSOVELE Z80'LES'T l9v'e 8LL'L €20T/SLIo0 006'€09'C 81L02/21180 0sL'e 000'009'2 204N N UBOT SWOH [eJepad
6€0'666'L 62992 IINSOVELE  088°086'L ooe'e JAVAN £Z0C/PLI90  000'666'L 8L02/€2/L0  000°€ 0000002 208N A UBQT BUOH fesepad
000°000°} 22992 LANSOYELE 09Y'L66 alee 2L €202/PL/90  000'000'L 810Z/rLI90 00T 000'000'L 208n WA UBOT BWOH [Blaped
Lie'sey L£992 900208828 0L6'18Y ger'e y0L'L £20¢/10/90  SZL'¥BY 8L0Z/veIL0  0SLT 000°00§ oo8n dnois Auedold uouns
000'00S'2 ¥090Z LOISOYELE  GT'68Y'T gze'e 969°} £Z02/¥2/S0  000°005°T 8L02/vZ/S0  0SLT 0000052 208n WA UB0T BWIOH [esepad
206°18Y 16592 2OY90LYS9  SS0°8LY 80L°¢ €L9'L £202/L0/S0  0GE'08Y 8L0Z/60/50  0STT 000'00$ 208n U} BN
259's8¥ 1299¢ IMEZLELLE  GTL'Z8Y 16L'e £v9'L €20Z/L0/F0.  08L¥8Y 8L02/22/90  00SC 000'00S 208N aInag 92ied PalUN
120’16V 96592 8¥E0L9V80 GZE'88y s8Le 9z9't €20Z/SLIE0  08T'06Y 8102/60/50 05T 000005 oo08an | AemeuieH ailysyieg
LL2'e6Y 66592 £YVOLEZOE OV8'88Y $50°€ Z19't £20Z/LO/L0  0L9Z6Y 8L0Z/60/50  9TLT 000°00S 008N 1e10di0D IO UoXx3
0se'ssy v299z 13gys /L 08998y oLe Lot £202/8C/20  §59'.8Y 8L02/22/90  009'C 000005 208N "oul swalshg 09810
2ay'LES 8650C 24/dEET68  6EV'TES £0Z°€ 295't £20T/OLL0  ¥BZ'9ES 8L0Z/60/50  G29'C 000055 oo8n upalID Jojo EI0A0L
£21'26% 52992 ZIWVOPL8GY G/L'68Y 0.0°€ 985'L T20Z/SLZL  00£'Z6Y 8L0Z/2T/0 002 000°00S oo8n dioD jeiu
€0V LT z£99z 90V09Z826 8E0'SYT 960°€ ges't Z20ZWLTL  SLB'9VE 8L02/¥TI/0  008'C 000052 008N "oU| BSIA
206'58Y £4592 Savaoory. SLS'6LY LaL'e Syl 2202/54/60  S0L'e8y 8LOZ/MOO  0L€7T 000005 208n abelols aliand
S96'v6Y 21592 9989.0/E7 5.8'68Y 8L6C 668l 220Z/L0/90  06T'vBY 8LOZMOMO  S29T 000005 oo8n "} jodeQ sWoH
15 26V 11692 83VA9EZ/8  09€'06 ooLe 8.7} 2Z0Z/LOMO  00T'L6V 8L0Z/E0M0  0S6'T 000005 208n apefuswyY QL
£91'88Y 0£992 90Ad89rse 062'S8Y 98L'e 0sZ'L Z202Iv0/E0  026'L8Y 8L02/vZIL0  0S7'T 000'00S o08an 7Auedwog Asusiq Jem
8.Z'e6Y 25992 LvaglLeres 08l'sgy 8627 0eT't ze0z/TLZ0  S6TT6Y 810200 GLET 000'005 oo8n *dioD YosoLIN
£€€'88Y 02592 69V490¥90 S¥0'SBY 000°€ Sv6 1Z02/E0/60 50198y 8L0Z/E0/0  0S0C 000'005 208N 00 UD|IBIN AN 0 Yueg
000'Lv8'} 15892 6€1ED9ELE 6ZV'OBL'L 0se'L 999 0Z0Z/82//0  000'L¥8'L 910z/82/,0  0SEL 000°2¥8'L 208n BIW feuonen |esapad
£95°29Y'L 18192 PLAODGELE 9Z9°09F'L 69¢L 5 8L0z/Le/LL  SST'ILY'L vLoz/eLZE  S29'L 000'Z9'L Q0€n BiW leuonen (eiepad
6£5°500 £2002 €Z00LSAS 6E5'G09 2000 L 6£5'G09 €102Z/L0/,0 2000 6£5°509 208N ojled Jo yueg uolun
16€'G88'C 22002 TZO0LSAS L6£'988'T 668'L L 16€£'588'C £L0Z/L0/IL0 6681 16£'G88'C Elal unsanuy Aouaby |edo
1uno%9y Buiduejeg vdosS
(¥ 4] $ Lze $ 668°L 1 L1z'e9 $ 668'L 11z'es $ abelaAy pue [ejoy pund
L1Z'e9 S¥00L SY00LSAS LLZ'€9 668'L 3 L12'e9 £L0Z/L0/L0  668L 112'€9 wysenu] Aousby 2007
120y uoilony 9HO ddiN
oco‘ole'se § 905°c89'v8  § 2202 2€es s62'5e8's8  $ ¥68'L 190°ZLL's8  $ abesaay pue jejo) puny
6.9'/v6 22992 90881665 0LL'GV6 zLLe Tl €Z02/20/180  0SE'L¥6 8L0Z/02/60 000 000'000'F o08n ‘dioD yosoIN
000°000'L 9992 LANHLEE06 012'966 B86€'E 182} €202/veiL0 000'000°L 810Z/£0/80 oov'e 000°000'L 208N jueg SN
££6'20S 51992 1Zv998.2y 06T'66Y 98z 189't £202/5L/50  GZL'€0S 8L0Z/ZH90  GLE€ 000'00S 008n Auedwo) faysieH
69L'L0S 20992 ZOVHO0YS0 018'86% £Py'e 0/9'L £202/82H0  G9Z'L0S 810Z/SLS0  00S€ 000°005 o08an 00 UollBiy AN 40 dueg
yzz'esy 11992 IMEZLELLE  GZLT8Y 80€'€ £po'L £20Z/L0M0  OCh'esy 8L0Z/LZI60  005'T 000°00S 008N 9IAISS |901Bd PAILN
¥Z5'v8Y 00992 IMEZLELLE  GTL'ZBY 245 £r9'L £202/L0/W0  GTZ'esp 8LOZ/SLISO  00S'T 000'00S o08an e [90Jed PajuN
anjep Buihued # JuaunsaAu| diSND  onieA 3eN PISIA Aumen ajeq 20ud °1eq ajey anjep pajels uelpoIsnY / 33jsniL Janss|
Ainb3 oysheq  Aumen paseyaing aseyaind 1821934
.puog
BupesadQo
8102/0€/60

z obed

uoday sJainseal]

Aouaby Jomod etulojijed UIdyuoN

KISV BINOE ¥ VEOI VY NUIHIBON

VdON



we zz:80 81.02/€0/01
Apayenb ajqeqie) JNHA SBEITH WIWISIAU
8102/92/2T Sunes Apapenb ajqejed JTHA 8L99T# JUBUNSIAU| Apauenb ajqe|ed VWNL 89EGTH JUIWISIAU}
0202/S1/9 uo jqejied JWTH4 €599 JudWISIAU| Apauenb ajqejjed VININA LSEJTH JUDWIISDAU]
€202/€2/9 uo 3qe||ed asn 9t/99¢# JuaWISAAY| awAue ajqejjed €044 9SEITH WBWISAAU]
Apausenb a|qejjed IWIHA 6799Z# JUBWIISIAUY awAue sjqejedy 1HS SSE9TH 1UBWISIAU]
61/62/€ Inun a|qejied JWTHY ¥9S92# JUdWISIAY) awnAue a|qejjed 97H4 YSEITH JBUISIAUL
Apauienb 9|qejie) JWIHY €092 JUBWISIAUL awlAue 3|qejjed 4344 SEEITH JuaUISAAUY
Apayenb s|qejied IWIHA Z0b9Z# JUBWIISIAU| Apauenb ajqejed YIANA ZEE9TH JUBWISIAUL

SLOZ/OE/G0 1O S [ewInor J9313S 1EM 3U3 Wosy saoud piq J0 SJUBWSIEIS UBIPOISND [o21STUL Wody Saaud U0 paseq S| anjeA JxeN JuaLnD

‘poyjow Joexa Ue asn SIAYI0 [Ie ‘poyiaus ajewrxoidde ue asn fjunjew o0} SUIUOW 9 UBL} SS| UM SJUBWISIAUL
-sadAj je ussmjaq uosueduwos 4o} siseq e apiaoad 03 Jeak Aep G9¢ € UO paseq UMoys Si funjew o3 paiA Juajeainby puog,

sLLLeyesL ‘1z'geLosl § o'z 9L 95'265°28L 1861 155'090°€8L  § :STVLOL ANVHO
opz'is0'0L $ 06106589 $ 90 %4 sizzvi'or $ 88.'L 6v£'s80°0L $ abeiaay pue jejol puny
809'v8Y £8992 IMEZLELLE  §ZL'Z8Y Svz'e £v9'L £Z0Z/LOMO  SEL'EBY 8L0zZ/9Z/V0 005 000'00S 208N JIeg (32184 PBNUN
968681 91592 84g0/9v80  5zE'ssy evze 9z9't £20Z/GLIE0 0T6'88Y gL0z/92/v0  0SL'T 000'005 208n | RemeyieH siusyeg
L6€'68Y 18692 048d500v,  006'G8Y szTE v09'L €20Z/1Z/Z0  0SE'88Y 810Z/92W0 0042 000°005 208N au| Jiexeld
v8y'ssy 64592 GUEX68E89  0VT'S8Y g6L€ 865'1 £202/GLZ0  0SE'/8Y 8L0zZ/I9TVO  STIT 000005 208N ‘dioQ speIO
££5'26v 51592 £3VH90V90 SvL'/8Y gzee 1851 €20Z/62/L0  06LL6Y 8102/92i0  0S6'T 000'005 208N 00 U AN 40 Yueg
£62'16Y 11592 8S997969€  099'68Y SvGe 198'L £20Z/60/L0  SLY06Y 210zZ/9z/IV0  0OL'E 000°005 208n 00 9U8l3 [e1euUsD)
882's6Y #8692 90V09Z8Z6 G.0°06Y gvL'e geg't Z20TvLITL  009'Z6 8L0z/9z/v0 008 000°005 208N U] BSIA
842005 08592 YXO8PYELL 0L9'L6Y €80 g8g'L Z20Z/LLIL0  OLE'00S 8L0Z/9ZIVO  00L'E 000005 208N ‘au] o1sded
196'029'S 19v92 69DBLEELE TBY'OLY'E 091 8ve'l Z20Z/0LI90  09S'¥E9'E 1102/92/80  STL'T 000'6.5'S o08n eg Ue0T SWOH [eJepad
£0£'120'7 2592 LOOEEBLED £9Z'106'C 62T 8LE'L ZZ0Z/LLISO  BES'0ZOY 810Z/L0R0  O00ET Z5%'520'y 208N ‘auj siddy
zzL'e6y 78592 83IVAQEZ/8 09E'06Y geee 8.2't ZZ0ZOM0  0S6'Z6Y 8L0Z/9ZW0 066 000'00S 208N apesswy gL
1268 8597 LYE8L6VES PG 06 zI6T 0£T's Z20Z/eLZ0  08V'L6E 8L0Z/9TWO  GIET 000'00% 208N ‘d0D YoSOIIN
000°'29% Z0v9z ZBAVOVELE .8'LSY 00z'Z s1T'l Z20z/9TL0  000'/9% JL0ZI0E/L0 0022 000'29% 008N VN UBOT SWoH [e1epa4
000'629°0L geegz GHAO3EELE  G60'LOS0L 0691 616 1202/20/90  000'629'0} 9l0Z/20/90  069'L 000'629'04 2080 WpaID uLe |essped
000'00€"} 89€9Z EMEEDIELE  €96'6VT'L 005t 0.6 L202/82/S0  000°00€L 9L0Z/08/30  00G'L 000'00€"} 208N B)W [euonen |esepad
000°Z9L'S z££92 SINEDOELE  920'8L6'F gzg'l 196 1202/62/50  000'Z9L'S 9L02/52/S0  STI'L 000'294'S 208N GBI feuoHeN [esepe-
S00'ZLLLE ¥GE9Z 0848VOELE 9E6'GEE'LL Lt 18 L20ZI6LIL0 OWL'PLLLL 9L0Z/6L/.0  0OV'L 000'022°LL 208N eg Ueo BWOH [eJ8ped
608°28Z'Y 95£9Z JdWOIEELE  ZET'05L'Y gav'L v LZ0Z/BL/L0  GLL'08T'Y 9L0z/0Z/L0  OPY'L 000'682'y 208N WpalD Wied [e1apad
£51'666'7 9vzaz ZAZOOSELE  LYT'6T6'Y oer'L 12y 6L0Z/92/LL  POE'LVO'S SL0Z/8T/80  0SL'L 000'286'% o04n By feuoneN [esepad
215'116'S 88192 VLAQOGELE 88E'V96'S ost'L 15 8L0Z/LT/LL  LOL'600'9 vioz/ezel  seok 000°06'S 208N BIW 12UChEN [Biopad
0 15002 LS00LSAS 0 0000 L 0 €L0Z/L0/0 0000 0 asn Hueg sn
612691 61002 6L00/SAS 612'69L 2000 1 612691 £L0Z/LO/IL0 2000 612'69L 208n ople Jo ueg uolun
821'006'Z1 20002 0000.SAS 8/1'006°ZL 6681 L 8/1'006°C) €L0Z/10/L0  668'L 8/1°006'Z1 4V wysanu| fousBy |eooy

aMlasey BunesadQ jesousd
92Z'150'2Z $ oLe‘Lo8'9z  § £08'2 08zl 5£z'Ls0°2z  § 657°C 9c6'e6L'LZ  § abesaAy pue [ejo) puny
anjep buikuen #uaUnSaAu| dISND  anieA 1axpen PIRIA Rmen 2jeq aoud ajeq ajey anjeA paleIS ueipojSN / 8iSNIL Jonss|

Ainb3 oyskeq  Aumew paseyaund i ysa.93u)
puog
juno29y Bulouejeg vdos
8102/0¢€/60

¢ abed

KIN3TY ¥3004 ¥ VEDSUYD NUIHIBON

VdON

Joday sainseal|
AouoBy Jomod elulojijed ulayuonN



we £Z:80 8102/£0/01

659'LyL 6v69C /3VH90¥90 8LY'LEL 622 185} £202/62/L0  0L9'OVL 8L0Z/SLIE0  0S6'C 000052 208N 00 U3 AN Jo Yueg
¥68'0vL 05592 gLyIezrre Ovl'oeL voL'e 6.6'L €202//2/L0  8VL6EL 8L0Z/SLIE0  008'Z 000'062 208an 0 lexde a19aq uyor
i 25592 85992969€ 06YV'VEL 06e'e 195'L €202/60/L0  G8E'OVL 8L0Z/GLIEC  00L'E 000052 208N ‘00 9U1P3|3 [IBUSO
550'LEL 15592 YMOC89YST  Sv9'0ZL v00'E Frag! Z202/L0/ZL  08S'8ZL 8L0Z/GLIE0  0SET 000054 208N JAuedwioD Aausiq Hem
000052 €180 SNLEIOVST EES'BYT osl'e 9er'L 7202/90/60  000°052 8L02Z/90/60  OSL'E 000052 208N sueg Jeraosiq
000'052 oLeoe £4VOEOLBE ££9'8VZ 050 ogv'L 2202/L€/80  000'0ST 8L02Z/1€/80  0S0°S 000'052 208n Sueg YMON 18319
000052 L1€0e 011€9/6V6 0SV'LbT 05k'e 62yl ZZ0zZ/0E/20  000'0ST 8L0Z/0S/80  OSL'S 000'05Z 208N yueg obes silsm
£2£'008 66v9C LODEEB/E0 EVI'VES 62e°T 8le’l ZZ0ZILLISO  LLL'098 liozeeLl  00ET L1z'198 208N 2u) siddy
000'L76 yOr9T ZBAVOVELE  LZG'0L6 00ZT eIzl 2zZ0ei9z/l0  000'LY6 LLOZIOEIO  00ZT 000'176 208n YN UEO™] SWOH [esepad
2.6'18) £569Z 0A3NHESEBY §82°0SL coL'e SoL'L 120Z/60/7)  OSY'SEL 8L0Z/SLIED 0S5 000'062 208N VN Siueg ONd
000°052 zLe08 20300020 £0S'6VT 000°€ ¥0'L L20Z/0E8/80  000°0ST 8L0Z/0S/B0  000'E 000052 208N sueg Ay
000'000'2 69892 EMEEDYELE  020'€26'L 005} 016 1202/82/50  ©00°000°C 9L0Z/0E/80 005} 000'000'2 208N G feuoneN [esoped
0 €002 YE00LSAS 0 2000 L 0 €L02/L0/L0 2000 0 208N aylled Jo yueg uolun
782'966'C 12004 [Z00LSAS Z€C'866'T 668'L L 2£7'966'C €L0Z/LO/L0  668'L 262'866'C Ela wseAu| Aouaby [ea0
aAles9Yy BuluoissIwWwoaaQg 099

000°005°L  $ [ A ] osik 95 000'00s‘L  § o5kl 000005 $ abesany pue [ejof puni
000'005'L 20892 OMIBOVELE  OSY'26V'1L 0511 9 8LOZ/9Z/LL  000'00S'L 9L02/92/20  0Sb'L 000°005'L 208N VN UBO SWIOH [B13pa4
0 51002 GL00ZSAS O 2000 ! 0 €10Z/10//0 2000 0 208N ojifeD Jo ueg uown
anl0S9Yy |e1oads jewayloan

siv'soL  $ cer'soL  $ 1202 18 o0z'sot  $ a6l 000'60L  § afiesaAy pue jejo) pung
ZeL'S 16992 SDOYBLZLE YLL'YS 650 18 8L0Z/T/CL O89S 8102/LE/80 10T 000'sG 1asn Ainseail 's'n
o.'es 5£992 SDDYELZLE 6LL'ES 661 18 8lL0z//2/Tl  Y9S'ES 8L0Z/LE/L0  6V6L 0007 1880 fnseal] ‘s'0
92IAI9G 109Q0 Y9102 09D

z99'svz geL'ovz  $ LT €6 866's¥Z  $ 180T o00'svz  $ abeiaAy pue (ejo) puny
6LE'€T) 95992 VGaVPEEELE 660°CZ) (Y%A 6 6L0Z/Z0/L0  2BO'€TL 8L0Z/LE/B0  S2LT 000'vZ1 19sn g UB0T BWOH |eJepad
£Ye'eTl v£99Z VSawrecels 660'€2L 9607 €6 6L02/Z0/L0  906'z2h 8LOZ/LE/0 050 000'7ZL 1asn eg Ue0T SWOH le1epad
32IAI8S )q9(Q VZLOZ 089S

osv'ssy  $ s’ § vEL'T €6 6129 $ 1802 0001y § abelaAy pue |ejo) puny
0LL'EET 66997 VGAVYBEELE T6C'SET oLe €6 6L0Z/20/L0  08Z'EET 8L0Z/1E/80 STV 000'6€T 1asn g Uec SWoH [eJepes
05.'veT ££992 VSaVFEEELE G8Z'VET 960 €6 6L0Z/Z0N0  LLE'SET 8L0Z/LE/L0 050 000'952 1asn g UBOT BWOH [eJepad
anjep bufised #3uaunsaau| dISND  anfep Joen PIRIA Rumen sjeq 25ud B ajey anjep pajels UEIPOISND [ 99ISNIL Janss)

Ainb3 03 skeg funjey paseyaind aseyaind salajuy
Jpuog
991A19G 199Q [BULIdY)09S
8102/0€/60

| ofied

Aouoby Jomod eiuiogijed ulsyuonN

Moday s Jainseal]

KINITH HIMDS ¥ NEOIIYD NUIHIEDN

VdON



we £z:80 8102/€0/01

8T0Z/92/21 Burueys Aayienb 3jqeje) JWTHA 6£99Z4# JuBWISAAU|

T20Z/€2/L Sunueis swnhue ajqeje) a%4d pP99ZH JUBWISAAYY

Apaypsenb ajqejied JWTHA Y0OY9IZH# JudWISIAU
Apapsenb ajqejjed VIANNS 69E9ZH WBWISIAU
Apapenb sjqejjed VINNA EEE9TH JUDWISIAYY
Apspenb a|qe|ied JWTHS Z0E9TH WAWISAAU

8L0Z/OS/60 1O SE [BLINOF 192118 [[EM 2U3 w0y sadud piq Jo 1S uelpoisny / 1. wouy saoud uo paseq s} ANJEA JDUEN JUBLIND

‘poyjaW 30BX3 UE SN SIARC [[e ‘Poyidw ajewixoidde ue asn AjLnjew o} SYIUOUE 9 UBY) SSOY UM SJUBUILSIAU]
-sadA} |je uaamjaq uospedwos 1oj siseq e apiaod o) Jeak Aep go¢ & uo paseq umoys st Ajme o} PlAIA juejeainb3 puog,

evsTre'sz § '£66'5Y5'62  $ £Zv'T 9901 90081852 $ [4:144 sp'vie'sT  $ :SVLOL ANVYS

£88°265°L $ (77513 S 1z9'tL £v6 [ 1 A £29'L 000'sss’t  $ abesaay pue fejo) puny
000°2L6'L £€£9C GINEDIELE  PEB'TIV'E 529t 196 120252158 000°Z1G'} 9L02/52/50 STl 000°2L5'% 1asn By |euoneN leiepad
£88°0F 11592 £€3d96/216 OV8'0F 661 99 8L0Z/90/2L  €ov'ov 8LOT/EON0  S§SSTL 000°LY asn Kinseait 's'n
JuNoddYy ¥SA Ve 10T 099

sol'eiv'e  $ ses’sey'e  $ o6v’L 62¢ 992'65v'c  $ 06¢'L 000'8L¥'e  $ 3BeJaAy pUE {€30) pund
€02'805°C 16192 SNAYILELE E€PE08Y'T 0g5')L 99¢ 6L02/C0/0L  6EB'E8Y'T sL0z/leie0 0sZL 000'GL5'T Lasn N UeoT SWOH [elepad
80€'606 82292 LOAVILELE ¥.L¥'206 ySEL Wz 6L0Z/0E/S0  988'026 GL02/20/90  0SL'L 000°206 18sn WA UBOT BWOH [e19pa4
¥59'sS 96592 8dd96.2L6 8/G'GS T8 zeL 6L0Z/LE/LD  LYO'SS 8L0T/L2/20 €28’} 000'9S asn fnseail 's'n
J09Y 9AI9SBY BIIAISS 1920 03D

Lo6'28v'8L  $ 99L'vez'sl $ €8T ovel Tvv'sLv'sl  $ ¥95°2 cpp'oss’sl  § abesaAy pue |ejof pund
81€'666'L yy99z y1Ar3EELE  009'E66'L SSv'E 1872 GTOT/ET/L0  00€'666'L 8L02//21,0  0S¥'E 000'000'2 008N ¥pa1) uled [eiepad
20Z'666'L 62992 SIMSOYELE  028'966'L 185°€ 1z8'L €202/92/60  00Z'666'L 8L0Z/92/60  000°€ 000°000'2 208n W\ UBQT] SWOH jelepe4
000'052 71€0€ YESOZIELL 885'6VZ 00€'€ 208t €202/.0/60  000°0SZ 8102/20/60  00€'€ 000'0SZ o08n VN JUEqRID
000'052 60€0€ €d018/T6C 06V'8YZ 00z yeL'L £Z0Z/0E/80  000'05C 8102Z/0€/80  00Z'€ 000°052 008N VSN Jueqiaul
0000002 £2992 LINSOVELE 0Z6'V66'L alee AV €202/7L/90  000°000°C 8L0Z/VL/90  00LZ 000'000'C 208n W UBOT WO fesepad
v2L'26Y 8v59C 9HVHZEBYY GEG'LEY orL'e 685°L £202/90/20 _ 028'96Y 8L0T/SL/E0  000°€ 000°005 208N OT1HPRID Wl
anjep butiued #JuauSaAU| dISND  enjeA }axue PIAIA Rumen a1eQ 2oud °jeq ajey anjeA pajeis uelposny / 3vIsnuL 1onss|

Ainb3z 0} sheq Aamew paseyoing aseyamnd jsasuy
+puog

z oabeg

8102/0€/60

Hoday sJainseal}

Kouaby Jamod elulojijeD uldyuoN

oAlasey Buluoissiuwodaq 09

ADNASY B3O ¥ NEDI YD NUIHIEON

VdON



028'8207  $

Apauenb sjqejed VIAINA

we Z:80 8102/€0/04

8SE9TH JUSWIISIAU|

8LOZ/IOS/E0  JO SE [BLINOL J9313S [[EM 2U3 W0l $35ud PIq J0 SIUSWIIRIS UBIPOISND [93]STUL WO S20Ud UO paskq S| anjeA JXEN juaLind

“poYIaW JoBXa Ue ISN SIAY10 j|e ‘poyawu ajewixoidde ue asn Ajunjew 0} SYIUOW g uey] SSI YIIM SJUBLIISIAY]
‘sadA} |e usamjaq uosuedwod Joj siseq e aptaoad o) Jeak Aep Go¢ B U0 paseq umoys st £funyely o3 piaIA Juljeainbl puog,

'096'866°L  $ 892'C 126 $ 08zC 0004£0T  $ :STV.LOL ANVYD
298285t $ vLLZes'E  $ $82° S9LL $ 21€T 000188t  § abesaAy pue [ejoL pund
290" ry'L S¥85Z zaavalele 620'8Ly'L ovee 00Z'L Z20T/ELIN0 ZLOZIELZ0  SIET 000°sty'L asn YN UBOT BWOH [esapad
000°LL 85€9C 16SEO9ELE  6/L'/9 0gs'L LE0'L 1202/82/20 9102/82/.0  0ES'L 000 gsn BN [euoneN jeJapad
$68'9¢ 71592 £3d96/Z16 958'9E 7651 99 8102/90/2} 8L0Z/SONO VST 0008 asn Anseai) '§N
9A19S9Y JAS JgoQ "oed "ded
ssy'orr § ovz'oLy  $ [\]k44 £z $ 0912 ooo‘osr  $ abesaAY pue fejoL pund
8579y 19992 VGHE9BEELE OYTOLY aze €zl 6102/10/20 gL0z/1€/80  09LT 000'08% Lasn JW UBOT BWOH |EJ0po4
anjep Builueg # dISND  anjeAIauen PISIA Runjen ajeq ajeq ojey anjep pajels ueipojsny / 8d3snIL 1enss)
Amnb3 oysheq  Auneny paseyaind aseyaind sasaqu)
puog
821A188 100 samioed ded
8102/0€/60

| obed

uoday sJalnseal]

Aouaby 1omod eluiojijed UIoyHUoN

AINISY UIMOL ¥ HEOOYD NEIHIZIN

VdON



we £2:80

8L0z/c0/0L

L6E'rLL 8€992 VGaAVPeEELE YOLVLL 960'C €6 6L0Z/20/L0  GBB'ELL 8LOZ/LE/LO 00T 000'GLL 1asn g Ue0T SWOH [BI9pad
o318 1920 88102 OIPAH

z¢8'650C 0565502 $ (%3 £6 08z'vs0C  $ 180T 000°120'T abesaAy pue [ejo) puny
81£'620'L 65992 VeaVPEEELE 61°220°L oLz €6 6L02/Z0/L0  vZ¥'LZ0't 8L0Z/LELO  SZL'T 000°6£0'L 14sn g UB0T BUWOH (eJepad
715°020°L 1€992 vSaVPSEELE  LLY'8Z0'L 9602 €6 6102/20/L0  958'920'L 8LOZ/LE/O 0502 000'9£0°L 1asn eg UesT SWIOH [elepa4
921AI88 1920 V8102 04pAH

09g's8s’s  § £08'825'c  $ veLz €6 968's.5't  $ 1802 000'509°c 3beIaAY pUE |BJO1 puny
801°26L't 85992 VGAVYEEELE §06'882'L 01T €6 610Z/70/L0  018'882°4 8L0Z/LERD  STLT 000°208'L 18sn eg U207 SWOH |esepad
26r'eBL'L 9€992 VGEVPBEELE 868'68L'L 960C €6 6L0Z/20/L0  980'/82'4 SLOZ/LE/LO 0502 000°€08°} 18sn g UBOT SWOH [BJ3p24
921A198 193 0IpAH

v08'296's  $ Lzs'ese’s  $ oLzl 16 sbl'686'c  $ G6¢'L 000'996'c sbesany pue jejol pund
LOY'8EV'T 00€92 LOAL3EELE  8G6'8TY'T 090°L €Ll 6L0Z/22N0  L0S'0SY'T 9L02/20/20  0ST'L 000'2£7'2 asn Wpasd wie [elepad
£0v'62s 'L 68192 ¥LAODGELE £96°/25°L ost'L 15 8L0Z/LTILL  PYTEES'L vLOZ/ZLEL  SZIL 000625} asn By [euoneN (esepad
saiyoed feniuj oJpAH

sov'zov'LL $ ezg'cLZ’ll $ €622 veL Lo'vee’ll  $ [R7%4 Zr8°s05°LL abelaay pue [ejo), pung
000°000'} 05992 LANSOVELE  09L'€66 A LeL'L £20Z/82/90  000°000'L 8L02/80/80  0ST'€ 000°000'} 208n JN UBOT BWOH [EJ8pa4
L92'syL'L 6Y992 SrIAV0ELE 6G9'EEL’t wrLe oLt £20ZIELI0  ELL'SGHL'L 8L02/80/80  0S0°€ 000°054°} 208N eg Ueo SuWoH [essped
zLE'62S 25902 00309LY6L  LZ5'12S G86'C £L9'L £Z0Z/10/S0 099825 81L02/60/80  00LZ 000055 o08n 09 safjowled-sieblod
rr8's8r 0z992 IMEZLELLE  GZLZ8Y z8L'e £p9'L £20Z/L0/0  006'vaY 8L0Z/EL0 005 000005 208N JINBS [92Jed PaUUN
£05'96% v¥Goz YMEEZ0/60 018'68Y 126 o'l £Z0Z/LO/E0  0L0'96Y 8L0Z/PLIE0  008T 000'00$ 208N ‘0D Buisog
0.6'68v 5¥59T SUEAX68E8Y OVZ'G8Y 1zLe 865'L £202/5L20  Gil'esy 8L0Z/VLIED  SZ9T 000'005 008N ‘diog 8peI0
718'68% 61992 §73196268 0LG'S8Y S12°€ £96'L €Z0Z/LLAG  00L'68Y 8LOZ/EL/II0  00LT 000005 o08n 1pai) J0jolN elokoL
20L'GeY 1¥59C 90v09Z826  §.0'06Y 160°€ GeS'L TT0TIPLICL  OLV'vBY 8L0zvLIEd 0082 000°005 008n U BSIA
661'28% 9r59z Savaosyy. S.5'6LF 150°€ [ Ze0Z/SLIe0  0L2'58Y 8LOZWLIED 08T 000005 008N afiesols atland
orL'ovs 15992 LOHHBSLLE ET6'EPS ;.L'e 192t Z20ZISLIED  LO9'OVS 8L0Z/0L/R0 000 000'055 008N Hueg SN
9zl 16y 12992 LPYOLEZOE Sla'esy 6T zse'L 220Z/90/€0  OSE'06Y 8LOZ/EL/B0  L6ET 000'005 208N 12100100 1O UoXXKT
88e'68Y 81992 SOVNOEELO SSP'68Y rIEE 202t TTOTISLLO  OZr'Esy 8L0Z/ELI90  $29T 000°005 208n iy g Bunjueg youeig
000°0Z€e oresz SHASOOELE 6L1'/GZ'S oset e 6L02/08/ZL  000°0ZE'S 910z/08/90  0S€') 000°02€'€ 208N Bi jeuoneN (esepay
£€0'65 €002 LE00LSAS €£0'65 2000 L ££0'65 €102/10/L0 2000 £€0'65 008n ojileD Jo yueg uolun
608'928'9 92002 8Z00LSAS 608'9/8'9 668'L L 608'0.8'9 €L0Z/L0/L0  668'L 608'9/8'9 Elal wiseAuj Aoueby (B0
anjep Builuedy # JUBUISBAU] dISND  anjep 1en PIRIA Kunmen 2jeq aaud B ajey anjep pajels ueipojsn) | av)sni) Jonss|

Amnbz 0} sheg Auniepy paseyaing aseyaind Jsalayu]
Jpuog
olpAH oA19s9Yy ‘A9 |ende)
8102/0€/60

| abed

poday sJainsea)

Kouaby 1omod eluiojijes UIdyUON

ADINIDY HIMDE VINEOIOYS NUIHIRIN

VdON



we £2:80 8L0z/co/0L

220z/stT/z uo 3\qe|ied asn TS99Z# Ju3WIS3AY)
810¢/8¢/Zt uo 3|qe|jed JWTHY 0599z# JudWISAAU
6T0Z/€T/9 uo 3|qe|jed g1H4 619924 WBUISAAY] d w du n
Apauenb ajqe)je) VAINA 6SE9TH JUSWISIAY| 8L0Z/0C/60 JO SB [ewInOr 193.3S [[BM U3 Wouj S30ud piq 1o S JelS UBIPOISNY /23JSTU L Woly S20Lid UO PISE S| 2NJEA JXNIEI JUBLIND
Apauenb ajqejed YWN4 OVE9TH IUBWIISIAU ‘poyjaut JaeEXS Uk 3sh SIAYI0 [fe ‘poiew ajewijxosdde ue asn Ajunjew o} SYUOW g UBY) SSI) UM SJLDUINSAU|
Apaysenb ayqepjed JWTHL €0E9Z# JUBWIISAAL| ‘sadAy |le usamjaq uosueduwod 10} siseq e apiaod 0} seak Aep Go¢ B UO paseq umoys st Ajunje 0} pIalA Juldjeainb] puog,
clo'ser'ss § '278'0L0%6E ¥20'Z 985 scs‘svres  $ 686'L Zv8'Ls5'6E  $ 'STVLOL ANVHD
zes'29zv  $ e'LeL'y  $ ovee el £55°'992' $ 1882 000'89Z' $ abesany pue [ejo) pund
SLY'L26'S 25852 ZaQv3LElE £91°098°E 0sez 00Z'L TTOTELN0  ZET'9ZB'E ZL0Z/60/Z0  GL€T 000'826'S asn N UBOT BWOH [eiapad
00076 6592 /6SEOYELE  9€L'68 0gs'L 1€0'L 1202/82/0 00076 9L0Z/82120  0ES'L 00076 asn Biw |euoneN (esepa
y66'SYL 6£592 9X€8ZBTLE GIB'EYL 1522 898 1202/6LI20  266'ShL 8102//2/20  0SZT 000°9% | asn Ainsesst 's'n
£Z1°004 vvzez 6253IEELE  820°86 089'L €19 0Z0Z/V0/80  6ZE'00L 5L02/82/80  0SLh 000°00L asn WpaID wied jeseped
v¥Sa 10z 04pAH
[ $ [ $ I [} $ - o $ sbesony pue [ejol pund
0 1906/ L906LSAS O ov00 ! 0 £L0Z/10/20  O¥00 0 asn ueg sn
29uenss| J0 3509 Z10Z 04pAH
000005t § osv'lev’L  $ osi'L 95 000005t $ 054l 000°00s't  § abeiaAy pue [ejol pund
000'005'L £0€9C OANBOVELE  OGH'L6V'L oSkl el 8102/9z/LL 000005t 9102/92/70  0SLL 000°005"} 208N W\ UBOT BWIOH [RsepaS
0 91004 9L00LSAS 0 2000 L 0 €L0Z/L0/L0 2000 [} oo8n ojljeD Jo sueg uowun
0 £000. 0000/SAS 0 12€0 | 0 €L0Z/L0/L0 L0 0 AV wysanu| kousBy [e207
aMesay |e19adsg olpAH
565069 v00'0,9  § 06L'L £PoL 165169 $ G/8'L 000689  $ abeJaay pue jejo) puny
§65'069 Zev9zT SVEEOYELE ¥00'0LO 06L'L £vo'l 1202/60/80  L6E'L69 1028270 S/87L 000'689 asn WA UBOT BUIOH [B18p34
JuUN029Y 9)eqoy vz 10Z 04PAH
8z9'vel's § 850°0L9's  § 9.9k 099 89s‘ovL's § 454" 000°51L'S  § abelany pue Jejo) pund
682'7ES'S €292 62633€EIE  TGL'ITY'S 089'L €19 0Z0Z/P0/80  L8L'OVS'S SL0Z/82/I80  0SL'L 000'825°S asn Wpa1D wie jesopsd
L96'2€EL 1592 9OENXEELE G59'OEL oob'L €L 6102/L0/20  109'TyL /102/82/L0 Sl 000'GEL asn ©g UB0T SWOH [eJepad
8/8'LS /€592 SSMBZEZIE  LS9'LS sve'L T 610Z/0£/90  08LLS 8L02//2/20  ST9'L 000'2S asn funseas] s
V010Z AISaY 92IA19G 1G9Q 04pAH
ai2'96c $ olz'esz  § se1' €6 sg0‘osz  § 680 000’8z $ abeJaAy pue [ejo) punj
sze'zzL 09992 VGaVPEEELE  90L'Z2h 0L €6 6102/20/L0 001221 8L0Z/LE/B0 2L 00062} 18sn g UB0T SWOH |eJepas
anjep buikuey # JUBLLISAAU| dISND  anjeA IMEN PIBIA Aumen ajeq 29lid ejeq ajey anjep pajeis ueipojsng j aa)jsniy 1anss|
Ainbg o} skeq Kuney paseyaing aseyaing ysasauy
puog

291AI3S 1980 €810Z 04PAH
8102/0£/60

Joday sJainseal <n— U z .

Aouoeby Jemod ejuiojijed ulayLoN
z obed



we $Z:80 810Z/£0/0L

loz'ee $ gz9'0L $ 0802 z9 sL9'69¢  § 8€0C oo0'ze  § abesaay pue [ejo) pung
6LL'2¥C £v99Z €/MGEEELE  §SO'LVT 20T €9 8LOZIEOZL  ZST'OVE 8LOZ/LEILO Q€0 000'8vZ 1asn g UBO BWOH [BI9pe4
z8g'eeL 99992 970962216  895'E€TL v60C 66 8L0Z/6T/LL  £9E'EZL 8L0Z/LERD S5O 000'¥ZL 188N Ainseall "s'n
pund sa v.102 L#anss| 937

gsg'o6e’l  $ 9cp'oee’L  $ [AYN% 14 £85'e6e’L ¢ 089'L [FO T A abelaAy pue [ejo) pung
905669 Zv992 £/UG8EELE  GTE'669 20T €9 8L0z/E0/TL  TS0'269 8LOZ/LEILO 080T 000202 18sn eg ueo"] SlWoH |eJepad
Lza'sve 69992 97096216 28L'SYE Y60z 66 8L0Z/6T/LL  TOZT'8YE 8L0Z/LELO  S50°T 000'05¢ 18sn Kinseast 'sN
6ze'are TLOBL ZLOBLSAS 6ZE'8KE 0090 L 62€'8re €L0Z/L0/0 0090 62e'8ve asn jsnuL yueg sn
pund €A 80102 ¢# @nss| 931

86v'v0L'L  § esT'voLL  $ zoz'L sy 9600, $ LIk sve's0L’t  § abesay pue jejo) pung
£20'5€8 1¥992 £/4G8ECLE  208'VE8 20T €9 81L02/€0/CL  £60'CE8 8LOZNE/LO 080T 000'8€8 18asn eg UeoT WOoH [esepa4
zes'vey #9992 9T096.2L6  £8Y'VEY v60C 65 gL0z/6Z/LL  09L'eer 8L0Z/LE/80  §S0°T 000'9ey 18sn Ainseait ‘SN
£V6'vEY 1LL06L LLOBLSAS E€v6'vEY 0090 3 £V6'VEY €102/L0/0  009°0 £Y6'vEY asn IsruL jued sn
pund Sa v0L0Z Z# @nss| 031

265906 $ v0'906c  $ (AN 14 8cL'006'c  $ 69'L vLL'PLET  $ abelaAy pue [ej0L pund
eL8'VSY'L 0v99z €LUGEELE  LEV'WSY'L z/0e €9 810Z/E0/ZL  BOL'6VY'L gLOZ/LE/L0 080T 000°09%°t Lasn Bg UBGT] SWOH (elopad
Sv5'9zL £9992 91096.2L6 €9¥'9Z.L 60 65 glLozieE/LL  GSTSTL 8102/1€/80  §S0°T 000'622 1asn Ainseast 's'n
vLL'522 %0062 Y00BLSAS ¥LL'STL 0090 L viL'seL €L0Z/L0/0 0090 vLL'SCL asn 1snJL jued SN
pung S@ 80102 L# onss| 931

ebz'soLz  $ ovs'voLz  $ 189'L s 825'669'C  $ 959} 9%6LZLLZ  § abeiaay pue [ejo) puny
G8Y'992't 6992 €LMGBEELE  ZGL'0OT'L 202 €9 8L0Z/E0/CY  LPO'ZIT'L 8LOZ/LEIL0  0E0T 000'L22'L 188N eg Ueo] 8WOH [eispad
895'6LL 29992 910964216  L8Y'6LL v60'C 65 sLoz/eZ/LL  LBT'8LL 8LOZ/LEGD  SS0T 000222 18sn Aunseasl ‘SN
96L'64L £006. €006/SAS 961612 0090 L 96L'6LL €1L02/L0/0 0090 961'6LL asn IsnL ued sn
pund sa v0LOZ i#onss] 931

8982, $ 29872 $ 668'L L 29822 $ 668'L 898°7L $ abesaAy pue [ejo) pund
89821 9v00.L OV00.SAS 898'CL 668} L 898'C/ €L02/10/0  668'L 898'CL wisenu} fousby 8007
anjep Buifued #uausaAu| dISND  anjeA el PIBIA KAunjew aea 201d ajeq ajey antep pajels ueipoISN) / d3)SNIL Janssj

Anbg o} sAeq fumen paseyoing aseyaing Jsasvu|
«puog
100y uonony OHO 031
8102/0€/60

| abed

uoday sJainsealt
Kouaby Jamod elulogijen uloyLoN

ADNITY $IMOL VIS NUIHLEON

VdDON



we #Z:80 810z/£0/0L

awnAue ajqejjed 8244 LEEITH JuswiIsAAU|
8L0Z/0S/60 1O SE jEUInOf 122.0S HEM a4 woJy sadud pig Jo s 1e)S URIPOISND / 1 wouy sd9ud uo paseq St anjeA JeW Juaund
*poYIBU JOBXD UR ISN SI3YJ0 || ‘poyiau ajewixosdde ue asn Ajunjew 0} SYHUOW 9 URY]} SSI] YIM SJUBWHSIAU]
sadAy jje uosyed 1oy siseq e apiaoid 0} Jeak Aep ggg e uo paseq umoys st Ajsnjely o} piatA Juajeainbg puog,
z62'629'2¢  $ ‘'9ze'veL'ze  § S65°L 609 vigoLe’ze $ 906'L zec'ess'ze  $ :$TV.LOL ANVHO

s20'9LE°LL  $ 229781 § skl zov £8s'cLe L $ [AX-4% e8b's0c’LlL  $ abeIaAy pue jejoL pung
000°000°€ [R7574 ZFNEDYELE  OVL'9Z6'T 00€'L 8€9 02Z0Z/0€/90  000'000°€ 9L0Z/0E/R0  00E'L 000'000°€ ooan BI feuoneN [esapad
00v'viL9'e oy 00rgvoeLe  L6S'6ES'E 0S§'L €19 0202/50/90  2S6'€L9'E LLOZIOE/R0  OVS'L 000'5L9'€ asn e UE0T SWOH (eJspad
981°0v6'2 8¥29Z PYZ09GELE LGP L26'T 0z’ i 610¢/61/20 ThL'866'e §102/82/80 G/8'L 000'€€6'C o08an Byn [euopeN eJepay
660'Ly L¥002 LP00LSAS 680°LF 2000 L 660°LY €L0Z/8LIL0 2000 660'LY 208N ojifeD Jo ueg uown
06E'PLLL 2¥002 LVO0LSAS 06E'PLLL 6681 L 0BE'vLL Y €L02/L0/20 6681 06EVPLL L ugsenuj Aousby (€00
OAI9SOY IN '? O 231

oLy's60'L  § o9v'sso’t  $ vee'L ¥9Z togoct’t $ il 180'€20't  $ abesoAy pue [ejol pung
€8 I¥0'L 95¥92 99ENXEELE 196'/€0'L oor'L €le 6102/10/20 802'280°L 2102182110 GLEY 000'6Z20'L asn eg ueoT SWoH [esepag
or8've GEGOT 8dd96/2L6 218'%C 8L Tzl 6LOZ/LENO  2LS'PT 8L02//2/E0 €28’ 000'sT asn Ansesa1] ‘SN
180'cg £L062 €106/SAS 180'€Z 009°0 L 180'€Z €LOZ/L0/Z0 0090 1L80'€Z asn Isnil sueg Sn
Sgve dSa 80102 2# enss| 931

9sv8Tc  $ 69l'8c2c ¢ 0gs°L 09 ost'eze’z  $ S0EE §99'6L2C  § abeiaAy pue Jejor pund
980'0L2'C S5¥9Z 8€30LEELE  LBE'VOL'T ovsL 0z9 02021210 9vl'sseT 21028210 GLE€ 000'G¥L'2 asn g ugoT BWOH [eioped
G9°L€ PES9T 8dd96/2L6 €LL'L€ 8L zzL 6LOZ/LEND  6VE'LE 8L02/L2/20  €Z8'L 000'8€ asn finseail 's'n
599'9e 9006/ 9006.SAS §99'9E 0090 L G99'9¢ €102/L0/0 0090 §99'9€ asn Isru} sued SN
Asay sqng savd 90102 L#ss| 031

182'9z8'8  $ 9v6'00s'e  $ L1 zeLl ve'irs's  § 098} p9'ell'8  $ abesaay pue [ejo) pungd
2021261y £9Y9Z 690B/EELE TIE'086'E 09L'L 8ve'L ZZ0Z/0L/I90  90E'89L’y L102/82/180  SZTL'T 000'00L 'y asn eg U0 SUIOH feiepad
€29'Y1 121254 803v3LELE 8pl'evl 6691 ov0'L 120Z/ZL/80 8yg'ovl 2102/82/1L0 T4 Q000514 asn JN Ue0T SUIOH |eJepay
000°09€'Y 18£92 1Z893EELE  09L'LIE'Y 659'L 196 120T/5T/S0  000'09E'Y 9L02/80/00  099'L 000'09€' asn HpasD wied |essped
008'v8 86592 GSM8Z8ZLE  BZP'Y8 Sve'L zie 6L0T/0S/90  LYO'V8 8102/Leiz0  GZI'L 000°'s8 asn Ainseast 's'N
179'L8 5006. GOOBLSAS 2¥9'L8 009°0 L v9'L8 €L02/L0/0 0090 1r9'L8 asn 18nJ1 jueg SN
pund ¥sa 010z L# 9nss| 037
anjeA bujfued # JuBWISIAU| disnD  anjep e P1AIA Aunep ajeq 3doUd ajeq ajey anjeA pajels uejpoisny f 39isniL Jonssy

Anb3 0} sheq funyen paseyaing aseyaing jsasayu|
«puog

Z abeg

pung ¥sa 0102 L# @nss| 931
8102/0¢/60
RINISY Y300« ¥ SE030 YD NHIHEIN

Hoday s Jainseal] <ﬂ— UZ

Aouoby Jamod elulojijed uIoyLoN



AN D RRORY

/ NORTHERN CALIFDRNIA POWER AGENCY

Proposed 2019 Committee Meeting Calendar

ltem #12

LEC PPC
Facilities/ Committee Finance o Executive
Pooling 10:00 am o e h (EREY ¥Legal L&R Affairs PR **Commission
Committees at e Directors | committee | Committee oy 9:30 am
9:00 am Lodi Energy ] 00jan »
Center
January 17 January 17
ek ko
January 3 January 7 January 10 Sacramento Sacramento
February 6 February 11 February 12 February 14 February 20 February 21 February 21
March 6 March 11 March 14/15 March 28 March 28
Healdsburg
April 3 April 8 April 11 April 25 April 25
May 22 May 23 May 23
May 1 May 6 May 7 May 9 Lodi Lodi Lodi
June 5 June 10 June 13 June 27 June 27
July 25 July 25
July 3 July 8 July 11 Murphys Murphys
August 7 August 12 August 13 August 15 August 28 August 29 August 29
***September ***September
September 4 | September9 September 12 | September 25 | September 25 27 27
Olympic Valley Olympic Valley
October 2 October 7 October 8 October 10 October 24 October 24
No No
November 6 November 4 November 12 | November 14 November November
Meeting Meeting
December 4 December 9 December 12 December 4 December 5 December 5

*Legal Committee meets once a year during NCPA’s Annual Conference — Special Committee meetings may be held as required.

**Commission Packet mailed the Thursday or Friday prior to the meeting date.

Unless noted otherwise, Commission and Executive meetings will be heid at NCPA’s Roseville office.

***The September 27 Commission meeting will be held on a Friday.

**** The January 3 Facilities Committee meeting will be held on Thursday due to the New Year’s Holiday.
Commission meetings highlighted in blue will be posted as an “optional” conference call meeting.

Save the Dates:
NCPA 101 Presentation: January 15, 2019, The Sawyer Hotel, Sacramento
NCPA Strategic Issues Conference: January 16-17, 2019, The Sawyer Hotel, Sacramento
Capitol Day: January 28, 2019
NCPA/NWPPA Federal Policy Conference: April 28 — May 2, 2019, Washington, D.C.
NCPA Annual Conference: September 25-27, 2019, Resort at Squaw Creek, Olympic Valley

10/25/2018




ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

October 17, 2018
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 25, 2018

SUBJECT: Acceptance of the Annual Financial Statements and Associated Audit Report and
Letters for the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Monty Hanks (4 METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant General
Manager/CFO N/A

Division: Administrative Services

Department: Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members X Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San F’a""i;‘;:i':% A2 O CityofPaloAlto O  Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD [J

O O O

City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara Other

If other, please specify

SR: 210:18



Acceptance of the Annual Financial Statements and Associated Audit Report and Letters
October 17, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA staff and the Finance Committee recommend that the Commission accept and file
the Annual Financial Statements and Associated Audit Report and Letters for the years
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

BACKGROUND:

On October 9, 2018, the Finance Committee held a meeting to review the Northern California
Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations (NCPA) Financial Statements and
Associated Audit Report and Letters for the years June 30, 2018 and 2017. The audit partner
from the Agency’s audit firm, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, reviewed the highlights of the
financial statements and answered questions from the Committee. The financial report was
given an unmodified or “clean” opinion by the auditors. No evidence of fraud or illegal acts were
noted in the course of the audit. In addition, the auditors presented a Power Point (copy is
attached) which includes required communications by the auditor. Additional auditor reports
include an internal control letter, negative assurance letters for bond indentures and the Agency
investment policy. Copies of these letters are attached to this report. Nothing of significance
was noted in any of the letters.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This financial report for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, which has no direct budget
impact to the agency, but merely reports on the fiscal impacts for the last fiscal year.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Finance Committee on October 9 and was
recommended for Commission approval by a unanimous vote.

Respectfully submitted,

m%\\*/\

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:
- Financial Statements for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
- Baker Tilly correspondence dated October 9, 2018
o Required communications by the Auditor to those charged with governance
o Compliance with Bond Indentures Letter
o Compliance with Investment Policy Letter
- PowerPoint presented to Finance Committee by auditors on October 9, 2018

SR: 210:18



]f A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

"NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

AND

ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Reports on Audit of Combined Financial Statements
and
Supplementary Information

For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Reports on Audit of Combined Financial Statements

Table of Contents

For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

Page
Independent Auditors’ Report..............ccccooiiiiininininiie e
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)...........c..cccocooiiiiniincinininvnnnnen. 3
Combined Financial Statements:
Combined Statements of Net POSItION .......ceceeveeeecervcniieniiiincicnee e 13
Combined Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 15
Combined Statements of Cash FIoW.........c.cccoeveceveiinnnniiiiiiccececeenn 16
Notes to Combined Financial Statements..........c.cccceevieniirinrerecneinenresesenerienenseesesnenns 18
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited):
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios Last 10
MeaSuremMeENt YEATS .....ccocervuiiiuiiiiiniiinniiienieiie e ssnessrecssnessitssseesessessnssssassnns 54
Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions Last 10 Fiscal Years........c.cccccecvvveeveerennen. 55
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios Last 10
Measurement YEAIS .......ccccvviiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiniecir e s eas s saesessessessssesssesans 56
Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions Last 10 Fiscal Years ..........ccccccevuervenvenennn. 57
June 30, 2017 GASB 45 Information ........cccccoccevveeecveenveirnieniiesseesiecceesneesneeseennes 58
Supplemental Information — For Purposes of Additional Analysis:
Combining Statement of Net Position FY 2018 .......ccccooviiiiiiiniiniinceeenee 59
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position FY
2018ttt ettt ae bt E e bt et et tesaeaann 61
Combining Statement of Cash Flow FY 2018........ccccooniiiininininiiinnineneicrnens 62
Combining Statement of Net Position FY 2017 .....cccocoviviiiinininiiinicnnneceerenne. 64
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position FY
2017 ettt et b e eb e et e st et e s b et e e ek eneerenen 66
Combining Statement of Cash FIow FY 2017 ....cccoovveiviveiiiniinieniincntiineeieeceeneenens 67

Other Information (Unaudited):

Generation Entitlement SHArES .....cooovvvverveeiiiiiiieeeieeee e ceeerere e svereeseseeseeeeeens



A

-5

BAKER TILLY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations
Roseville, California

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of the Northern California Power Agency
and Associated Power Corporations (the “Agency”), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the combined basic financial
statements of the Agency as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 1131.2, State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements
for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the combined financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
combined financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Agency’s
preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the combined financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
combined financial position of the Agency as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the respective changes in
combined financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

an independent member of
BAKER TILLY Page 1

INTERNATIONAL



Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note B, the Agency adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions effective, July 1, 2017. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents be presented
to supplement the combined basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the combined
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the combined basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the combined basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the combined basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Agency’s combined basic financial statements as a whole. The combining statements of net
position, combining statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, combining statements of
cash flows (combining financial statements) as listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the combined basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the combined basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the combined basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the combined basic financial statements or to the combined basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining financial statements are fairly stated in
all material respects, in relation to the combining basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Our audits was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements that
collectively comprise the Agency’s combined basic financial statements. The schedule of generation entitlement
shares is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the combined basic
financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the combined basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

Gk Telly Yoichonsfy nosty -4

Madison, Wisconsin
October 9, 2018

Page 2



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The management of Northern California Power Agency (the Agency or NCPA) offers the following narrative
discussion and analysis of its financial performance for the years ended June 30,2018 and 2017. This discussion
should be read in conjunction with the Agency’s combined financial statements and accompanying notes, which
follow this section.

BACKGROUND

The Northern California Power Agency is a joint powers agency formed by member public entities under the
laws of the State of California to provide cost effective wholesale power, energy-related services, and advocacy
on behalf of public power consumers. The Agency’s purposes are for purchasing, generating, transmitting, and
selling electrical energy and for providing other related services to its members and customers as each may
require. The Agency provides a portion of certain of its members’ power needs and certain of its members also
self-provide and/or purchase power and transmission from other public and private sources.

NCPA is governed by a Commission comprised of one representative for each member. The Commission is
responsible for the general management of the affairs, property, and business of the Agency. Under the direction
of the General Manager, the staff of the Agency is responsible for providing various administrative, operating
and planning services for the Agency.

The Agency's project construction and development programs have been individually financed by project
revenue bonds that are collateralized by the Agency's assignment of all payments, revenues, and proceeds
associated with its interest in each project. Each of the Agency's members may choose which projects it wishes
to participate in, and is known as a "project participant" for each such project. Each project participant has
agreed to pay its proportionate share of debt service and other costs of the related project, notwithstanding the
suspension, interruption, interference, or reduction or curtailment of output from the project for any reason (that
is, the take-or-pay member agreements). Certain of the revenue bonds are additionally supported by municipal
bond insurance credit enhancements.

Power sales by the Agency to its members for their resale include both sales of power to project participants
generated by operating plants and power purchased from outside sources. Collections for power sales are
designed to recover costs that include budgeted annual operating costs and debt service. Additional amounts
for operating reserves or cost stabilization may be included in collections under the terms of bond indentures.
The Agency’s collections for electric service are not subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the California Public
Utilities Commission (CPUC) or the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). Rather, the Agency’s
collections are established annually in connection with its budget, which is approved by its governing
Commission.

Various legal and tax considerations caused the Agency to provide that separate not-for-profit corporations
should be delegated by the Agency to own the geothermal electrical generating projects undertaken by the
Agency ("the Associated Power Corporations”). The Associated Power Corporations, consisting of Northern
California Municipal Power Corporation Nos. Two and Three, have delegated to the Agency the authority to
construct, operate, and manage their respective geothermal plants and related assets. The Agency, in return for
financing the costs of acquisition and construction, acquires all the capacity and energy generated by the plants.

Because the Agency is a separate, special-purpose governmental entity that serves its participating members,
who are also the Agency’s principal customers, the net results of operations flow through to its participating
members as either net revenues or net expenses.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

FINANCIAL REPORTING

For accounting purposes, the Agency is a special-purpose governmental entity that is engaged in a business-
type activity, principally as a supplier of wholesale electricity and transmission to its member participants. As
such, the Agency’s financial statements are presented as an enterprise type fund.

The records of the Agency and the Associated Power Corporations are maintained substantially in accordance
with the FERC Uniform System of Accounts. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America are applied by the Agency in conformance with pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). The combined financial statements encompass the Agency and Associated Power
Corporations on an accrual accounting basis. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated from the combined amounts reported.

In accordance with GASB Statement of Government Accounting Standards No. 62, Codification of Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund
Accounting (GASB No. 62), the Agency has recorded as regulatory assets and liabilities certain items of expense
and revenue that otherwise would have been charged to operations as such items will be recovered in future
years’ operations. The Agency expects to recover these items in collections over the term of the related debt
obligations it has issued or when the obligation is paid.

In accordance with GASB Statement of Government Accounting Standards No. 72, Fair Value Measurement
and Application, the Agency has established standards for fair value measurements of assets and liabilities. The
definition of fair value is the price in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

In accordance with GASB Statement of Government Accounting Standards No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB), the Agency reports a liability on the face
of the financial statements, including deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows. The standard also
requires more extensive note disclosures and required supplementary information related to our OPEB
liabilities.

The Agency has elected to adopt GASB Statement of Government Accounting Standards No. 88, Certain
Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements early. In accordance with this
standard, the Agency added additional note disclosures for debt, including direct borrowings and direct
placements.

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION, COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION, AND COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH
FLOWS

The combined statements of net position includes the Agency’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, and net position using the accrual method of accounting, as well as information
about which assets can be used for general purposes and which assets are restricted as a result of bond covenants
and other commitments. The combined statement of net position provides information about the nature and
amount of resources and obligations at a specific point in time. The combined statements of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position report all the revenues and expenses during the time periods indicated. The
combined statements of cash flows report the cash provided and used by operating activities, as well as other
cash sources such as investment income and debt financing, and other cash uses, such as payments for debt
service and capital additions.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following is a summary of the Agency’s combined financial position and results of operations for the years
ended June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016.

June 30,
Cogd.ensed Statement of Net (in thousands)
Position
2018 2017 2016
Assets
Current assets $ 89,908 $ 88,453 $ 83,366
Restricted assets 219,905 221,783 211,759
Electric plant, net 531,337 559,841 588,870
Other assets 231,430 236,269 249,574
Total Assets 1,072,580 1,106,346 1,133,569
Deferred outflows of resources 61,076 61,612 63,441
$ 1,133,656 $ 1,167,958 $ 1,197,010
Liabilities and Net Position
Long-term debt, net $ 694,597 $ 737,022 $ 776,982
Current liabilities 95,389 101,550 91,653
Non-current liabilities 231,517 218,427 214,612
Total Liabilities 1,021,503 1,056,999 1,083,247
Deferred inflows of resources 74,085 76,899 85,800
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets (63,119) (62,191) (62,193)
Restricted 60,318 58,269 66,282
Unrestricted 40,869 37,982 23,874
$ 1,133,656 $ 1,167,958 $ 1,197,010
Years Ended June 30,
Condensed Statements of Revenues, (in thousands)
Expenses and Changes in Net
Position & 2018 2017 2016
Operating revenues * $ 560,883 $ 466,738 $ 467,102
Operating expenses (509,190) (418,307) (421,508)
Net operating revenues 51,693 48,431 45,594
Other expenses (25,559) (21,561) (38,860)
Future refundable costs (11,812) (13,274) (140)
Refunds to participants (10,314) (7,499) (8,622)
Change in net position 4,008 6,097 (2,028)
Net position, beginning of year 34,060 27,963 29,991
Net position, end of year $ 38,068 $ 34,060 $ 27,963

* A reclassification of $14,457,000 was made for FY 2016 between Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses for
comparability purpose.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Current Assets
2018 Compared to 2017 - Current assets increased $1.5 million or 1.6% from the prior year, primarily due to
timing of collections and payments of transmission costs and energy sales and purchases.

2017 Compared to 2016 - Current assets increased $5.1 million or 6.1% from the prior year, primarily due to
higher energy sales during May and June. The higher energy sales resulted from increased hydroelectric
generation as a result of a significant snowpack and heavy rainfall during the winter months.

Restricted Assets
2018 Compared to 2017 - Restricted assets decreased $1.9 million or 0.8% from the prior year. This is primarily
due to decreased investment mark to market adjustment as a result of higher interest rate compared to prior year.

2017 Compared to 2016 - Restricted assets increased $10.0 million or 4.7% from the prior year. This is
primarily a result of net increase in participants’ General Operating Reserves of $4.7 million and collections of
budgeted reserves and deposits of $5.3 million.

Electric Plant, net

2018 Compared to 2017 - The Agency has invested approximately $531.3 million in plant assets and
construction work in progress, net of accumulated depreciation, at June 30, 2018. Net utility plant comprises
approximately 46.9% of the Agency’s assets. The $28.5 million or 5.1% decrease from the prior year consists
of $30.9 million in depreciation, offset by net capital expenditures of $2.4 million. For additional detail, refer
to Note B — Significant Accounting Policies.

2017 Compared to 2016 - The Agency has invested approximately $559.8 million in plant assets and
construction work in progress, net of accumulated depreciation, at June 30, 2017. Net utility plant comprises
approximately 47.9% of the Agency’s assets. The $29.1 million or 4.9% decrease from the prior year consists
of $30.7 million in depreciation, offset by net capital expenditures of $0.1 million. For additional detail, refer
to Note B — Significant Accounting Policies.

Deferred Outflows

2018 Compared to 2017 - Total deferred outflows of resources decreased $0.5 million or 0.8% due to the
scheduled amortization of excess of cost on refunding of debt of $6.2 million offset by increase of deferred
pension and OPEB contributions of $5.7 million.

2017 Compared to 2016 - Total deferred outflows of resources decreased $1.8 million or 2.9% due to the
scheduled amortization of excess of cost on refunding of debt of $6.2 million offset by increase of deferred
pension contribution of $4.4 million.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

LIABILITIES

Long-Term Debt, net
2018 Compared to 2017 - Long-term debt, net decreased $42.4 million or 5.8% in 2018 as a result of scheduled

principal payments of $39.8 million, net premium amortization of $2.3 million, and a decrease for the net
transfer of the current portion of long-term debt of $2.8 million offset by a net increase of $2.5 million related
to two refunding activities: 1) Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds 2018 Refunding Series A and
B that refunded the Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds 2008 Refunding Series C, and 2) Lodi
Energy Center Revenue Refunding Bonds, Issue One, 2017 Series A that partially refunded the Lodi Energy
Center Revenue Bonds, Issue One, 2010 Series A debt. For additional detail, refer to Note E — Projects and
Related Financing.

2017 Compared to 2016 - Long-term debt, net decreased $40.0 million or 5.1% in 2017 as a result of scheduled
principal payments of $37.2 million, net premium amortization of $2.3 million, and a decrease for the net
transfer of the current portion of long-term debt of $2.2 million offset by a net increase of $1.7 million related
to the Geothermal Project 3 Revenue Refunding Bonds 2016 Series A that partially refunded the Geothermal
Project 3 Revenue Bonds 2009 Series A debt. For additional detail, refer to Note E — Projects and Related
Financing.

The following table shows the Agency’s scheduled annual debt service principal payments through FY 2041 as
of June 30, 2018:

$60,000

$50,000

$40,000

$30,000 +

Thousands

$20,000

$10,000 -+

M Geothermal # Hydroelectric " Capital Facilities ™ Lodi Energy Center



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Current Liabilities

2018 Compared to 2017 - Current liabilities decreased by $6.2 million or 6.1% in 2018. This is primarily due
to decreases in accounts payable of $8.4 million and decreases in accrued interest payable of $1.9 million offset
by increases in operating reserves of $1.3 million and increases in current portion of long-term debt of $2.8
million.

2017 Compared to 2016 - Current liabilities increased by $9.9 million or 10.8% in 2017. This is primarily due
to increases in accounts payable of $6.0 million, increases in operating reserves of $2.5 million and increases in
current portion of long-term debt of $2.2 million offset by decreases in accrued interest of $0.8 million.

Other Non-Current Liabilities

2018 Compared to 2017 - Non-current liabilities increased by a net of $13.1 million or 6.0% in 2018. This was
primarily due to increased net pension and OPEB liability of $11.4 million and increased operating reserves of
$5.7 million for budget collections offset by decreased interest rate swap liability of $4.0 million.

2017 Compared to 2016 - Non-current liabilities increased by a net of $3.8 million or 1.8% in 2017. This was
primarily due to increased net pension liability of $6.8 million and increased operating reserves of $4.1 million
for budget collections offset by decreased interest rate swap liability of $7.1 million.

Deferred Inflows

2018 Compared to 2017 — Total deferred inflows of resources decreased $2.8 million or 3.7% due to deferral of
certain revenues related to the amortization of construction advances and prepaids totaling $1.5 million and net
pension and OPEB expense amortization of $1.3 million.

2017 Compared to 2016 — Total deferred inflows of resources decreased $8.9 million or 10.4% due to the
recognition of PG&E-CPUC gas pipeline settlement of $4.3 million, deferral of certain revenues related to the
inventory and prepaids totaling $2.5 million and net pension expense amortization of $2.1 million.

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The Agency is intended to operate on a not-for-profit basis. Therefore, net position primarily represents
differences between total revenues collected, based on estimated operating expenses and debt service, and the
total actual expenses incurred. In subsequent periods of operation, excess collections (net of encumbrances)
may be refunded to participants or appropriated for other uses at the discretion of the Agency's governing Board
of Commissioners. In the event the Agency incurs a net expense at year-end, the balance would be subject to
recovery from participants under the terms of the related participating member agreements. See Notes A, B and
E to the Combined Financial Statements.

Operating Revenues
Operating revenues consist of Participants Revenue, California Independent System Operator (CAISO) Energy
Sales and Ancillary Services (A/S) Revenues and Other Revenues.

2018 Compared to 2017 - Operating revenues for fiscal year 2018 were approximately $94.1 million or 20.2%
higher than in the prior fiscal year. This was the net result of the following: (1) higher LEC generation of
1,075,084 MWh versus 299,107 MWh in the prior year, and (2) higher collections for transmission costs due to
increased generation.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

2017 Compared to 2016 - Operating revenues for fiscal year 2017 were approximately $.4 million or 0.1%
lower than in the prior fiscal year. This was the net result of the following: (1) lower other third party revenues
of $7.2 million due to reduced generation resulting in decreased energy sales into the CAISO market from
generation plants, and (2) higher operating revenues from Agency participants of $6.8 million due to higher
collections for CAISO costs and energy purchases.

OPERATING REVENUES BY SOURCES

June 30, 2018

[ Particpant Revenue  68%
[l CAISO Energy Sales 24%

= CAISO A/SRevenue 1%
l Other Revenues 7%

June 30, 2017

[} Particpant Revenue 72%
l CAISO Energy Sales 21%

[l CAISO A/SRevenue 1%
[l Other Revenues 6%

June 30, 2016
[ Particpant Revenue  72%
l CAISO Energy Sales 24%

. CAISO A/SRevenue 1%
l Other Revenues 3%

Operating Expenses
2018 Compared to 2017 - Operating expenses were $509.2 million in FY 2018, an increase of $90.9 million

from FY 2017. Purchased power expense was $31.4 million higher in 2018 primarily due to increased energy
purchased to fulfill energy requirements. Operations expense increased $21.6 million primarily due to increased
fuel usage for the LEC (see Operating Revenues). Maintenance expenses were $4.5 million higher than in FY
2017 due to increased plant maintenance costs resulting from increased generation. Additionally, the increase
in transmission costs of $33.7 million was due to increased generation.

2017 Compared to 2016 - Operating expenses were $418.3 million in FY 2017, a decrease of $3.2 million from
FY 2016. Purchased power expense was $10.2 million higher in 2017 mainly due to increased energy purchased
to fulfill energy requirements. Operations expense decreased $16.5 million primarily due to decreased fuel
usage for the LEC. The LEC generated 300.6 MWh in FY 2017 compared to 1,076.9 MWh in FY 2016 due to
economic reasons. Maintenance expenses were $5.7 million lower than in FY 2016 due to decreased plant
maintenance costs. Additionally, the increase in transmission costs of $5.4 million was due to increased CAISO
wheeling access charges during the year.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The following charts compare the components of Operating Expenses in fiscal years ended June 30,2018, 2017,
and 2016:

FY2018 FY2017 FY2016

5%

24% 30%
25%

71%

® Power Supply & Transmisson ® O&M and Depr A&G

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

During 2018, 2017 and 2016 the Agency continued to implement strategies to further improve its competitive
position and financial flexibility. These actions included: (1) monitoring current financial market conditions
for financing or refinancing opportunities; and (2) providing rating agencies annual updates on all projects.

In March 2018, the Agency issued Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds 2018 Refunding Series
A and B ($70,215,000) to refund Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bond 2008 Refunding Series C.
The refunding was completed through the issuance of $70,215,000 fixed rate debt (2018 Series A & B) with a
yield of 2.01% with varying principal maturities ranging from $839,850 to $14,957,250 through July 1, 2024.
The refunding is estimated to have decreased project debt service by an estimated $8.34 million over the next 5
years, which results in an estimated economic gain to the Agency of approximately $7.76 million.

In December 2017, the Agency issued Lodi Energy Center Revenue Refunding Bonds Issue One 2017 Series A
($38,970,000) to refund a portion of Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds Issue One 2010 Series A. The private
placement refunding was completed through the issuance of $38,970,000 fixed rate tax exempt debt (2017 Series
A) with a yield of 2.27% with varying principal maturities ranging from $335,000 to $7,825,000 through June
1,2025. The refunding is estimated to have decreased project debt service by an estimated $2.41 million over
the next 6 years, which results in an estimated economic gain to the Agency of approximately $2.22 million.

In September 2016, the Agency issued Geothermal Project Number 3 Revenue Refunding Bond 2016 Series A
($17,530,000) to refund a portion of Geothermal Project Number 3 Revenue Bonds 2009 Series A. The
refunding was completed through the issuance of $17,530,000 fixed rate tax exempt debt (2016 Series A) with
a yield of 1.67% with varying principal maturities ranging from $265,000 to $3,425,000 through July 1, 2024.
The refunding is estimated to have decreased project debt service by an estimated $1.69 million over the next 8
years, which results in an estimated economic gain to the Agency of approximately $1.03 million.

Each year the Agency has either informal discussions or sometimes formal presentations with each of the credit
rating agencies in order to maintain ongoing communications. Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s, and Fitch
affirmed their current ratings on all projects in February 2018, October 2017, and May of 2018, respectively.

10



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Ratings assigned to the Agency’s outstanding project bonds as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Debt Credit Ratings: Standard & Poor’s Fitch Moody’s
Geothermal A-, stable A+, stable Al, stable
Hydroelectric A+, stable AA-, stable Aa3, stable
Capital Facilities A-, stable Not rated A2, stable
Lodi Energy Center (Issue One) A-, stable A, stable Al, stable
Lodi Energy Center (Issue Two) AAA, stable Not rated Aa2, stable

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

Effective June 2018, the Agency purchased a 20% interest in the not-for-profit corporation Hometown
Connections, Inc. (HCI) for $265,000. HCI is a national service corporation that provides consulting,
management and metering services to public power utilities on a national level. HCI has contracted with the
Agency to provide monthly accounting service. This investment is accounted for using the equity method of
accounting.

SUMMARY

The management of the Agency is responsible for preparing the information in this management’s discussion
and analysis, combined financial statements and notes to the combined financial statements. Financial
statements were prepared according to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and they fairly portray the Agency’s financial position and operating results. The notes to the financial
statements are an integral part of the basic financial statements and provide additional financial information.

11



Agency
Financials

12



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Participants

Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Unused vendor credits
Preliminary survey and investigation costs
Investment in associated company

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

See notes to combined financial statements 13

June 30,
2018 2017
(in thousands)

$ 38,561 $ 45,779

36,963 24,825

950 997

1,797 5,650

319 171

9,746 9,746

1,572 1,285

89,908 88,453

65,435 80,265

153,830 141,042

640 476

219,905 221,783

1,504,621 1,501,733
(973,466) (942,713)

531,155 559,020

182 821

531,337 559,841

231,147 236,245

- 24

18 -

265 -

1,072,580 1,106,346

41,876 48,106

19,200 13,506

61,076 61,612

$ 1,133,656 $ 1,167,958




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Member advances
Operating reserves
Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued interest payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension and OPEB liabilities
Operating reserves and other deposits
Interest rate swap liability
Long-term debt, net
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits
Pension and OPEB deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Other programs
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

See notes to combined financial statements 14

June 30,
2018 2017
(in thousands)
$ 22,020 $ 30,456
1,068 993
21,328 20,024
42,335 39,495
8,638 10,582
95,389 101,550
76,002 64,589
144,406 138,665
11,109 15,173
694,597 737,022
926,114 955,449
1,021,503 1,056,999
70,890 72,439
3,195 4,460
74,085 76,899
(63,119) (62,191)
59,139 57,424
1,179 845
40,869 37,982
38,068 34,060
$ 1,133,656 $ 1,167,958




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES
NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES

Interest expense

Interest income

Other

TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, End of year

See notes to combined financial statements 15

Years Ended June 30,
2018 2017
(in thousands)
$ 381,762 $ 334913
179,121 131,825
560,883 466,738
224,197 192,806
74,190 52,558
137,251 103,544
30,915 30,749
21,497 16,970
21,140 21,680
509,190 418,307
51,693 48,431
(34,728) (34,550)
1,245 60
7,924 12,929
(25,559) (21,561)
(11,812) (13,274)
(10,314) (7,499)
4,008 6,097
34,060 27,963
$ 38,068 $ 34,060




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from participants
Received from others
Payments for employee services
Payments to suppliers for goods and services

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments
Interest received on cash and investments
Purchase of investments

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of electric plant
Interest paid on long-term debt
Principal repayment on long-term debt

Proceeds from bond issues

Payments to refund debt
NET CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Other proceeds
Refunds to participants
NET CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year

End of year

See notes to combined financial statements 16

Years Ended June 30,
2018 2017
(in thousands)
$ 380,335 $ 327,844
180,815 135,318
(38,700) (35,930)
(439,070) (348,243)
83,380 78,989
99,449 113,772
3,246 2,590
(129,244) (105,399)
(26,549) 10,963
2,411) (1,720)
(33,954) (36,390)
(39,830) (37,250)
117,438 15,416
(117,714) (15,705)
(76,471) (75,649)
7,906 12,929
(10,314) (7,499)
(2,408) 5,430
(22,048) 19,733
126,044 106,311
$ 103,996 $ 126,044




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW-Continued

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES TO
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenues
to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation

CASH FLOWS IMPACTED BY CHANGES IN
Accounts receivable
Inventory, prepaid expense, and unused vendor credits
Operating reserves and other deposits
Member advances
Regulatory credits
Accounts payable
Net pension liability and related amounts
NET CASH FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
TO STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

Cash and cash equivalents - current assets

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted assets

End of year

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS:
Future recoverable/(refundable) costs
Amortization
Hydro swap change in fair value
Gain/loss on investments

See notes to combined financial statements 17

Years Ended June 30,
2018 2017
(in thousands)
$ 51,693 48,431
30,915 30,749
82,608 79,180
3,900 (5,462)
(263) (790)
7,045 6,577
75 -
(1,549) (6,762)
(8,436) 5,983
- 263
$ 83,380 78,989
$ 38,561 45,779
65,435 80,265
$ 103,996 126,044
$  (11,812) (13,274)
(6,783) (6,069)
(4,064) 7,089
(664) @)



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

NOTE A -- ORGANIZATION

The Agency Northern California Power Agency (Agency) was formed in 1968 as a joint powers agency of the
State of California. The membership consists of twelve cities with publicly-owned electric utility distribution
systems, one port authority, a transit authority, one public utility district, and one associate member. The Agency
is generally empowered to purchase, generate, transmit, distribute, and sell electrical energy. Members
participate in the projects of the Agency on an elective basis.

Various legal and tax considerations caused the Agency to provide that separate Special District Entities should
be delegated by the Agency to own the geothermal electrical generating projects undertaken by the Agency (“the
Associated Power Corporations™). The Associated Power Corporations, Northern California Municipal Power
Corporations Nos. Two and Three, have delegated to the Agency the authority to construct, operate and manage
their respective geothermal plants and related assets. The Agency, in return for financing the costs of acquisition
and construction, acquires all the capacity and energy generated by the plants. See Note E — Projects and Related
Financing.

The Agency is governed by a Commission comprised of one representative for each member. The Commission
is responsible for the general management of the affairs, property, and business of the Agency. Under the
direction of the General Manager, the staff of the Agency is responsible for providing various administrative,
operating, and planning services for the Agency.

NOTE B -- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting and Principles of Combination For accounting purposes, the Agency is a special-purpose
governmental entity that is engaged in a business-type activity, principally as a supplier of wholesale electricity
and transmission to its member participants. As such, the Agency’s financial statements are presented as an
enterprise type fund.

The records of the Agency and its Associated Power Corporations are maintained substantially in accordance
with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) Uniform System of Accounts. Accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America are applied by the Agency in conformance with
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The combined financial
statements encompass the Agency and Associated Power Corporations on an accrual accounting basis. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated from the combined amounts reported.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include all debt instruments purchased with an original
maturity of 90 days or less, all investments in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and cash maintained
in interest-bearing depository accounts, which are fully insured or collateralized in accordance with state law.
Cash balances may be invested in either overnight repurchase agreements, which are fully collateralized by U.S.
Government Securities, or in money market funds invested in short-term U.S. Treasury Securities. The Agency
commingles operating cash for investment purposes only. Separate detailed accounting records are maintained
for each account's related investments. All cash of the Agency is held by either the Agency’s custodian or its
primary bank and revenue bond trustee.

Custodial credit risk for cash deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the Agency will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. Under California Government Code Section 53651, depending on
specific types of eligible securities, a bank must deposit eligible securities posted as collateral with its Agent
having a fair value of 110% to 150% of the Agency’s cash on deposit. All of the Agency’s deposits are either
insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized with pledged securities held
in the trust department of the financial institutions.

18



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Investments The Agency’s investments are reported at fair value. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are
included in interest income in the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.

Accounts Receivable Accounts Receivable consists primarily of amounts due from participants and other
governmental entities related to sales of energy and transmission. Amounts are deemed to be collectible and as
such, no allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded.

Inventory and Supplies Inventory and supplies consist primarily of spare parts for the maintenance of plant
assets and are stated at average cost.

Restricted Assets Cash and cash equivalents, investments and related accrued interest, which are restricted
under terms of certain agreements, trust indentures or Commission actions limiting the use of such funds, are
included in restricted assets.

Electric Plant Electric plant in service is recorded at historical cost. The cost of additions, renewals and
betterments are capitalized; repairs and minor replacements are charged to operating expenses as incurred. The
original cost of property retired, net of removal and salvage costs, is charged to accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related
assets. The provision for depreciation was approximately 2.0% of the average electric plant in service for the
Agency during both 2018 and 2017. Depreciation is calculated using the following estimated lives:

Generation and Transmission 25 to 42 years
General Plant 5 to 25 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Transportation Equipment 5 years
Computer and Electronic Equipment 5 years

A summary of changes in electric plant for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30,2017 Adjustments  Additions Deletions June 30, 2018
(in thousands)

Structures and Leasehold Improvements $ 319,378 $ - $ 1,356 $ - $ 320,734
Reservoirs, Dams and Waterways 249,338 - - - 249,338
Equipment 758,026 - 1,400 (162) 759,264
Furniture and Fixtures 3,046 - 294 - 3,340
1,329,788 - 3,050 (162) 1,332,676

Accumulated Depreciation (942,713) - (30,915) 162 (973,466)
387,075 - (27,865) - 359,210
Construction Work-In-Progress 821 - 75 (714) 182
Land and Land Rights 171,945 - - - 171,945
Electric Plant, Net $ 559,841 $ - $(27,790) $ (7149) $ 531,337

19



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

A summary of changes in electric plant for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30,2016 Adjustments Additions Deletions  June 30, 2017
(in thousands)

Structures and Leasehold Improvements $ 319,127  § 60 §$ 203 $ (12) $ 319,378
Reservoirs, Dams and Waterways 249,339 (D) - - 249,338
Equipment 757,727 (331) 630 - 758,026
Furniture and Fixtures 2,601 271 174 - 3,046
1,328,794 ) 1,007 (12) 1,329,788

Accumulated Depreciation (911,976) - (30,749) 12 (942,713)
416,818 €)) (29,742) - 387,075
Construction Work-In-Progress 107 - 714 - 821
Land and Land Rights 171,945 - - - 171,945
Electric Plant, Net $ 588870 § 1 § (29,028) $ - $ 559,841

Construction Work-In-Progress Construction work-in-progress (CWIP) includes the capitalized cost of land,
material, equipment, labor, interest (net of interest income), certain other financing costs incurred to facilitate
the projects and an allocated portion of general and administrative expenses related to the development of
electric plant. In addition, CWIP ultimately includes costs incurred during the test and start-up phase of projects
prior to commencement of commercial operations.

Regulatory Assets/Credits In accordance with GASB Statement No. 62, the Agency has deferred certain items
of expense and revenue that otherwise would have been charged to operations because it is probable that such
items will be recovered in future years’ operations. For items related to Net Pension and OPEB Liabilities, the
Agency expects to recover these items through participant collections using the actuarially calculated amounts
as represented in the respective annual and biennial actuarial valuation reports. For other regulatory items, the
Agency expects to recover these items through participant collections over the term of the related debt
obligations it has issued. On an ongoing basis, the Agency reviews its operations to determine the continued
applicability of these deferrals under GASB Statement No. 62.

The items of expense that have been deferred are net pension and OPEB liabilities and those originally paid
from bond proceeds, including depreciation, certain bond amortizations, and interest paid from bond proceeds.
These amounts are recorded to future recoverable amounts. Revenues used to acquire electric plant have also
been deferred to future years. As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Agency had accumulated regulatory assets,
net of regulatory credits, of approximately $160,257,000 and $163,806,000, respectively.

Investment in Associated Company Effective June 2018, the Agency invested $265,000 (20% interest) into
Hometown Connections Inc. (a not-for-profit corporation) (HCI). HCI is a national service corporation that
provides consulting, management and metering services to public power utilities on a national level. This
investment is accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

Debt Related Costs Debt issuance costs are expensed as incurred. Excess costs on refunding of bonds are
considered deferred outflows of resources as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 65 and amortized over the life
of the refunding bonds, or the life of the refunded bonds, whichever is shorter. Amortization is computed using
the effective interest method and included in interest expense.

20



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Compensated Absences Accumulated unpaid compensated absences are accrued as the obligation is incurred.
Compensated absences are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Pensions For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions and pension expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of the Agency’s CalPERS plan
(Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred
outflows/inflows of resources related to OPEB and OPEB expenses, information about the fiduciary net position
of the Agency’s California Employers’ Retirement Benefit Trust (CERBT) Fund and additions to/deductions
from Fund’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS,
the trust administrator. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Long-Term Debt Long-term debt is stated net of unamortized discounts and premiums. Discounts and
premiums are amortized over the term of the related obligation using the effective interest method. Amortization
of debt discounts and premiums is included in total interest expense for the period. See Note E - Projects and
Related Financing.

Operating Reserves The Agency has established various funded operating reserves, in accordance with various
bond indentures, project agreements, and prudent utility practice, for anticipated periodic operating costs and
related liabilities including, but not limited to, scheduled maintenance other than ordinary repairs and
replacements. Certain amounts funded each year are charged to operating expense because the collections
established by the Agency for power sales to its members include these costs on a prospective basis. Changes
to operating reserve levels are periodically evaluated during the annual budgeting process. A non-project
specific, individual participant controlled, general operating reserve is also maintained for participating Agency
members.

Rates Power sales to participants for their resale include both power generated by operating plants and power
purchased from outside sources. Collection rates for power sales are designed to recover costs that include
budgeted annual operating costs and debt service. Additional amounts for operating reserves or rate stabilization
may be included in collection rates under the terms of bond indentures. During fiscal years 2018 and 2017, no
amounts were specifically collected for rate stabilization.

The Agency’s collection rates for electric service are not subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the California

Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) or FERC. Rather, the Agency’s rates are established annually in
connection with its budget, which is approved by its governing Commission.

21



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Power, Transmission and Fuel Forward Transactions In the normal course of its business, the Agency is
required to manage loads, resources, and energy price risk on behalf of its members. Consequently, the Agency
buys and sells power, transmission, and fuel in wholesale markets as required. The Agency does not enter into
such agreements solely for trading purposes. All such transactions are normal purchases and sales subject to
settlement at the agreed to contract prices for quantities delivered. While authorized to transact forward purchase
contracts for terms of up to five years, forward contract purchases at fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 were for
periods not greater than four years duration beyond the current fiscal year. In the event of default, undelivered
transactions are required to be marked-to-market subject to the following limitations. If the Agency, as buyer,
is the defaulting entity, the Agency’s termination settlement amount is capped at the agreed to contract cost for
all future undelivered commodities. If the selling counterparty is the defaulting entity, the seller’s termination
settlement is not capped for all future undelivered commodities. The defaulting entity is also subject to resultant
transmission charges, brokerage fees, attorney fees, and all other reasonable expenses. See Note H -
Commitments and Contingencies, Power Purchase Contracts.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments The following methods and assumptions were used by the Agency in
estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments:

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The carrying amount reported in the statements of net position for cash and cash
equivalents approximates its fair value.

Investments - The fair values for investments are based on quoted market prices and significant other observable
inputs. See Note C - Investments.

Swaps - The fair values take into consideration the prevailing interest rate environment, the specific terms and
conditions of a given transaction, and any upfront payments that were received. All fair values were estimated
using the zero-coupon discounting method. This method calculates the future payments required by the swap,
assuming that the current forward rates implied by the yield curve are the market’s best estimate of future spot
interest rates. These payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for a
hypothetical zero-coupon rate bond due on the date of each future net settlement on the swaps. While the
current net mark-to-market values are negative, this valuation would be realized only if the swaps were
terminated at the valuation date.

Net Position The Agency classifies its net position into three components; invested in capital assets, restricted,
and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
reduced by outstanding debt balances, net of unspent bond proceeds.

Restricted - This component consists of net position with constraints placed on their use. Constraints include
those imposed by debt indentures and other agreements; grants, laws and regulations of other governments or
by the Agency’s governing Board of Commissioners.

Unrestricted - This component consists of net position that does not meet the definition of “net investment in
capital assets” or “restricted”.

22



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The Agency and the Associated Power Corporations are intended to operate on a not-for-profit basis. Therefore,
any balance of net position represents differences between total revenues collected, using collection rates based
on estimated operating expenses and debt service, and the total actual expenses incurred. In subsequent periods
of operation, excess collections (net of encumbrances) that the participating members do not direct be held by
or released to the Agency, are refunded to the participating members. Estimated encumbrances at June 30, 2018
and 2017 were $2,452,000 and $3,257,000, respectively. In the event the Agency incurs a negative net position
balance, the balance would be subject to recovery in collection rates under the terms of the related take-or-pay
member agreements. See Note E — Projects And Related Financing.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources The statement of financial position includes a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred Outflows of Resources consist of excess cost
on refunding of debt and pension and OPEB deferrals. Pension contributions made in the current year are
reported as deferred outflows of resources as the CalPERS’ valuation measurement date is June 30, 2017; those
contributions will be expensed in fiscal year 2019.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position includes a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will be recognized as revenue at that time. The Agency’s
deferred inflows of resources are comprised of regulatory credits intended to offset the effects of the collection
rate process and pension and OPEB deferrals projected in the pension and OPEB actuarial reports.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements In March 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures
Related to Debt including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements, effective for financial statements for years
beginning after June 15,2018. The Agency has elected to adopt this statement as of July 1, 2017. This statement
requires the Agency to add additional note disclosures for debt, including direct borrowings and direct
placements.

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other than Pensions, effective for financial statements for years beginning after June 15, 2017. This statement
requires governments to report a liability on the face of the financial statements for the Postemployment Benefits
Other than Pensions provided by the entities and requires governments to present more extensive note
disclosures and required supplementary information about their OPEB liabilities.

In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, effective for
financial statements for years beginning after June 15, 2015. This statement clarifies the definition of fair value,
establishes general principles for measuring fair value, provides additional fair value application guidance, and
enhances disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement establishes a three-level hierarchy to the
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Disclosure is required to be made about fair value
measurements, the level of fair value hierarchy, and valuation techniques.

23



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Accounting Pronouncements Effective in Future Fiscal Years

GASB Statement No. 83 — In November 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement
Obligations. The objective of the Statement is to address accounting and reporting for certain asset
retirement obligations (AROs). This Statement requires governments to recognize a liability for legal
obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to tangible capital assets. The Statement is
effective for the periods beginning after June 15, 2018, or fiscal year 2019. The Agency has not determined
the effect of the statement.

GASB Statement No. 84 — In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The
objective of the Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for
accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The Statement is
effective for the periods beginning after December 15, 2018, or fiscal year 2020. The Agency has not
determined the effect of the statement.

GASB Statement No. 87 — In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of the
Statement is to recognize in the Financial Statements certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. The Statement is effective for the periods
beginning after December 15, 2019, or the fiscal year 2021. The Agency has not determined the effect of
the statement.

GASB Statement No. 89 — In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost
Incurred before the End of a Construction Period. The objective of the Statement is (1) to enhance the
relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting
period and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The
Statement is effective for the periods beginning after December 15, 2019, or fiscal year 2021. The Agency
has not determined the effect of the statement

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements The preparation of financial statements in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform to

the current year presentation. Such reclassifications had no material effect on net position.

24



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

NOTE C -- INVESTMENTS

The Agency is authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies and instrumentalities,
in certificates of deposit, commercial paper, banker’s acceptances, repurchase agreements, passbook savings
account demand deposits, municipal bonds, the State Treasurer's LAIF pool, mid-term corporate notes, and in
other instruments authorized by applicable sections of the Government Code of the State of California. The
Agency’s investments are stated at fair value.

Investments at June 30, 2018 Witd. Avg
Carrying Fair Maturity
Description Value Value (In years)
(in thousands)
U.S. Agencies $ 160,079 $ 156,857 2.12
U.S. Treasury 1,594 1,591 0.45
Corporate Bonds 32,685 32,345 4.29
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $ 194,358 $ 190,793
Investments at June 30, 2017 Wtd. Avg
Carrying Fair Maturity
Description Value Value (In years)
(in thousands)
U.S. Agencies $ 167,404 $§ 165,867 2.79
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $ 167,404 $ 165,867

The Agency’s investment policy requires investments that assure safety of the principal, liquidity to meet
specific obligations of the Agency when due, and investment quality all in compliance with California State law
and the Agency’s revenue bond indentures. Generally, operating and reserve funds investment maturities are
limited to one and five years, except for Geothermal Decommissioning Reserve and debt service reserve funds,
which are allowed maturities up to ten years and fifteen years, respectively. All U.S. Government and U.S.
Government Agency securities held by the Agency are either in effect or actually AA rated.

All securities owned by, or held on behalf of, the Agency are held by either the Agency’s custodian, Union Bank
of California, N.A., or its revenue bond trustee, U.S. Bank Trust, N.A.

The Agency’s investment policy includes restrictions for investments relating to maximum amounts invested as
a percentage of the portfolio and with a single issuer, maximum maturities, and minimum credit ratings.

Credit Risk To mitigate the risk that an issuer will not fulfill its obligation to the investment, the Agency limits

investments to those rated, at a minimum, A or equivalent for long/medium term notes by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization.

25



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Custodial Credit Risk This is the risk that in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution, the
Agency’s deposits may not be returned or the Agency will not be able to recover its deposits, investments, or
collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The Agency’s policy mitigates this risk by
requiring transactions with approved institutions and firms that have one or more of the following attributes:
recognized as a primary government dealer as designated by the Federal Reserve Bank; regional broker/dealer
headquartered in the State of California; national or state chartered bank that must be a member of the FDIC;
direct issuer of securities eligible for purchase by the Agency; brokers and dealers qualify under SEC Rule
15C3-1 (Uniform Net Capital Rule), must be registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority
(FINRA) and must be licensed to do business in the State of California. Capitalization, credit worthiness,
experience, reference checks and services offered criteria are evaluated when selecting a custodian.

Concentration of Credit Risk This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an entity’s investment in a
single issuer. The investment policy of the Agency contains no limitations on the amount that may be invested
in any one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. Investments in any one issuer
(other than mutual funds and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total Agency investments
include the following at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.

Concentration of Credit Risk, June 30, 2018
Reported Percentage
Issuer: Investment Type Amount of Portfolio

Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency 44,194,177 23.2%

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Federal Agency 37,424,182 19.6%
Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency 32,732,318 17.2%
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency 42,506,166 22.3%

Concentration of Credit Risk, June 30, 2017
Reported Percentage

Issuer: Investment Type Amount of Portfolio
Federal National Mortgage Association ~ Federal Agency 59,751,517 36.0%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Federal Agency 40,633,931 24.5%
Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency 30,655,349 18.5%
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency 34,816,372 21.0%

Interest Rate Risk Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates may adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. The Agency manages its exposure to interest rate risk by following a hold-to-maturity
investment approach for some investments, purchasing a combination of shorter and longer term investments,
and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity
evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. In addition, the
Agency periodically rebalances larger fund portfolios to maintain the appropriate rate of return through market
cycles; such rebalances are performed only in instances when the result of the rebalance transaction is a net gain.

26



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

NOTE D -- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

In February 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, effective for
financial statements for years beginning after June 15, 2015. This statement clarifies the definition of fair value,
establishes general principles for measuring fair value, provides additional fair value application guidance, and
enhances disclosures about fair value measurements.

In accordance with GASB 72, Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (an exit price). Fair value
is a market-based measurement for a particular asset or liability based on assumptions that market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Valuation inputs are assumptions that market participants use in pricing an asset or liability. The hierarchy of
inputs used to generate the valuation is classified into three different Levels:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

e Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in markets that are active; quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; and inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable for an asset, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs from the asset or liability where there is very little market activity
and they should be used only when relevant Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are unavailable.

The Agency’s fair value measurements are performed on a recurring basis. Because investing is not a core part
of the Agency’s mission, the Agency determines that the disclosures related to these investments only need to
be disaggregated by major type. The fair value of swaps reflect the nonperformance risk of their client
counterparty relating to that liability, and the nonperformance risk of the bank counterparty relating to that asset.

Fair Value of Investments under GASB 72 — Debt and other securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Level 2 Securities are valued
using a multi-dimensional relationship model or matrix pricing model utilizing market data including, but not
limited to, benchmark yields, reported trades, and broker/dealer quotes.

Fair Value of Swaps under GASB 72 — Fair values take into consideration the prevailing interest rate
environment and the specific terms and conditions of a given transaction. The valuations of derivatives
transactions provided are indicative values based on mid-market levels as of June 30, 2018. These valuations
do not represent the actual terms at which new transactions could be entered into or the actual terms at which
existing transactions could be liquidated. The valuations provided are derived from proprietary models based
upon well-recognized financial principles and reasonable estimates about relevant future market conditions for
interest rate swaps. The observability of inputs used to perform the measurement results in the swap fair values
being categorized as Level 2.

27



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The Agency has the following fair value measurements as of June 30, 2018:

Fair Value Using
(thousands)

Quoted prices in

active markets  Significant other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
June 30, 2018 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by fair value level
Debt Securities
U.S agencies $ 156,857 $ 34,810 $ 122,047 -
U.S treasury 1,591 1,591 - -
Corporate Bonds 32,345 - 32,345 -
Total debt securities 190,793 36,401 154,392 -
Total investments by fair
value level $ 190,793 $ 36,401 $ 154392 §$ -
Derivative Instruments by fair
value level
Swap liability instruments $  (11,109) $ - $  (11,109) $ -
Total Derivative
Instruments by fair value
level $ (11,109) $ = $  (11,109) $ -

28



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCTATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The Agency had the following fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017:

Fair Value Using
(thousands)

Quoted prices in

active markets  Significant other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
June 30, 2017 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by fair value level
Debt Securities
U.S agencies $ 165,867 $ 34,894 $ 130,973 -
Total debt securities 165,867 34,894 130,973 -
Total investments by fair
value level $ 165,867 $ 34,894 $ 130,973 $ -
Derivative Instruments by fair
value level
Swap liability instruments $ (15,173) $ - $ (15,173) $ -
Total Derivative
Instruments by fair value
level $ (15,173) $ - $ (15,173) $ -

29



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

NOTE E -- PROJECTS AND RELATED FINANCING

Financing Programs The Agency's project construction and development programs have been individually financed
by project revenue bonds that are collateralized by the Agency's assignment of all payments, revenues, and proceeds
associated with its interest in each project. Each project participant has agreed to pay its proportionate share of debt
service and other costs of the related project, notwithstanding the suspension, interruption, interference, reduction or
curtailment of output from the project for any reason (that is, the take-or-pay member agreements).

Certain of the revenue bonds are additionally supported by municipal bond insurance credit enhancements.

Geothermal Project
2009 Series A - Original Issue Amount $35,610
Serial, 4.00-5.50% through 2025

2012 Series A - Original Issue Amount $12,910
Term, 2.289% due 2023

2016 Series A - Original Issue Amount $17,530
Term, 1.670% due 2024
Total Geothermal Project
Hydroelectric Project - Original Issue Amount $195,610
1992 Refunding Series A
Term, 6.30% due 2019

2008 Refunding Series A - Original Issue Amount $85,160

Term, adjustable rate-weekly

reset, due 2033
2008 Refunding Series B (Taxable) - Original Issue
Amount $3,165

Term, adjustable rate-weekly reset, due 2021

2008 Refunding Series C - Original Issue Amount $128,005
Serial, 4.00-5.00% through 2025

2010 Refunding Series A - Original Issue Amount
$101,260
Serial, 4.00-5.00% through 2024

2012 Refunding Series A - Original Issue Amount $76,665
Serial, 5.00% through 2033

2012 Refunding Series B - Original Issue Amount $7,120
Serial, 4.32% through 2025

2018 Refunding Series A — Original Issue Amount $68,875
Serial, 5.00% through 2025

2018 Refunding Series B - Original Issue Amount $1,340
Serial, 4.32% through 2025

Add: Unamortized Premium, net
Total Hydroelectric Project

Capital Facilities Project — Original Issue Amount $55,120

Balance Balance Current
July 1, 2017 Additions  Retirements June 30,2018 Portion
(in thousands)

$ 7,640 $ - $2,420 $5,220 $2,545
7,595 - 1,310 6,285 1,340
17,530 - 265 17,265 365
32,765 - 3,995 28,770 4,250
23,595 - 11,440 12,155 12,155
85,160 - - 85,160 -
1,540 - 305 1,235 325
77,130 - 77,130 - -
72,615 - 9,640 62,975 10,130
76,665 - - 76,665 -
7,120 - - 7,120 -
- 68,875 - 68,875 -
s 1,340 - 1,340 ;
10,473 8,253 2,984 15,742 -
354,298 78,468 101,499 331,267 22,610
Balance Balance Current
July 1,2017  Additions Retirements  June 30, 2018 Portion

30



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

2010 Refunding Series A
Serial, 2.00-5.25% through 2026

Add: Unamortized Premium
Total Capital Facilities Project

Lodi Energy Center, Issue One

2010 Series A - Original Issue Amount $78,330
Serial, 3.00-5.00% through 2020
Term, 5.00% due 2025

2010 Series B (Federally Taxable - Direct Payment Build
America Bonds) - Original Issue Amount $176,625
Term, 7.311% due 2040

Lodi Energy Center, Issue Two
2010 Series A - Original Issue Amount $30,540
Serial, 3.00-5.00% through 2019

2010 Series B (Federally Taxable - Direct Payment Build
America Bonds) - Original Issue Amount $110,225
Term, 4.63% due 2020
Term, 5.679% due 2035

Lodi Energy Center, Issue One
2017 Series A — Original Issue Amount $38,970

Serial, 2.70% through 2025

Add: Unamortized Premium

Total Lodi Energy Center Project
Total Long-Term Debt, Net

$ 37,400 - $ 3760 $ 33640 $ 3,995
763 - 181 582 -
38,163 - 3,941 34,022 3,995
17,755 - 5,630 12,125 5915
36,020 : 36,020 - -
176,625 : - 176,625 -
9,685 - 4,725 4,960 4,960
5,210 - - 5,210 -
105,015 - - 105,015 -

; 38,970 335 38,635 605

981 - 878 103 -
351,291 38,970 47,588 342,673 11,480
$ 776,517 $ 117438 $ 157023  § 736932 $ 42335

31



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Debt service requirements for each of the next five years and in five-year cumulative increments thereafter as
of June 30, 2018:

Revenue Bonds Notes from Direct
Placements
Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
(in thousands)

2019 $ 40,025 $ 38299 § 2,310 $ 1,302 § 81,936

2020 39,470 36,863 2,365 1,251 79,949

2021 32,085 34,952 11,745 1,199 79,981

2022 33,290 33,000 12,005 951 79,246

2023 34,985 30,971 11,505 698 78,159
2024-2028 175,325 121,626 22,255 875 320,081
2029-2033 187,935 73,252 - - 261,187
2034-2038 83,980 27,944 - - 111,924
2039-2040 31,225 3,451 - - 34,676
Add: Unamortized Bond Premium 16,427 - - - 16,427

$ 674,747 $§ 400358 $ 62,185 $ 6,276 $ 1,143,566

Interest includes interest requirements for fixed rate debt at their stated rate and variable rate debt covered by
interest rate swaps at their fixed swap rate.

Changes in long-term debt obligations for the year ended June 30, 2018, are as follows:

Balance at Balance at Due Within
July 1,2017 Increases Decreases June 30, 2018 One Year
(in thousands)
Revenue bonds $ 739,175 $ 70,215 $ 151,070 $ 658,320 $ 40,025
Notes from direct placements 25,125 38,970 1,910 62,185 2,310
Add: Unamortized Premium, net 12,217 8,253 4,043 16,427 -
Total $ 776,517 $ 117438 $§ 157,023 § 736,932 $ 42335

The Agency’s outstanding notes from direct placements of $62,185 contain provisions that in an event of default,
outstanding amounts become immediately due if (1) the Agency is unable to pay the principal or interest when
due, (2) files bankruptcy or becomes insolvent, or (3) S&P issues a downgrade below “BBB-.”

Redemption Provisions As set forth in the bond indentures, the term bonds are subject to redemption prior to
maturity in varying amounts at specific dates. At the option of the Agency, the bonds are also subject to early
redemption at specific redemption prices and dates.

32



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Defeased Debt Various bond refundings were undertaken to defease debt and realize future debt service savings.
Debt was defeased by using the proceeds of the refunding issues and other available monies to irrevocably place
in trust cash and U.S. Government Securities, which together with interest earned thereon, will be sufficient to
pay both the interest and the appropriate maturity or redemption value of the refunded bonds as required.
Detailed information about the refunding transactions follow.

In March 2018, the Agency issued Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds 2018 Refunding Series
A and B ($70,215,000) to refund Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bond 2008 Refunding Series C.
The refunding was completed through the issuance of $70,215,000 fixed rate debt (2018 Series A & B) with a
yield of 2.01% with varying principal maturities ranging from $839,850 to $14,957,250 through July 1, 2024.

In December 2017, the Agency issued Lodi Energy Center Revenue Refunding Bonds Issue One 2017 Series A
($38,970,000) to refund a portion of Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds Issue One 2010 Series A. The private
placement refunding was completed through the issuance of $38,970,000 fixed rate tax exempt debt (2017
Series A) with a yield of 2.27% with varying principal maturities ranging from $335,000 to $7,825,000 through
June 1, 2025.

Accordingly, some of these defeased debt issues have been considered extinguished for financial reporting
purposes. At year-end, the following defeased debt remained outstanding:

2018 2017
(in thousands)

Hydroelectric: Project No. One, 1985 Series A $ 12,150 $ 12,150
Project No. One, 1986 Series A 31,360 31,360
Project No. One, 2008 Series C 77,130 -
120,640 43,510

LEC: Issue One, 2010 Series A 36,020
Total Defeased Debt Outstanding $ 156,660 $ 43,510

Geothermal Project In addition to a federal geothermal leasehold, steam wells, gathering system and related
facilities, the project consists of two electric generating stations (Plant 1 and Plant 2) with combined 165 MW
(nameplate rating) turbine generator units utilizing low temperature geothermal steam; associated electrical,
mechanical and control facilities; a heat dissipation system; a steam gathering system, a transmission tap-line,
and other related facilities. Geothermal steam for the project is derived from the geothermal property, which
includes well pads, access roads, steam wells and re-injection wells.

Hyvdroelectric Project The Agency contracted to finance, manage, construct, and operate Hydroelectric Project
Number One for the licensed owner, Calaveras County Water District. In exchange, the Agency has the right
to the electric output of the project for 50 years from February 1982. The Agency also has an option to purchase
power from the project in excess of the District's requirements for the subsequent Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission project license term of 30 to 50 years.

33



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

As part of a refinancing plan in November 2004, the Agency entered into two forward starting interest rate
swaps in an initial notional amount of $85,160,000 and $1,574,000. Payments under the swap agreements with
Citigroup Financial Products, Inc. began on April 2, 2008. To complete the refinancing transaction and realize
the debt service savings under the 2004 swap agreement, on April 2, 2008 the Agency completed a bond
refunding of certain maturities of the 1998 Hydroelectric Refunding Series A bonds totaling $85,870,000
maturing in 2023 to 2032. These fixed rate bonds were refinanced through the issuance of tax-exempt 2008
Hydroelectric Refunding Series A ($85,160,000) bonds and taxable 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding Series B
($3,165,000) bonds. Both issues are variable interest rate bonds bearing interest at weekly interest rates, payable
semi-annually on July 1 and January 1 each year. To support this financing, the Agency entered into two
irrevocable direct pay letter of credit agreements with Citibank N.A. The Citibank letters of credit were for a
period of three years and were scheduled to expire on September 27, 2014. On September 10, 2014, the
irrevocable letter of credit agreements with Citibank N.A. were terminated. Substitution letters of credit with
the Bank of Montreal were issued the same day. The Bank of Montreal letters of credit are for a period of five
years and expire on September 9, 2019.

The payment of principal and interest on these issues are not covered by any financial guaranty insurance
policies. This 2008 Hydroelectric Refunding and the associated interest rate swaps are estimated to have
reduced project debt service by $11.8 million over the next 24 years providing the Agency with an estimated
economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of
approximately $5.9 million.

The Agency has entered into two separate pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps to produce savings or
to result in lower costs over the life of each transaction than what the Agency would have paid using fixed-rate
debt. While these derivative instruments carry additional risks, the Agency’s swap policy and favorable
negotiations have helped to reduce such risks.

34



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Associated Interest Rate Swaps starting April 2, 2008

2008 Hydroelectric Refunding Revenue Bonds

Counterparty to Interest Rate Swap

Notional Value of Interest Rate Swap

Fair Value--Due from (to) Counterparty

Credit Downgrade Required Collateral Posting:
For Counterparty, Fair Value Above

Forward Starting Swaps
Series A Series B (Taxable)
Citigroup Citigroup
Financial Financial
Products Inc. Products Inc.
$ 85,160,000 $1,073,895
$(11,251,644) $ 143,056
$10 million $10 million

A-/A3 and BBB-/Baa3

A-/A3 and BBB-/Baa3

If S&P or Moody’s Credit Rating falls to

For Agency (Credit of Agency’s Insurer
National Public Finance Guarantee
formerly MBIA and NCPA credit), Fair

Value Above $10 million $10 million
If S&P or Moody’s Credit Rating falls to A+/A1 A+/Al
Termination Date July 1, 2032 July 1, 2032
Terms Rates Terms Rates

Payments to (from) Counterparty Fixed 3.819 % Fixed (5.376)%
Variable Payments (from) to Counterparty 54% LIBOR+.54%*  (1.373)%  100% of LIBOR* 1.550 %
Net Interest Rate Swap Payments 2.446 % (3.826)%
Variable-Rate Bond Payments SIFMA** 1.039 % SIFMA** 1.733 %
Effective Interest Rate on Bonds 3.485 % (2.093)%

Average to Date: *1-Month London Inter-Bank Offered Rate
**Securities Industry and Financial Market Association Municipal Swap Index (formerly the Bond

Market Association Municipal Swap Index)

The total fair value of outstanding swap instruments was a net liability of $11,109,000 and $15,173,000 at
June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017, respectively. These amounts are reported as a non-current liability. The
interest rate swaps beginning in FY 2013 are both ineffective hedges and considered investment derivative
instruments. The change in fair value was $4.1 million and $7.1 million for years ended June 30, 2018 and
2017, respectively and are recorded as interest expense in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Net Position. The net settlement payments of interest on these investment derivative instruments total
$2.0 million and $2.5 million, which is recorded as interest expense in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Position for FY 2018 and FY 2017, respectively. The value of the swaps noted above
reflects the estimated fair value of the swaps at June 30,2018 and 2017 as determined by the Agency’s financial
advisor. The fair value of the swaps will change due to notional amount, amortizations, and interest rate changes.

35



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The following swap agreement risks are common to all the interest rate swaps. The interest rate swaps expose
the Agency to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR and SIFMA converge, changing the synthetic
rate on the bonds. If a change occurs that results in the rates moving to convergence, the expected cost savings
of the swap may not be realized. The Agency is exposed to interest rate risk on its pay-fixed, receive variable
interest rate swaps. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair values
of the Agency’s financial instruments or cash flows. As the LIBOR or SIFMA swap index decreases, the
Agency’s net payment on swaps increases. In addition, the Agency is exposed to interest rate risk if the
counterparty to the swap defaults or if the swap is terminated. The Agency is also exposed to market access
risk, the risk that it will not be able to enter credit markets or that credit will become more costly. The Agency’s
financial rating is tied to the credit strength of the major participants of the specific project for which each
financial instrument is issued. The Agency is also exposed to market access risks caused by disruptions in the
municipal bond market.

To mitigate the potential for credit risk, the swap counterparties are required by the agreement to post collateral
should the fair value exceed certain thresholds as shown above. At June 30, 2018, credit ratings of the
counterparties to the swaps were as follows:

Swap Counterparty & Agency’s Insurer Standard & Poor’s Moody’s
Citigroup Financial Products Inc. A+ Al

National Public Finance Guarantee formerly
MBIA (the Agency’s insurer)

AA- Baa2

The swaps utilized the International Swap Dealers Association (ISDA) Master Agreement, which includes
standard termination events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy. However, an additional provision under the
Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement allows the swap to be terminated by the Agency if the counterparty’s
credit rating falls below A- by Standard & Poor’s or A3 by Moody’s. If a swap is terminated, the applicable
bonds would no longer carry a synthetic fixed interest rate. In addition, if a swap has a negative fair value at
the time of an early termination, the Agency would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the
swap’s fair value.

Combustion Turbine Project The original project consisted of five combustion turbine units, each nominally
rated at approximately 25 megawatts. Concurrent with the final project bond maturity, two units located in
Roseville were acquired by an Agency member. The remaining project consists of two units in Alameda and
one in Lodi. The project provides capacity during peak load periods and emergency capacity reserves. Excess
capacity and energy from the project are also sold to other entities from time to time.

Capital Facilities Project The project consists of one 49.9 megawatt natural gas-fired steam injected
combustion turbine generator unit located in Lodi, California. Wastewater is reclaimed from the City of Lodi’s
White Slough water pollution control facility, processed to eliminate contaminants, and heated to steam and
used in the turbine to produce augmented power and emissions control.

36



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Lodi Energy Center (LEC) The project is a 296 MW base load, combined cycle, natural gas-fired, combustion
turbine generating station (one gas turbine and one steam turbine) located in Lodi, California, next to the Capital
Facilities Project discussed above. Pursuant to the Lodi Energy Center Power Sales Agreement, the Agency
agreed to operate the LEC and has sold all of the capacity and energy of the LEC to thirteen participants
(including four non-members) in accordance with their respective Generation Entitlement Shares (GES). Each
participant has agreed to unconditionally provide for its share of the operation and maintenance expenses and
all capital improvements based on its GES. The LEC will be operated and maintained by the Agency under the
direction of the LEC Project Management and Operations Agreement among the Agency and the LEC Project
Participants.

Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue One provided financing for 11 project participants with 55.7857%
GES. Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue Two provided financing for the California Department of
Water Resources 33.5% GES. The Modesto Irrigation District elected to provide its own financing for its
10.7143% GES of the costs of construction of the project. Modesto Irrigation District is not liable for any
Agency debt service obligations for the project.

The Issue One Series B and the Issue Two Series B bonds were issued as Taxable Subsidy Bonds constituting
Build America Bonds (BABs) for the purposes of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The
Act provides for a direct payment to the Agency from the federal government equal to 35% of the interest costs.
The direct payment was reduced by 6.6% and 6.9% in 2018 and 2017, respectively, due to federal government
budget sequestration. Such payments may continue to be affected by sequestrations.

37



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

NOTE F -- RETIREMENT PLAN

General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan Descriptions The Agency provides a defined benefit retirement plan to all eligible employees under the
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). The Plan is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). CalPERS issues
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are
based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. In 2012, the Public Employees’
Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) become law that implemented new benefit formulas and final compensation
period, as well as new contribution requirements for new employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 who meet
the definition of new member under PEPRA. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2013, and those new
employees not meeting the PEPRA definition of new member, are considered classic members.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018, are summarized as follows:

Prior to On or After
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.5% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 full-time years 5 full-time years
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 -55 60 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0%to 2.5% 2.0% to0 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8.00% 6.50%
Required employer contribution rates 32.649% 32.649%

Employees Covered — At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms
for each Plan:

2018 2017
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 126 119
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 21 27
Active employees 150 150
Total 297 29

38



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Contributions Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall
be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined
through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount
necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to
finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the difference between the
actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. For the measurement period ended June 30,
2017 and 2016 (the measurement dates), the average active employee contribution rates were 8.380% and
8.022%, respectively, of annual pay and the Agency’s contribution rates are 36.355% and 29.474%,
respectively, of annual payroll. Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended.

Net Pension Liability The Agency’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the total pension liability,
less the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured at year end, using
annual actuarial valuations as of the previous year end and rolled forward to current year end, using standard
update procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net pension liability
is shown below.

Actuarial Assumptions The total pension liabilities as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 were determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

2018 2017

Valuation Date June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Measurement Date June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Entry-Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15% 7.65%

Inflation 2.75% 2.75%

Payroll Growth 3.00% 3.00%

Projected Salary Increase 3.2%-12.2% (1) 3.2%-12.2% (1)

Investment Rate of Return 7.5% (2) 7.5% (2)

Mortality 3 ?3)

(1) Depending on age and service.

(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.

(3) Derived using CalPERS' specific membership data with projected on-going mortality
improvement using Scale BB published by the Society of Actuaries.

39



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Discount Rate The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% for the Plan. To
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the plan,
CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the
actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore,
the current 7.15% discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary.
The long term expected discount rate of 7.15% will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement
Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report”
that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under the GASB 68 section.

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without reduction
for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.15% investment return assumption used in this accounting
valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An
investment return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.30%. For the measurement year ended
June 30, 2017 and 2016, using this lower discount rate resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability and
net pension liability. This difference was deemed immaterial to the agent multiple-employer plan.

On December 21 2016, CalPERS announced to employers that the CalPERS Board of Administration voted to
lower the discount rate assumption, net of administrative expenses, from 7.5% to 7.0% over a three year period
as follows:

o FY 2017-2018: 7.375%
o FY 2018-2019: 7.25 %
o FY 2019-2020: 7.00 %

There will be a one year implementation delay for school districts and public agencies deferring the first rate
discount decrease to FY 2018-2019. Lowering the discount rate, also known as the assumed rate of return,
means employers that contract with CalPERS to administer their pension plans will see increases in their normal
costs and unfunded actuarial liabilities. CalPERS has estimated that the three-year reduction of the discount
rate will result in average employer rate increases of about 1 percent to 3 percent of normal cost as a percent of
payroll in addition to increases to the current unfunded accrued liability payments.

To mitigate the growing unfunded accrued liability, the Agency implemented a Long-Term Funding Plan for
NCPA'’s Employee Pension Program which includes accelerated funding of the unfunded liability over a 15 year
period. The plan includes: 1) a goal for minimum funding level of 80% within 15 years and annual Commission
confirmation of the continued funding of the annual required employer contribution at 100%; 2) shorten the
amortization period of the liability to 15 years; 3) research other ways to limit the pension liability; and 4) annual
Finance Committee review in conjunction with annual CalPERS actuarial valuations and recommendation to
the Commission as needed. In addition, the Agency has a budget policy that mandates an annual reconciliation
of budgeted versus actual pension costs. The policy requires that positive budget variances are contributed as
payments against the unfunded liability at year end.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block

method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

40



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows were developed
assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in
all future years. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns
were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block
approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits
was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected
return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-
term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate
calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.
These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

For measurement period ending June 30, 2017:

New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10! Years 11+2
Global Equity 47.00% 4.90% 5.38%
Private Equity 12.00% 6.60% 6.63%
Fixed Income 19.00% 0.80% 2.27%
Liquidity 2.00% -0.40% -0.90%
Real Estate 11.00% 2.80% 5.21%
Inflation Assets 6.00% 0.60% 1.39%
Other 3.00% 3.90% 5.36%

1 An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
2 An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

For measurement period ending June 30, 2016:

New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10°3 Years 11+*
Global Equity 51.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 20.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 1.00% -0.55% -1.05%

3 An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
4 An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

41



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

The change in the Net Pension Liability for each Plan follows:

Increase/(Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Description Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)

Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 143,919,618 $ 79,331,018 $ 64,588,600
Service cost incurred 3,548,776 - 3,548,776
Interest on total pension liability 10,678,090 - 10,678,090
Differences between actual and expected
experience (1,980,198) - (1,980,198)
Change in assumption 8,835,307 - 8,835,307
Change in benefits - - -
Contributions — employer - 6,752,236 (6,752,236)
Contributions — employee - 1,556,483 (1,556,483)
Net investment income " 8,979,321 (8,979,321)
Differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments - - -
Benefit payments (6,410,415) (6,410,415) -
Administrative expense (117,127) 117,127

Net changes 14,671,560 10,760,498 3,911,062
Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 158,591,178 $ 90,091,516 $ 68,499,662

Increase/(Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Description Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)

Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 135,846,223 $ 78,072,198 $ 57,774,025
Service cost incurred 3,152,017 - 3,152,017
Interest on total pension liability 10,328,232 - 10,328,232
Differences between actual and expected
experience 581,539 - 581,539
Change in assumption - - -
Change in benefits - - -
Contributions - employer - 5,406,928 (5,406,928)
Contributions - employee - 1,453,722 (1,453,722)
Projected earnings on investments - 434,144 (434,144)
Differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments - - -
Benefit payments (5,988,393) (5,988,393) -
Administrative expense (47,581) 47,581

Net changes 8,073,395 1,258,820 6,814,575
Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 143,919,618 $ 79,331,018 $ 64,588,600

42



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower

(6.15% for 2018 and 6.65% for 2017) or 1-percentage point higher (8.15% for 2018 and 8.65% for 2017) than
the current rate:

Discount Rate — 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
2018 (6.15%) Rate (7.15%) (8.15%)
Plan’s Net Pension Liability $ 89,937,527 $ 68,499,662 $ 50,727,512
Discount Rate — 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
2017 (6.65%) Rate (7.65%) (8.65%)
Plan’s Net Pension Liability $ 83,586,138 $ 64,588,600 $ 48,792,228

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the years ending June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Agency incurred pension expense of $8,048,230 and
$6,016,714, respectively. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Agency has deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions as follows:

2018 Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date ~ $ 7,769,768 $ -
Changes in assumptions 6,626,480 (672,759)
Differences between actual and expected experience 297,861 (1,895,832)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments 1,050,762 -
Total $ 15,744,871 § (2,568,591)
2017 Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date ~ $ 6,254,577 $ -
Changes in assumptions - (1,233,393)
Differences between actual and expected experience 439,700 (752,919)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments 6,811,477 (2,473,421)
Total $ 13,505,754 ' $ (4,459,733)

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date of $7,769,768 and $6,254,577 reported as deferred
outflows of resources for years ending June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, will be recognized as a reduction
of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

43



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

For reporting year ended June 30, 2018, amounts reported as deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows/(Inflows)

Measurement Period Ended June 30: of Resources
2018 $ 962,526
2019 2,921,531
2020 2,177,959
2021 (655,504)
2022 -
Thereafter -
Total $ 5,406,512

For reporting year ended June 30, 2017, amounts reported as deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows/(Inflows)

Measurement Period Ended June 30: of Resources
2017 $ (95,749)
2018 (95,748)
2019 1,863,257
2020 1,119,684
2021 -
Thereafter -
Total $ 2,791,444

Payable to the Pension Plan At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Agency did not have an outstanding amount of
contributions payable to the pension plan required for the years ended.

NOTE G -- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
General Information about the OPEB Plan

The Agency contracts with the CalPERS under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act
(PEMHCA) for employee medical insurance. In connection with this plan, the Agency provides medical
insurance to all active employees and their families, as well as all qualified retirees (and spouses), subject to
certain limitations. The Agency has maintained an actuarially based restricted fund for the sole purpose of
paying medical insurance premiums for qualified retired employees (and spouses) participating in the CalPERS
medical plan. In 2007, the Agency became a participant in the CalPERS California Employers’ Retiree Benefit
Trust (CERBT), a pre-funding OPEB plan, which is an irrevocable multi-employer trust and plan consisting of
an aggregation of single-employer plans, with pooled administrative and investment functions. CalPERS issues
publicly available reports that include the net changes in Fiduciary Net Position by Employer and can be found
on the CalPERS website.

44



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

The Agency makes its Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) to this OPEB plan annually. The ADC
represents the service cost plus an amortized amount of net OPEB liabilities (NOL). The amortization of NOL
is based on a 30 year level dollar amount on a “closed” basis. There are 26 years remaining as of the
measurement date of June 30, 2017.

Summary of certain plan provisions and benefits in effect during fiscal year ended June 30, 2018:

Required service for eligibility Pre-1/1/2009 Hires, 5 full-time years
On or After 1/1/2009 Hires, 5 full-time years
and minimum 10 years CalPERS service

Minimum retirement age 50
Benefit payments Monthly for life
Vesting for eligible employees Pre-1/1/2009 Hires, 100% at 5 years

On or After 1/1/2009 Hires, 50% at 10 years;
5%l/year up to 100% at 20 years
Maximum monthly benefit 90% of Sacramento Kaiser Family rate

Employees Covered — At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms
for each Plan:

2018 2017
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 133 119
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits - -
Active employees 150 150
Total 283 26

Contributions The Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) and funded status of the OPEB plan were
determined based on current cost trends of the CalPERS health plans in which the employees currently
participate at the time of the actuarial valuation. The June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was prepared on the
basis of the OPEB assumption model, as prescribed by the CalPERS, in effect at the time of the valuation. At
fiscal year-end June 30, 2018, the Agency had 150 active eligible employees and 133 retirees drawing benefits
under this program.

The ADC and funded status of the plan are subject to periodic revision based on actual results, changes in
assumptions or plan provisions, and new estimates of expected future circumstances. Future actuarial valuations
will be performed every two years, as prescribed by CalPERS.

The Agency’s ADC (based on actuarially established rates) was determined as part of a June 30, 2017, actuarial
valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The primary actuarial assumptions included:
valuation using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method, 6.75% annual discount rate, payroll growth of 3.80% to
9.40%, 2.50% inflation, and maximum employer contribution increases derived from the Getzen Model for
developing long-term health care cost trends.

45



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

To mitigate the growing OPEB unfunded accrued liability, the Agency implemented a Long-Term Funding Plan
for the NCPA Retiree Medical Plan which includes: 1) establish a goal to obtain a minimum funding level of
80% within 15 years and confirm the policy of funding 100% or more of the ARC each year; 2) reduce actuarial
liability by developing a cap for health care premiums going forward; 3) shorten the amortization period used
in the actuarial calculations from 28 years to 15 years; 4) consider additional funding sources for increased
funding of the ARC, including further budget reductions or new revenues (from members or new
services/customers); and 5) conduct new actuarial studies on a biennial basis as required and review the updated
results with the Finance Committee, who will make recommendations for revision to the Commission as needed.
In addition, the Agency has a budget policy that mandates an annual reconciliation of budgeted versus actual
OPEB costs. The policy requires that positive budget variances are contributed as payments against the
unfunded liability at fiscal year end.

Net OPEB Liability The Agency’s net liability for the OPEB Plan is measured as the total OPEB liability, less
the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position. The net OPEB liability of the Plan is measured at year end, using annual
actuarial valuations as of the previous year end and rolled forward to current year end, using standard update
procedures. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net OPEB liability is
shown below.

Actuarial Assumptions The total OPEB liabilities as of June 30, 2018 are determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

2018
Valuation Date June 30, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2017
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 6.75%
Inflation 2.50%
Payroll Growth 3.80%-9.40%
Projected Salary Increase Varies (1)
Investment Rate of Return 6.75% (2)
Mortality 3)
Healthcare cost trend rates )]

(1) Depending on age and service.

(2) Net of OPEB trust investment expenses, including inflation.

(3) Mortality rates are based on the 2016 California PERS (CalPERS) Pension report and
includes a projection to 2028 using scale BB to account for anticipated future mortality
improvement.

(4) Medical inflation was based on the “Getzen” model published by the Society of Actuaries for
purposes of evaluating long term medical trend. A margin to reflect the impact of the excise
tax in future years is reflected in the assumed trend. The trend also reflects the removal of
the Health Insurer Fee for calendar year 2019. This fee will be assessed again in calendar
year 2020.

46



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Discount Rate The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the Agency’s contributions will be made at rates equal
to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB trust investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. To the extent that OPEB trust assets
are insufficient to finance all OPEB benefits, the discount rate should be based on 20-year tax-exempt AA or
higher Municipal Bonds as of the measurement date.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table (net of
administrative expenses):

For measurement period ending June 30, 2017:

Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity 57.00% 7.92%
US Fixed Income 27.00% 6.83%
Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities 5.00% 3.95%
Real Estate Investment Trusts 8.00% 7.56%
Commodities 3.00% 5.47%
For measurement period ending June 30, 2016:
Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity 57.00% 8.53%
US Fixed Income 27.00% 6.46%
Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities 5.00% 4.19%
Real Estate Investment Trusts 8.00% 7.95%
Commodities 3.00% 6.12%

47



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Increase/(Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Description Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)

Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 33,365,151 $ 22,735,392 $ 10,629,759
Service cost incurred 909,576 - 909,576
Interest on total OPEB liability 2,256,395 - 2,256,395
Differences between actual and expected
experience - - -
Change in assumption - - -
Change in benefits - - -
Contributions — employer - 3,914,644 (3,914,644)
Contributions — employee - - -
Net investment income - 2,390,569 (2,390,569)
Differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments - - -
Benefit payments (1,721,416) (1,721,416) -
Administrative expense - (11,683) 11,683

Net changes 1,444,555 4,572,114 (3,127,559)
Balance at June 30, 2018 $ 34,809,706 $ 27,307,506 $ 7,502,200

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Plan, calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the
net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (5.75%)
or 1-percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

Discount Rate — 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
2018 (5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)
Plan’s Net OPEB Liability $ 11,650,819 $ 7,502,200 $ 4,051,503

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates.

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Plan, as well as what the Plan's net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point
higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare Costs Current Healthcare Healthcare Costs
Trend Rate —1% Costs Trend Trend Rate + 1%
2018 Rate
Plan’s Net OPEB Liability $ 4,147,668 $ 7,502,200 $ 11,678,446

48



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ending June 30, 2018, the Agency incurred OPEB expense of $1,413,889. At June 30, 2018, the
Agency has deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB as follows:

2018 Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Changes in assumptions $ - $ -

Differences between actual and expected experience - -
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments - (626,804)

Total $ - $ (626,804)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in future
OPEB expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows/(Inflows)

Measurement Period Ended June 30: of Resources
2018 $ (156,701)
2019 (156,701)
2020 (156,701)
2021 (156,701)
2022 -
Thereafter -
Total $ (626,804)

Payable to the OPEB Plan At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Agency did not have an outstanding amount of
contributions payable to the OPEB plan required for the year ended.

During fiscal year-end June 30, 2017, the annual required contribution and funded status of the OPEB plan
were determined based on current cost trends of the CalPERS health plans in which the employees currently
participate at the time of the actuarial valuation. The June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation was prepared on the
basis of the OPEB assumption model, as prescribed by the CalPERS, in effect at the time of the valuation.

The funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions are subject to periodic revision based on
actual results, changes in assumptions or plan provisions, and new estimates of expected future circumstances.
Future actuarial valuations will be performed every two years, as prescribed by CalPERS.

The Agency’s 2017 annual required contribution (based on actuarially established rates) was determined as
part of a June 30, 2015, actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The primary
actuarial assumptions included: valuation using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method, 7.00% annual discount
rate, payroll growth of 0.29% to 10.87%, 2.50% inflation, and maximum employer contribution increases
derived from the Getzen Model for developing long-term health care cost trends.

49



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

NOTE H -- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Power Exchange Agreement On behalf of certain of its members, the Agency has entered into a seasonal
exchange agreement with Seattle City Light whereby the companies exchange 60 megawatts of summer capacity
and 90,580 megawatt hours of energy in exchange for a return of 46 megawatts of capacity and 108,696
megawatt hours of energy in the winter. The term of the agreement terminated in May 2018.

Power Purchase Contracts The Agency had commitments of approximately $27.8 million in connection with
various power purchase contracts as of June 30, 2018. The contracts, extending through December 2020, are
normal purchases at agreed to contract prices for fixed quantities of energy. Certain of the Agency’s members
have individually entered into certain other long-term contracts, which the Agency dispatches and schedules for
them. See Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Fuel Supply Agreements The Agency has entered into the following agreements to provide natural gas fuel
supply for use in its generation resources:

o A 30-year agreement terminating in October 2023 with various natural gas pipeline management companies
under which the Agency has acquired firm natural gas pipeline transportation capacity in four separate
natural gas pipelines between Alberta, Canada and northern California. The estimated minimum annual
natural gas transmission commitment is approximately $720,000. The Agency’s firm natural gas pipeline
transportation capacity is scheduled by Mercuria Energy Gas Trading, LLC (Mercuria) pursuant to the term
and conditions of an Asset Management Agreement for Pipeline Transportation Capacity that became
effective on January 1, 2015.

e On behalf of the participants in the Combustion Turbine Project Number One and the Capital Facilities
project, the Agency entered into an agreement with EDF Trading North America, LLC (EDF) effective
January 1, 2013 to provide natural gas supply and scheduling, nomination, balancing and settlement services.
The contract automatically renews each year on January 1, unless terminated earlier by six-months written
notice by either party.

e The Agency had approximately $10.0 million of gas purchase commitments at June 30, 2018. The
commitments, extending through December 2020, are normal purchases at agreed to prices for fixed
quantities of gas.

Western Area Power Administration Base Resource A number of the Agency’s members, who had an
aggregate 18.87957% of the Base Resource Contract with the Western Area Power Administration to receive
electric power from the Central Valley Project in California, have assigned their shares to the Agency in order
to create a power resource portfolio for the mutual benefit of participating Agency members. The assignments
terminate the earlier of December 31, 2024 or 60 days after Western approves a reassignment.

Geothermal Rovalties Under terms of federal geothermal leasehold agreements, the Agency is required to pay
royalties to the United States (U.S.) on the value of geothermal steam produced. Currently, the effective rate of
such royalties is 3.6% of an amount based on the Agency’s monthly weighted average cost of
third-party wholesale electricity purchases made by Agency members participating in the Geothermal Project.
The U.S. Department of the Interior, Office of Natural Resources Revenue maintains the right to periodically
review and withdraw their approval or to change this methodology should operations, market conditions, or
Federal regulations change.

50



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Geothermal Steam Production & Decommissioning Steam for the Agency’s geothermal plants comes from
lands in the Geysers area, which are leased by the Agency from the federal government. The Agency operates
these steam-supply areas. Operation of the geothermal plants at high generation levels, together with high steam
usage by others in the same area, resulted in a decline in the steam production from the steam wells at a rate
greater than expected. As a result, by April 1988, for the purpose of slowing the decline in the steam field
capability, the Agency changed its steam field production from base-load to load-following and reduced average
annual generation. These changes were effective in reducing the decline in steam production.

Beginning in 1991, along with other steam field operators in the area, the Agency began implementing various
operating strategies to further reduce the rate of decline in steam production. The Agency has modified both
steam turbine units at Plant 1 and the associated steam collection system to enable generation with lower pressure
steam at higher mass-flow rates to optimize the utilization of the available steam resource.

The Agency also entered into agreements with other producers in the Geysers area to finance and construct the
Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline Project, which was completed in September 1997 and began operating soon
thereafter. The 26-mile pipeline collects wastewater from Lake County Sanitation District treatment plants at
Clearlake and Middletown and delivers the wastewater to the Agency and the other Geysers steam field
operators for injection into the steam field. A second pipeline enhancement project to further augment the
wastewater injection program was completed in 2004.

Based on current operating protocols and forecasted operations, the Agency expects both the average and peak
capacity to continue to decrease, reaching approximately 72 MWG (megawatts gross) by calendar year 2039,

Under terms of the federal geothermal leasehold agreements, which became effective August 1, 1974, the
leasehold had a 10-year primary term with provision for renewal as long thereafter as geothermal steam is
produced or utilized, but not longer than 40 years. At the expiration of that period, if geothermal steam is still
being produced, the Agency has preferential right to renew the leasehold for a second term. The leasehold also
requires the Agency to remove its leasehold improvements including the geothermal plants and steam gathering
system when, and if, the Agency abandons the leasehold. The Agency obtained an updated decommissioning
costs study in December, 2016. These decommissioning costs are currently estimated to total approximately
$59.3 million. The Agency has been collecting monies to pay the expected decommissioning costs since 2007
and currently holds approximately $18.1 million in a reserve for such purpose as of June 30, 2018.

CLAIMS AND LITIGATION

California Energy Crisis During 2000 and 2001, California experienced extreme fluctuations in the prices and
supplies of natural gas and electricity in much of the State. While there has been progress in addressing these
issues, uncertainty remains. As a result, no assurance can be given that measures undertaken, together with
measures to be taken in the future, will prevent the recurrence of shortages, price volatility or other energy
problems that have adversely affected California electric utilities in the past. The Agency has settled with the
plaintiffs in related litigation, and while the settlement has been approved by FERC, there are still some claims
by others that remain ongoing. Although the Agency considers these claims to be lacking in merit, no assurance
thereof can be given until all proceedings are finally concluded.

51



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Following a July 10, 2018 FERC order generally accepting the CAISO and CALPX’s filings calculating the
refunds owed by all participants in the ISO and PX markets, the California parties have begun the process of
reconciling the amounts recorded by the ISO and PX with all the settlements entered into by the California
Parties (including the settlement with NCPA). Following that process, some adjustments may need to be made
to account for differences between the interest owed and interest actually collected on certain escrow accounts.
NCPA is unlikely to be affected by any such adjustments.

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions The California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (also known as
California Assembly Bill 32 or AB 32) requires the gradual reduction of state-wide GHG emissions to the 1990
level by 2020. The California Air Resources Board (CARB) is the state agency charged with monitoring GHG
levels and adopting regulations to implement and enforce AB 32. The CARB has approved various regulations,
including regulations that established a state-wide, comprehensive ‘‘cap-and-trade’” program that sets a
gradually declining limit (or ‘‘cap’’) on the amount of GHGs that may be emitted by the major sources of GHG
emissions each year. GHG emissions are measured in metric tons (MT) of carbon dioxide-equivalent
greenhouse gases (COze) per year.

The cap and trade program’s first two-year compliance period, which began January 1, 2013, applies to the
electricity generation and large industrial sectors. The next compliance period, from January 1, 2015 through
December 31, 2017, expanded to include the natural gas supply and transportation sectors, effectively covering
all the capped sectors until 2020. In July 2017, CARB adopted an updated set of cap-and-trade regulations that
extends the cap-and-trade program to 2030. The updated regulations continue the direct allocation of allowances
to distribution utilities which in turn can be transferred by members to the Agency.

The Agency’s Lodi Energy Center gas plant, Steam Injected Gas Turbine gas plant and electricity imports
(purchased power) are subject to the compliance rules established by CARB for the cap-and-trade program. As
such, the Agency acquires sufficient compliance instruments to cover its compliance obligations or receives
transfers of required compliance instruments from its project participants. At June 30, 2018, the Agency had
cumulative compliance obligation of 1,093,971 MT with 1,242,482 MT of acquired allowances to meet its
compliance obligation. At June 30, 2017, the Agency had cumulative compliance obligation of 902,456 MT
with 1,097,509 MT of acquired allowances to meet it compliance obligation.

Other Factors Affecting the Electric Utility Industry Electric industry market participants, such as the
Agency and its members, continue to face numerous potential risks and uncertainties including, but not limited
to, significant volatility in energy prices and increased transmission and ancillary services costs; new federal
and state renewable energy, operating efficiency, and environmental standards; and, global pressures on
economic and financial market conditions. The Agency and its members continue to study and to take various
actions in an effort to mitigate and manage these risk and uncertainties. However, the Agency cannot predict
either the ultimate outcome of these ongoing changes or whether such outcome will have a material adverse
effect on its financial position or results of operations.

Other Legal Matters The Agency is engaged in various legal proceedings before federal and state courts and
various administrative tribunals incidental to the Agency’s operations.

Based on its review of the aforementioned proceedings with outside legal counsel, the Agency believes that the
ultimate aggregate liability, if any, resulting from these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on
the combined financial position or results of operations of the Agency.

52



NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Claims On September 9, 2015, a major wildfire (The Valley Fire) occurred in the California counties of Lake,
Napa, and Sonoma. The fire burned approximately 74,000 acres and destroyed approximately 1,960 structures
including homes, commercial properties, and other minor structures. The Agency’s Geysers geothermal and
effluent projects are located in Lake County, and some of those facilities were damaged in the fire. Damage
and reparation costs totaled $1.74 million in 2015 and 2016. A Presidential Disaster Declaration was issued on
September 22, 2015. Public Assistance was added to the Disaster Declaration on October 9, 2015. The Agency
recovered $531,317 from the project insurance policy in fiscal year 2017. Additionally, the Agency seeks to
recover public assistance grants and will record those proceeds in other non-operating revenue in the fiscal year
in which they are received.

In December, 2015, the Hydroelectric Project Adit 4 Tunnel Spoils incurred water related damage that required
remediation to stabilize the site and prevent further erosion to Clark Creek. The Adit 4 Tunnel Spoils (Spoils)
are located approximately 1.5 miles up canyon from the Collierville Powerhouse in Calaveras County and are
part of the water conveyance tunnel between McKays Point Diversion Dam and the Collierville Power House.
Damage and reparation costs are estimated to be $4.5 million. Construction was completed in late summer
2018, and final invoices are pending. The Agency recovered $2,100,000 from the project insurance policy in
fiscal year 2018.

During the period of January 3-12, 2017, severe winter storms caused flooding and mudslides in many California
Counties. As a result of those storms, the Beaver Creek Diversion Dam and McKays Point Reservoir filled with
sediment and debris, and Beaver Creek required emergency dredging after the river flows receded during the
summer. Additionally, much of the Project was inaccessible for weeks as a result of numerous road failures.
Repair costs totaled approximately $2.2 million. Construction was completed in fall 2017. The Agency
recovered $1,270,036 from the project insurance policy in fiscal year 2018. On February 14,2017, a Presidential
Disaster Declaration was issued including federal disaster assistance. The Agency seeks to recover public
assistance grants and will record those proceeds in other non-operating revenue in the fiscal year in which they
are received.

NOTE I - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On September 10, 2018 California passed SB 100 setting a 100% clean electricity goal for the state, and issued
an executive order establishing a new target to achieve carbon neutrality by 2045. SB 100 modifies the existing
Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) Program to require 60% of electric retail sales to come from eligible
renewable energy resources by December 31, 2030. The modified RPS requires eligible renewables to account
for 44% of retail sales by December 31, 2024, 52% by December 31, 2027, and 60% by December 31, 2030.

The bill also makes it the policy of the state that RPS-eligible renewable energy resources and zero-carbon
resources supply 100% of electric retail sales to California end-use customers and 100% of electricity procured
to serve all state agencies by December 31, 2045. While the 60% RPS is limited to currently identified RPS-
eligible technologies, the remaining 40% can consist of other zero-carbon resources such as large hydro. The
provisions of SB 100 are effective January 1, 2019.

The Agency has not determined the financial impact of this new regulation.

53



Required Supplementary
Information



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability
and Related Ratios Last 10 Measurement Years *

Total Pension Liability
Service cost
Interest on total pension liability
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions

Changes in benefits
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions

Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer

Contributions - employee

Net investment income

Benefit payments

Administrative expense
Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

Net pension liability - ending (a)-(b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

Covered - employee payroll

Net pension liability as percentage of covered-
employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:

(UNAUDITED)
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014
$ 3,548,776 $ 3,152,017 $ 3,256,167 $ 3,220,329
10,678,090 10,328,232 9,734,270 9,285,364
(1,980,198) 581,539 (1,437,389) -
8,835,307 - (2,354,661) -
(6,410,415) (5,988,393) (5,522,982) (5,059,144)
14,671,560 8,073,395 3,675,405 7,446,549
143,919,618 135,846,223 132,170,818 124,724,269
$ 158,591,178 $ 143,919,618 $ 135,846,223  $ 132,170,818
$ 6,752,236 $ 5,406,928 $ 5584985 $ 5507642
1.556.483 1,453,722 1,433,343 1,410,488
8,979,321 434,144 1,754,108 10,868,237
(6,410,415) (5,988,393) (5,522,982) (5,059,144)
(117,127) (47,581) (87,934) -
10,760,498 1,258,820 3,161,520 12,727,223
79,331,018 78,072,198 74,910,678 62,183,455
$ 90,091,516 $ 79,331,018 $ 78,072,198 § 74,910,678
$ 68,499,662 $ 64,588,600 $ 57,774,025 $ 57,260,140
56.81% 55.12% 57.47% 56.68%
$ 18,573,174 $ 18,121,290 $ 18,365,293 $ 17,596,462
368.81% 356.42% 314.58% 32541%

Benefit changes The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes,
which occurred after June 30, 2017. This applies for voluntary benefit changes as well as any offers to Two Years
Additional Service Credit (aka Golden Handshakes).

Changes in assumptions In 2017, CalPERS reduced the discount rate from 7.65% to 7.15%. In 2016, GASB 68
was modified to state that the long-term expected rate of return should be determined net of pension plan investment
expense but without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. Accordingly, the discount rate was changed
from 7.50 percent (net of administrative expense in 2014) to 7.65 percent as of June 30, 2015 measurement date to

reflect this required methodology change.

* Measurement fiscal year 2014 was the first year of implementation, therefore only four years are shown.

54



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - Continued
(UNAUDITED)
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years *

FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 6,263,130 § 5,715,970 $ 5,406,928 $ 5,065.861
Contributions in Relation to the
Actuarially Determined Contribution (7,769,768) (6,752,236) (5,406,928) (5,584.985)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ (1,506,638) $ (1,036,266) $ 0 $ (519.124)
Covered-Employee Payroll! $ 19,556,203 §$ 18,573,174 $ 18,121,290 $ 18,365,293
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-
Employee Payroll! 39.73% 36.35% 29.84% 30.41%

1 Covered-Employee Payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings provided by the employer. However, GASB
68 defines covered-employee payroll as the total payroll of employees that are provided pensions through the pension plan.
Pensionable earnings are covered employee payroll reduced for earnings and other earnings adjustments not subject to
pension contributions.

* Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only four years are shown.

55



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION- Continued
(UNAUDITED)
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and
Related Ratios Last 10 Measurement Years *

FY 2017
Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 909,576
Interest on total OPEB liability 2,256,395
Differences between expected and actual experience -
Changes in assumptions -
Changes in benefits -
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions (1,721,416)
Net change in total OPEB liability 1,444,555
Total OPEB liability - beginning 33,365,151
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 34,809,706
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 3,914,644
Contributions - employee -
Net investment income 2,390,569
Benefit payments (1,721,416)
Administrative expense (11,683)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 4,572,114
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 22,735,392
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 27,307,506
Net OPEB liability - ending (a)-(b) $ 7,502,200
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
OPEB liability 78.45%
Covered - employee payroll $ 18,573,174
Net OPEB liability as percentage of covered-employee
payroll 40.39%

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit changes The benefit payments for FY 2017 consist of pay-as-you-go cost of $1,394,637 plus estimated
implicit rate subsidy of $326,779.

Changes in assumptions NCPA funds, at minimum, the Actuarially Determined Contribution to the OPEB fund.
During measurement period ending June 30, 2017, discount rate decreased from 7.00% to 6.75%.

* Measurement fiscal year 2017 was the first year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown.

56



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - Continued
(UNAUDITED)
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years *

FY 2018
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 1,426,947
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially
Determined Contribution (3,454,933)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ (2,027,985)
Covered-Employee Payroll $ 19,556,203
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-
Employee Payroll! 17.67%

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown.

Valuation Date:
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal
year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and Assumptions used to Determine Contributions Rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Cost Method

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Amortization period 15 years

Asset valuation method 5 year smoothed market

Discount rate 6.75 percent

Healthcare cost trend rates 3.50% for pre-65 and 2.25% for post-65

Salary increases 3.00 percent

Investment rate of return 6.75 percent

Retirement age In the 2017 actuarial valuation, expected retirement ages of
general employees were adjusted to more closely reflect actual
experience.

Mortality Rates based on statistics taken from the latest California PERS

(CalPERS) Pension Valuation Report. The mortality rates include an
assumed improvement in future mortality based on Scale BB projected
to 2028.

57



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - Continued
(UNAUDITED)
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

June 30, 2017 GASB 45 Information

Trend Information for the OPEB Plan

Percentage of

Fiscal Year Annual Required Annual OPEB Actual OPEB  Net OPEB OPEB Cost
Ended Contribution Cost Contributions  Obligation Contributed
June 30,2013 $§ 1,049,873 $ 1,049,873 $ 1,506,882 $§ (457,009) 144%
June 30,2014 $ 871,135 $ 871,135 $§ 2,094,609 $ (1,223,474) 240%
June 30,2015 $ 889,447 $ 889,447 $ 1,535,620 §$ (646,173) 173%
June 30,2016 $§ 2,301,880 $ 2,306,684 $ 1,486,108 $ 820,576 64%
Funded Status of the OPEB Fund
Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Actuarial Liability
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Annual as % of
Actuarial Accrued Value of Unfunded Funded Covered Payroll
Valuation Date Liability Assets Liability Ratio Payroll [(a) - (b)]
(@) (b) (a) - (b) b /@ () /()
June 30, 2008 $ 16,114,250 $ 12,213,980 $ 3,900,270 75.8% $ 15,491,511 25.2%
June 30, 2010 $ 18,936,156 $ 13,975,353 $ 4,960,803 73.8% $ 16,355,901 30.3%
June 30, 2011* $21,599,763 $ 14,464,987 $7,134,776 67.0% $ 16,672,248 42.8%
June 30, 2013 $ 22,477,396 $ 17,529,070 $ 4,948,326 78.0% $17,564,711 28.2%
June 30, 2015%* $ 36,724,032 $ 22,291,159 $14,432,873 60.7% $ 17,941,846 80.4%

* The discount rate was changed from 7.75%, which was used in all prior years’ actuarial valuations, to 7.61% for June 30,

2011 through June 30, 2014, as prescribed by CalPERS.

** The discount rate was changed from 7.61% to 7.00% for the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation, as prescribed by CalPERS.

58



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
(000's omitted)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Participants
Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses
Due from Agency and other programs*
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash snd cash cquivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Preliminary survey and investigation costs
Investment in associated company
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

* Eliminated in Combination

June 30, 2018
GENERATING & TRA ON RESOURCES
Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital cr Lodi Transmission Power & Member Other
Geothermal Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Energy Center No. One Transmission Services Agency Combined
H 1 - 18 18 73S -8 -8 7 38414 § 38,561
- - - - - - - - 36,963 36,963
- - - - 59 = - 734 157 950
R - - - - - 1,169 - 628 1,797
- - - - - . 84 - 35 319
4500 1,079 642 1,405 2111 - - - - 9,746
29 351 26 38 286 s 3 1 570 15712
16446 10,704 2210 (1,202) 8673 - 17,246 14,617 (68,694) -
21246 12,134 2879 222 11202 - 18,499 15,433 8273 89,908
8,499 29,175 927 - 4,054 - 7,738 - 15,042 65,435
20,590 32,248 5018 - 21,114 - 19,358 - 55,502 153,830
89 173 16 - 91 - - - m 640
29178 61.596 5961 - 25,259 - 27,096 70,815 219905
570210 394,821 64,844 36,517 423,805 7,736 - 739 5949 1,504,621
(535,654) (262.126) (48.363) 34478) (B1554) (7.736) - (398) (3.057) (973466)
34,556 132,595 16,481 2,039 342,251 - - 31 pX) 531,185
- - - - 182 - - - - 182
34,556 132.595 16.481 2,039 342,433 - - 341 2,59 531,337
217 134,741 10,608 - 23,789 - - - 61,792 231,147
- - - - - - - 13 - 18
- - - - - - - - 265 26§
217 134,741 10,608 - 23,789 - - 8 62,057 231430
85,197 341,066 35,925 2,281 402,683 B 45,595 15,792 144,037 1,072,580
1,585 37,268 893 - 2,130 - . - : 41,876
- - - - - = - - 19200 19,200
1,585 37,268 893 - 2,130 - = - 19,200 61.076
$ 86,782 378334 $ 36822 S 2281 § 404813 § - s 45505 § 15792 S 163237 § 1,133,656

59



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

(000's omitted)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Member advances
Operating reserves
Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued interest payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension and OPEB liability
Operating reserves and other depusits
Interest rate swap liaility
Long-term debt, net

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits
Pension and OPEB deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:
Debt service
Other programs

Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION

June 30, 2018
‘GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES
Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital Lodi Power & Member Other
‘Geothermal Hydroelectric Facilities Energy Center ‘Transmission Transmission Services Agency Combined
176§ 713 8 25 - 8 1362 § 10319 § 501 8924 § 22,020
791 - - < - E 277 - 1,068
6213 249 514 703 13,649 R - - 21,328
4,250 22,610 3,995 - 11,480 . _ R 42,338
347 6,364 710 - 1,217 : R R 8,638
11,777 29,936 5244 703 27,708 10319 778 894 95389
- - - = - - - 76,002 76,002
19,667 17,089 - - 1,716 27,180 7,938 70,816 144,406
5 11,109 - - - = - - 11,109
24,520 308,657 30,228 - 331,192 - - 694,597
44,187 336.855 3028 - 332,908 27,180 7.938 146,818 926,114
55,964 366,791 35472 703 360,616 37,499 8,716 155,742 1,021,503
18,895 4,156 941 2,204 40,953 - 278 3,463 70,890
- a 2 - < - - 3,195 3,195
18,895 4,156 941 2204 40,953 - 278 6,658 74.085
(5,892) @7214) @137 - 12,876) - - - 63,119)
8,554 32,488 5,251 - 12,846 - - - 59,135
@7 1,560 - - o) - 18 - 1,179
9,540 10,553 2,295 (626) 3394 8,096 6,780 837 40,869
11923 7387 409 (626) 3244 8,096 6,798 837 38,068
86,782 § 378334 § 36,822 21_2 $ MNB_IS $ 45595 § 15,792 163237 § 1,133, ,Sis_

3



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

(000's omitted)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES
Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital cr Lodi Power & Member Other
G Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Energy Center Transmission Transmission Services Agency Combined
OPERATING REVENUES
Participants $ 4,403 § 18,964 § 6453 § 1,58 § 26,570 § - 303,116 § 19875 § 825 § 381,762
Other third-party 28,381 28,445 1194 2523 51455 - 64,476 2,647 - 179.121
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 32,784 47,409 7,647 4.079 78,025 367592 22522 825 560,383
OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power 400 2,841 364 392 4,789 - 215411 - - 224,197
Operations 15,501 3,971 1,756 1,844 37,776 - 3,452 9,800 - 74,190
Transmission 302 ) Q@0 a0 812 - 136,194 5 - 137,251
Depreciation 3897 9,663 2207 184 14,612 - E 40 312 30915
Maintenance 5348 8,198 677 1,937 524 - - u3 - 21,497
Administrative and general 4,946 4,691 724 75 4,402 - - 7,834 @232 21,140
Intercompany (ssles) purchases, net* (666) 270 64 11 295 - 5 74) K -
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 29818 29,602 5772 5233 67.910 - 355,057 17.718 (1.920) 509.190
NET OPERATING REVENUES 2.966 17.807 1878 (1.154) 10,115 - 12535 4,804 2,745 51.693
NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense ©46) (15,961) 2.696) - (15,185) - - - - (34,728
Interestincome 320 446 8 - 172 - 428 43 amn) 1,
Other 20 3,564 1471 - 2,440 - - 44 388 7924
TOTAL NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES (606) (11.891) 01,217) - (12573) - 428 87 213 25559
FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS (516) (11,268) (863) - 2,136 - - - (1,301 11,812
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS 2.994) 1,058) 151 428 @.641) - (1,099) (2,585) (214) (10.314)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION (1,150 (6,410) (356) (726) @,963) - 11,864 2,306 1,443 4,008
NET POSITION, Beginning of year 13,073 13.797 765 100 6207 - (3.768) 4492 (606) 34.060
NET POSITION, End of year $ 11923 § 7387 S 409 s (626) 8 3244 S - 8,096 S 6798 S 837 § 38.068

* Eliminated in Combination

61



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
(000's omitted)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from participants
Received from others
Payments for employee services
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments from(to) other programs *
NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments
Interest received on cash and investments
Purchase of investments
NET CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of electric plant
Interest paid on Jong-term debt
Principal repayment on long-term debt
Proceeds from bond issues
Payments to refund debt
NET CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Investment in associated company
Refunds to participants
Payments from(to) other programs *
NET CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Beginning of year
End of year

* Eliminated in Combination

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

GENERATING & TR. RESOURCES
iple Purchased Associated
Capital CT Lodi Power & Member Other Combined
Geothermal Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Energy Center _ Transmission Transmission Services Agency Total
3,688 § 19,098 § 6462 § 1873 § 25144 8 303,724 § 19,237 § 1,108 § 380,335
30,310 29,613 1,194 2,523 51,455 3173 2,647 (10,100) 180,815
12,252 (5,784) ©57) 1,395) (6,:670) - (11,642) - (38,700)
14,277) (13,979) @520) (3,503) (44,863) (364,213) 1,700 2,585 (439,070)
666 270) 64) (111) 295) - 74 - -
8,135 28,678 4,115 (613) 24771 12,684 12,016 6,406) 83,380
14,191 30,136 4,952 - 22,706 9,014 - 18,450 99,449
482 511 59 - 401 57 43 1179 3,246
(18.21T) {34,217y (5,012) - {23,937y {10,029) - (37,832) (129,244)
(3,544) (3,570) 1] - 830) (444) 43 (18,203) (26,549)
(Y] (547 as @7n2) (240) - 76) 647 @a411)
78) (15,856) 1,783) - (15,537) - - - (33,954)
(3,995) (21,385) 3,760) - (10,690) - - - (39,830)
N 78,468 - - 38,970 - - - 117,438
- (78.948) - - (38.766) - - - (117,714)
(5.484) (38.268) (5,561) Q72) (26,263) = (76) (547 (76.471)
20 3,564 1,471 - 2,440 - 26 385 7,906
(2,994) (1,058) (151) 428 (2,641) 1,099 (2,585) 214 (10,314)
1,888 7,907 97 457 1474 (7,296) 9,392) 4,865 -
(1,086) 10,413 1,417 885 1273 (8,395) (11,951) 5,036 (2,408)
(1,979) (2,747 @0 - (1,049) 3,845 32 (20,120) (22,048)
10479 31,922 958 1 5,176 3,893 39 73,576 126,044
8,500 § 29,175 § 928 § 18 4,127 $ 7,738 § s 53456 § 103,996
—_——

62



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - Continued
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
(000's omitted)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

GENERATING & TR. N E
Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital T Lodi Power & Member Other
Geothermal Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Energy Center Transmission Transmission Services Agency Combined
RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES TO
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 2,966 § 17,807 § 1875 § (1,154) 8 10,115 § - 12,535 § 4804 § 2,745 § 51,693
Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenues
to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation 3,897 9,664 2206 183 14,613 - - 40 312 30,915
6,863 27,471 4,081 o1) 24,728 - 12,535 4,844 3,057 82,608
CASH FLOWS IMPACTED BY CHANGES IN
Accounts receivable - - 64 225 (e8] - 4,589 (686) (233) 3,900
Inventory, prepaid expense, and unused vendor credits 4 an @ @ (26) - - 7 (205) (263)
Operating reserves and other deposits 1,929 1,168 1 60 1,244 - 4,716 7,899 9.972) 7,045
Member advances - - - - - - - 75 - 75
Regulatory credits (715) 133 (e03) 93 (1,368) - - @7 389 (1,549)
Accounts payable 14 {17y 25 (16) 252 - (9,156} (96) 558 (8,436)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES § 8,135 § 28,678 § 4115 § (613) § 24771 § - 12,684 § 11,26 $ (6,406) S 83,380
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS TO STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
Cash and cash equivalents - current assets H 18 - 18 15 3 s - - 718 38414 § 38,561
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted assets 8.499 29,175 927 4,054 - 7,738 - 15,042 65,435
End of year $ 8,500 § 29,175 § &l $ 15 4127 § - 7,738 § 718 53456 $ 103,996




SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
(000's omitted)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Participants
Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses
Due from Agency and other programs*
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable

TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Unused vendor credits
Investment in associated company
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

* Himinated in Combination

June 30, 2017
GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES
Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital cT Lodi Transmission Power & Member Other
Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Enerjzy Center No. One Transmission Services Apency Combined
18 -8 18 1 7§ - - 39 45,665 § 45,779
- - - - - - - 24,825 24,825
- - 64 25 - - 608 48 52 997
- - - - - 5,150 - 500 5,650
- - - - - - 61 - 110 171
4,509 1,079 642 1,405 2,11t . - R . 9746
320 274 24 34 260 - - 18 385 1,285
18.334 18,611 2307 (745) 10,147 - 9950 5,228 (63.829) -
23,164 19,964 3,038 920 12,590 - 15,769 5330 7.678 88453
10,478 31,922 957 - 5,104 - 3,893 - 27911 80,265
16,767 28,290 5,008 - 20,191 - 18,509 - 52,277 141,042
48 15§ 16 - 45 - - - 252 478
27293 60327 5,981 - 25,340 - 22402 - 80,440 221.783
568,991 394,274 64,826 36,245 423,640 7,736 - 663 5,358 1,501,733
(531.919) (252,562) (46,157) (34,295) (66,941) (7.736) - (358) (2,745) (942,713)
37,072 141,712 18,669 1,950 356,699 - - 305 2613 559,020
670 - - = 107 - - - 44 821
37,742 141.712 18.669 1,950 356,806 - - 308 2,657 559.841
733 146,009 11,471 - 21,652 - - - 56,380 236,245
14 - - = * - - - 10 24
747 146,009 11,471 - 21,652 - - - 56,390 236,269
88,946 368,012 39,159 2,870 416,388 - 38,171 5,635 147,165 1,106,346
1,831 44,223 2,052 - - - - - £ 48,106
- : : = = = - - 13,506 13,506
1,831 44,223 2,052 - - - - - 13,506 61612
90,777 _§ GLLLIS S 41,211 § 2,870 416,388 § - 38,171 5,635 160,671 $ 1,167 958

64



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
(000's omitted)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounty payable and accrued expenses
Member advances
Operating reserves
Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued interest payahle

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension liability
Operating reserves and other depsits
Interest rate swap liability
Long-term debt, net

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

INFLOWS OF ES
Regulatory credits
Pension deferrals
‘TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:
Debt service
Other programs

Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION

June 30, 2017
GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES
‘Mulfiple Purchased Associated
Capital cr Lodi Power & Member Other
Geothermal Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Energy Center ___Transmission Transmission Services Agency Combined
162§ 730 S -8 16 1110 S 19475 S 597 § 8366 S 30,456
791 = . . . - 202 - 993
6213 250 513 643 12,405 - - - 20,024
3,995 21,385 3,760 - 10,355 - - - 39,495
425 8,044 775 - 1,338 F - - 10,582
11,586 30,409 5,048 659 25208 19,475 799 8.366 101,550
R - - - - E - 64,589 64,589
17,738 15,920 - - 1,716 22,464 39 0,788 138,665
- 15,173 - - - - - - 15,173
28,770 332,913 34,403 - 340,936 - = 737,022
46,508 364,006 34,403 - 342,652 22464 39 145377 955,449
58,094 394,415 39,451 659 367,860 41,939 838 153,743 1,056,999
19,610 4023 995 2,111 42,321 - 305 3,074 72,439
- - - - - - - 4460 4460
19,610 4023 995 2111 42321 - 305 7534 76899
6,360) (36,963) ©922) - (12,783) - - 837 (62,191)
8,520 30815 5206 - 12,863 - - - 57424
269) 1,502 - - ()] - - (349) 845
11182 18.443 2481 100 6.146 (3.768) 4492 (1,094) 37582
13073 13,797 765 100 6207 (3.768) 4492 (656) 34.060
90.777_§ 412235 § 41211 s 2370 4163888 38171 8 5635 8 160,671 § 1.167.958

65



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
(000's omitted)

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other third-party
TOTAL SALES FOR RESALE

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
Intercompany (sales) purchases, net*
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES
NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year
NET POSITION, End of year

* Eliminated in Combination

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
GENERATING & TR. RESOURCES
Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital cT Lodi Power & Member
Geothermal Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Energy Center Transmission Transmission Services Agency Combined

8277 § 26539 7354 § 289 § 36,145 § 235251 § 18,129 § 319§ 334913
27,602 34127 468 1498 15823 - 52292 15 - 131825
35879 60,666 7822 4397 51,968 287543 18,144 319 466,738
- - - - 3,000 - 189,806 - - 192,806
15,264 3,398 1,478 1,699 17,133 - 5,087 8,502 27 52,558
758 2,758 85 176 384 - 99,378 5 - 103,544
3,820 9,582 2213 178 14,607 H - 47 297 30,749
5572 5170 703 1,361 4,057 - - 107 - 16,970
4133 3,557 565 616 4,191 - . 7,19 1422 21,680
(601) 225 56 17 276 - - 3) - -
28.946 24,690 5.100 4147 43,648 5 294241 15,784 1746 418307
6933 35.976 2722 250 8320 © (6.698) 2,360 a427) 48,431
(989) as74n 885 - (15,935) . - - - 34,550
16 89 31 - 109 - 185 36 ¢76) 60
833 28 1200 - 8634 - 1957 41 236 12,929
(149) (15,624 (654) - (7.192) - 2,112 77 1410 21,561}
,178) (13,003) (1,606) - 2,495 5 - B 3,274)
(691) (2.787) 97 3 (385) - (1,166) (2.572) 8, 7,499
4924 4562 559 283 3238 - [5) (135) @582) 6,097
8,149 9235 206 (183) 2.969 - 1984 4,627 976 27,963
13073 § 13,797 § 765 _$ 100§ 6207 8 - (3.768) § 4492 (606) § 34,060




SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
(000's omitted)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from participants
Received from others
Payments for employee services
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments from(to) other programs *
NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments
Interest received on cash and investments
Purchase of investments
NET CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of electric plant
Interest paid on long-term debt
Principal repayment on long-term debt
Proceeds from bond issues
Payments to refund debt
NET CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Investment in associated company
Refunds to participants
Payments from(to) other programs *
NET CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Beginning of year
End of year

* Eliminated in Combination

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES
Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital CT Lodi Power & Member Other Combined
Facilities No. One Energy Center _ Transmission Transmission Services Agency Total
7290 $ 26,510 § 7210 § 2,500 § 30,658 $ -8 234,643 8 18,388 § 645 § 327,844
29,608 35,418 468 1,498 15,823 - 48,117 15 3,7 135,318
(11,532) (5,498) (878) 1,184 ®,021) - - (10,817 - (35,930)
(14,602) 0,284 1,950 2,266) (25,358) - (288,868) (5340 75) (348,243)
601 @15) 56) {117 @78) B - 7 - -
11,365 46,921 4,794 431 14,826 - (5,508) 2,319 3,841 78,989
16,003 37,975 4,476 - 21,311 - 5,075 - 28,932 113,772
504 523 49 - 239 - 387 36 852 2,590
(13,776) (23,378) (5,051) - (25,428 - (5,093) - 32,673) (105,399)
2,731 15,120 526) . (3,878) - 369 36 (2,889) 10,963
(962) (338) - - (186) - - ®6) (148) (1,720
1,120) (16,869) (1,934 - (16,467) - - - - (36,390)
3,580) (20,050) (3,670) - 9,950) - - - - 37,250)
15,416 - - - - - - - - 15,416
(15,705) - - - - - - - - (15,705)
5,951) (37,257 5,604) - (26,603) - - (H6) (148) (75,649)
833 28 1,200 - 8,634 - 1,957 41 236 12,929
©91) @787 97 3 (385) - (1,166) .572) @8) (7,499)
(3,845) (4,893) (L)) (464) 4,562 - 5,692 70 645) -
(3,703) (7,652) 820 (@31) 12,811 - 6,483 (2,461) 37 5,430
4,442 17,132 (516) - (2,844) - 1,344 (192) 367 19,733
6,037 14,790 1,474 1 8,020 - 2,549 231 73,209 106,311
10479 § 31,922 § 958 § 18 5176_$ - 8 3,893 § 39 8 73,576 § 126,044

67



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - Continued

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

(000's omitted)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
GENERATING & TRANSMISSION RESOURCES
Multiple Purchased Associated
Capital CT Lodi Power & Member Other
Geothermal Hydroelectric Facilities No. One Energy Center _ Transmission Transmission Services Agency Combined

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES TO
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 6933 S 35976 § 2722 § 250 § 8320 § [OF] (6,698) § 2,360 8 @4an s 48,431
Adjustments to reconcile net operating revenues
to net cash from aperating activities:

Depreciation 3,820 9,582 2213 178 14,607 5 - 47 297 30,749
10,753 45,558 4,935 428 22,927 - (6,698) 2,407 (1,130) 79,180
CASH FLOWS IMPACTED BY CHANGES IN
Accounts receivable 2 - 64 (225) - - (5,313) 220 (82) (5,462)
Inventory, prepaid expense, and unused vendor credits () @2 3 Y] (316) - - (3] 29 (790)
Operating reserves and other deposits 2,004 1,291 - 393 (1,923) - 1,130 (541) 4,223 6,577
Regulatory credits 987) 29 80) 74y (5,487) - - 39 (44 (6,762)
Accounts payable 10y 143 - 16 @375) - 5373 196 640 5,983
Net pension liability and related amounts = - - - - - - - 263 263
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES _§ 11,365 § 42,921 S 4,794 § 431 § 14,826 § - 3 (5,508) § 2,319 § 3,841 § 78,989
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS TO STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
Cash and cash equivalents - current assets H 18 - 18 18 728 -8 -8 3 s 45,665 § 45,779
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted assets 10478 31,922 957 = 5,104 - 3,893 - 27,911 80,265
End of year 5 10479 _$ 31,922 § 958 § 18 5176 _$ - S 3893 § 3 8 73,576 § 126,044
i

68



OTHER INFORMATION
GENERATION ENTITLEMENT SHARES (UNAUDITED)

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Table of Generation Entitlement Shares

LEC Debt Shares

Geothermal Hydroelectric Capital Facilities Combustion Lodi Energy LEC Indenture  LEC Indenture
Project No. 3  Project No. One Project Turbine No. One  Center (LEC) Group A Group B
NCPA Member Participants:
Alameda 16.8825% 10.0000% 19.0000% 21.8200%
BART 6.6000% 11.8310%
Biggs 0.2270% 0.1970% 0.2679% 0.4802%
Gridley 0.3360% 0.3500% 1.9643% 3.5212%
Healdsburg 3.6740% 1.6600% 5.8330% 1.6428% 2.9448%
Lodi 10.2800% 10.3700% 39.5000% 13.3930% 9.5000% 17.0295%
Lompoc 3.6810% 2.3000% 5.0000% 5.8330% 2.0357% 3.6491%
Palo Alto 22.9200%
Plumas-Sierra REC 0.7010% 1.6900% 1.8170% 0.7857% 1.4084%
Roseville 7.8830% 12.0000% 36.5000%
Santa Clara 44.3905% 37.0200% 41.6670% 25.7500% 46.1588%
Ukiah 5.6145% 2.0400% 9.0900% 1.7857% 3.2010%
Other Participants:
Azuza 2.7857% 4.9936%
California Dept. of Water Resources 33.5000% 100.0000%
Modesto Irrigation District 10.7143%
Power & Water Resources Pooling Agency 2.6679% 4.7824%
Turlock Irrigation District 6.3305%
100.0000% 100.0000% 100.0000% 100.0000% 100.0000% 100.000% 100.000%
Note A Note A, B Note A Note B

Note A: Project Entitlement shares are after transfers among participants.

Note B: Project Generation Shares may vary from project cost shares due to varied financing and fuel supply arrangements.

69



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Roseville, California

COMMUNICATION TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
AND MANAGEMENT

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2018



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND ASSOCIATED POWER

CORPORATIONS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Required Communication of Internal Control Related Matters Identified in the
Audit to Those Charged with Governance

Other Communications with Those Charged with Governance
Two Way Communication Regarding Your Audit

Communication of Other Control Deficiencies, Recommendations and Informational Points
to Management that are not Material Weaknesses or Significant Deficiencies

Required Communications by the Auditor with Those Charged with Governance

Management Representations

Page No.



REQUIRED COMMUNICATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL RELATED MATTERS IDENTIFIED IN THE
AUDIT TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE



-5

BAKER TILLY

The Finance Committee
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations
Roseville, California

In planning and performing our audit of the combined financial statements of Northern California Power Agency
and Associated Power Corporations (the “Agency”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered its internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of its internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of its internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Committee, and others
within the organization and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Gk Ty Yochosfi oty 42

Madison, Wisconsin
October 9, 2018

-

BAKER TILLY
INTERNATIONAL

Page 1



OTHER COMMUNICATIONS WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE



TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REGARDING YOUR AUDIT

As part of our audit of your financial statements, we are providing communications to you throughout the
audit process. Auditing requirements provide for two way communication, and these communications are
important in assisting the auditor and you with obtaining more information relevant to the audit.

As this past audit is concluded, we use what we have learned to begin the planning process for next
year’s audit. It is important that you understand the following points about the scope and timing of our
next audit:

a. We address the significant risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, through
our detailed audit procedures.

b. We will obtain an understanding of the five components of internal control sufficient to assess the
risk of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to error or fraud, and to
design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. We will obtain a sufficient
understanding by performing risk assessment procedures to evaluate the design of controls
relevant to an audit of financial statements and to determine whether they have been
implemented. We will use such knowledge to:

> ldentify types of potential misstatements.
> Consider factors that affect the risks of material misstatement.
> Design tests of controls, when applicable, and substantive procedures.

We will not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or
compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant programs.

c. The concept of materiality recognizes that some matters, either individually or in the aggregate,
are important for fair presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles while other matters are not important. In performing the audit, we are
concerned with matters that, either individually or in the aggregate, could be material to the
financial statements. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance that material misstatements, whether caused by errors or fraud, are detected.

We are very interested in your views regarding certain matters. Those matters are listed here:
a. We typically will communicate with your top level of management unless you tell us otherwise.
b. We understand that the Finance Committee has the responsibility to oversee the strategic
financial direction of your organization, as well as the overall accountability of the entity.
Management has the responsibility for achieving the objectives of the entity.

c. We need to know your views about your organization’s objectives and strategies, and the related
business risks that may result in material misstatements.

d. Which matters do you consider warrant particular attention during the audit, and are there any
areas where you request additional procedures to be undertaken?

e. Have you had any significant communications with regulators or grantor agencies?

—~h

Are there other matters that you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements or the
federal or state awards?

Page 2



TWO WAY COMMUNICATION REGARDING YOUR AUDIT (cont.)

Also, is there anything that we need to know about the attitudes, awareness, and actions of the Finance
Committee concerning:

a. The Agency’s internal control and its importance in the entity, including how those charged with
governance oversee the effectiveness of internal control?

b. The detection or the possibility of fraud?

We also need to know if you have taken actions in response to developments in financial reporting, laws,
accounting standards, governance practices, or other related matters, or in response to previous
communications with us.

With regard to the timing of our audit, here is some general information. If necessary, we may do
preliminary financial audit work during the months of June or July. Our final financial fieldwork is
scheduled during the summer to best coincide with your readiness and report deadlines. After fieldwork,
we wrap up our financial audit procedures at our office and may issue drafts of our report for your review.
Final copies of our report and other communications are issued after approval by your staff. This is
typically 6-12 weeks after final fieldwork, but may vary depending on a number of factors.

Keep in mind that while this communication may assist us with planning the scope and timing of the audit
it does not change the auditor’s sole responsibility to determine the overall audit strategy and the audit
plan, including the nature, timing, and extent of procedures necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence.

We realize that you may have questions on what this all means, or wish to provide other feedback. We
welcome the opportunity to hear from you.

Page 3



COMMUNICATION OF OTHER CONTROL DEFICIENCIES, RECOMMENDATIONS AND
INFORMATIONAL POINTS TO MANAGEMENT THAT ARE NOT MATERIAL WEAKNESSES OR
SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES



CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

CAISO PAYABLE RECONCILIATION

The Agency’s participation in the California ISO market requires an accounting of a significant amount of
charge codes and transaction types included on each monthly invoice. Each line item on the CAISO
invoice is recorded in the Agency’s general ledger system dependent upon the type of service and
customer or project involved. At the end of the fiscal year, an accrual is made for the net receivable or
payable from/to CAISO. During the audit, we noted the Agency’s year-end reconciliation of the CAISO
payable account included an unreconciled amount totaling $558,000, an increase of approximately
$94,000 from the previous year. At the conclusion of the audit, it was indeterminate as to what the
variance specifically related to and therefore difficult to identify an appropriate adjustment. The
unreconciled variance was not material to the financial statements, however, it grew significantly from the
prior year. We recommend the Agency work to reconcile the unidentified variance and reconcile the
account monthly.

Management’s Response

Reconciliation of unidentified CAISO payable variance of $558,000 and monthly reconciliation
thereafter. Management agrees. The Agency will reconcile the CAISO payable account and identify the
unreconciled total of $558,000. Thereafter, the Agency will reconcile the payable account monthly and
ensure a full reconciliation is available to auditors by the time final audit fieldwork is performed.

PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

INVENTORY PROCESSES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the course of the current year audit, a review of inventory processes and internal controls was
conducted to understand the control environment supporting inventory. We performed inventory test
counts and tested the valuation methods used to quantify inventory balances included in the financial
statements. Through these testing procedures, we noted several areas in the inventory process where
improvements could be made.

Revision of Inventory Policy — The Agency'’s current inventory policy does not clearly define what an
inventory item is and what is considered a consumable item. The absence of such distinction leads to
inconsistent tracking of purchases made at the plant sites and the use of materials. An inventory
policy should define all policies, procedures and controls surrounding the inventory process including
the identification of obsolete inventory.

General Ledger Balancing — Inventory maintained at the geothermal facility is manually counted by
Agency staff on an annual basis. The detailed counts include a full listing of materials on-hand at the
end of the fiscal year. The total balance of this listing is approximately $1.7M lower than the inventory
balance stated in the financial statements. The inventory listing and general ledger balance should
equal at the end of each fiscal period.

Material Issuances to Work Orders — Properly functioning inventory systems allow for the accurate
tracking of materials from initial purchase to use in operations. The Agency’s current inventory system
records the purchase of materials to the inventory system, however, materials are not issued to work
orders that integrate with Great Plains or reduced from the inventory account. A properly functioning
inventory system allows for accurate tracking of material purchases to the inventory account and
issuances to work orders that post to the GL. This situation contributes to the general ledger
balancing comment noted above.

Page 4



PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (cont.)

INVENTORY PROCESSES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS (cont.)

Establishment of Pricing Method — The Agency’s current inventory listing is formulated using the
average cost pricing method to track the total value of materials. This methodology groups the
purchase price of all materials purchased within a certain material number and averages the total cost
of each purchase regardless of when it is purchased. While this is the case for a majority of the
materials included on the inventory list provided during the audit, we noted multiple prices were
estimated by plant personnel and not based upon historical purchase price. An accurate inventory
listing should using the average costing method for all materials included in the listing.

As a result of the items identified above, it is difficult to assess the accuracy and validity of the inventory
balance included in the financial statements. We were able to gain comfort in the fact that our inventory
test counts revealed trivial differences between inventory listings provided and actual quantities on-hand
and the total overall inventory balance was not material to the financial statements. We recommend the
Agency review its current inventory practices and consider developing improvements to address the
comments noted above.

Status Update - 6/30/2018

During the fiscal year, management began to develop internal policies and procedures surrounding the
inventory process, however, the policies were not finalized or implemented as of the end of the year. We
continue to recommend management review internal inventory policies and implement them in the next
fiscal year.

Management’s Response

Revision of Inventory Policy — The Agency developed a new procedure in fiscal year 2019 that clearly
identifies what constitutes inventory versus consumables. The procedure includes definitions for obsolete
and impaired inventory as well. The Agency will use the procedure to ensure consistent tracking of
purchases made at the plant sites and the use of materials. In addition, the Agency will train employees
on the procedure to ensure consistent application.

General Ledger Balancing — The Agency has developed a methodology to assign cost to all inventory
units and revise both the inventory listing and the general ledger value of inventory during fiscal year
2019 so that their values are the same by June 30, 2019.

Material Issuances to Work Orders - The Agency has developed a process for plant staff to provide
Accounting with the information needed to record inventory issuances using quantities and the
corresponding average unit prices. The Agency will implement the new process in fiscal year 2019.

Establishment of Pricing Method - The Agency developed a methodology to price all items that are in
inventory during fiscal year 2019 and will track those prices and record issues at an average price for
respective material numbers.

Page 5



REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS BY THE AUDITOR TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE



-

BAKER TILLY

The Finance Committee
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations
Roseville, California

Thank you for using Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP as your auditor.

We have completed our audit of the financial statements of Northern California Power Agency and Associated
Power Corporations (Agency) for the year ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 9, 2018. This letter presents communications required by our professional standards.

OUR RESPONSIBILITY UNDER AUDITING STANDARDS
GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

The objective of a financial statement audit is the expression of an opinion on the financial statements. We
conducted the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
These standards require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are free of
material misstatement, whether caused by error or fraud. Our audit included examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Our audit does not relieve management or the Finance Committee of their responsibilities.

As part of the audit we obtained an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control,
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature,
timing and extent of further audit procedures. The audit was not designed to provide assurance on internal
control or to identify deficiencies in internal control.

OTHER INFORMATION IN DOCUMENTS CONTAINING AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our responsibility does not extend beyond the audited financial statements identified in this report. We do
not have any obligation to and have not performed any procedures to corroborate other information
contained in client prepared documents, such as official statements related to debt issues.

PLANNED SCOPE AND TIMING OF THE AUDIT

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our prior
year management letter dated October 17, 2017.

QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF THE ENTITY’S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES

-

BAKER TILLY
INTERNATIONAL

Page 6



Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies
and their application. The significant accounting policies used by The Finance Committee are described in
Note B to the financial statements. As described in Note B to the financial statements, the Agency changed
accounting policies related to financial reporting for other postemployment benefits and debt by adopting
Statements of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions and Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures
Related to Debt Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. We noted no transactions entered into by
the Agency during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards,
we are required to inform you, or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF THE ENTITY’S SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRACTICES (cont.)

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those
expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

> Management's estimate of other post-employment benefits based on information provided
by the Agency’s actuary. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop
the other post-employment benefit (OPEB) asset and related deferrals in determining that it
is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

> Management’s estimate of the net pension asset and related deferrals are based on
information provided by CalPERS. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the pension asset and related deferrals in determining that it is reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

> Management's estimate of decommissioning costs based on the Black & Veatch draft report
dated December 30, 2016 and DAREnterprises, LLC’s Decom Cost and Timing report from
2006. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the decommissioning
cost estimate and have determined that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

> Management's estimate of derivative valuation based on PFM’s report. We evaluated the
key factors and assumptions used to develop the market valuation in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial Statement Disclosures
The disclosures in the notes to the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.
DiFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit.
CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,

other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. There were no
such misstatements identified.

Page 7



DISAGREEMENTS WITH MANAGEMENT

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

CONSULTATIONS WITH OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has
all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter. This letter follows this required communication.

INDEPENDENCE

We are not aware of any relationships between Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP and the Northern California
Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence.

Relating to our audit of the financial statements of Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power
Corporations for the year ended June 30, 2018, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP hereby confirms that we are,
in our professional judgment, independent with respect to the Northern California Power Agency and
Associated Power Corporations in accordance with the Code of Professional Conduct issued by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We provided no services to the Northern California Power Agency and
Associated Power Corporations other than audit services provided in connection with the audit of the current
year’s financial statements and nonaudit services which in our judgment do not impair our independence.

OTHER AUDIT FINDINGS OR ISSUES

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as Northern California Power Agency and Associated
Power Corporations’ auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

OTHER MATTERS

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the
basic combined financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management'’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the RSI.

Page 8



With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate
and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the other information, which accompanies the financial statements but are
not RSI. We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other information and we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on it.

RESTRICTION ON USE

This information is intended solely for the use of the Finance Committee and management and is not intended
to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the information included in this letter and any other matters. Thank you
for allowing us to serve you.

Gk Ty fochom i nausty -

Madison, Wisconsin
October 9, 2018

Page 9



MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS



651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

(916) 781-3636

www.ncpa.com

October 9, 2018

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
Ten Terrace Court

P.O. Box 7398

Madison, W| 53707-7398

Dear Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP:

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the combined financial statements of
the Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations (the Agency) as of

June 30, 2018 and 2017, and for the years then ended for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to
whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the business-type activities of the Agency and the respective changes in financial position
and cash flows, where applicable, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We confirm that we are responsible for the fair presentation of the
previously mentioned financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We are also responsible for adopting sound accounting
policies, establishing and maintaining internal control over financial reporting, and preventing and
detecting fraud.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the
omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could
be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you
during your audit.



Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
October 9, 2018
Page 2

Financial Statements

1.
2.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter.

The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include all properly classified
funds and other financial information of the utility required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America to be included in the financial reporting entity’s
financial statements.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, if any, are reasonable.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require adjustment or disclosure
have been adjusted or disclosed. No other events, including instances of noncompliance, have
occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and through the date of this letter that would
require adjustment to or disclosure in the aforementioned financial statements.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

There are no known or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose effects should be
considered when preparing the financial statements except as described in the Outside Counsel
Response. There are no unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised us are
probable of assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Information Provided

9.

We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, such as financial records and related data,
documentation, and other matters.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Commissioners or summaries of actions of recent
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared.



Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
October 9, 2018
Page 3

10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

We have disclosed to you results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves:

a. Management,
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
c. Others where the fraud could have material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity
received in communications from employees, former employees, regulators, or others.

We have no knowledge of known instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should
be considered when preparing financial statements.

There are no known related parties or related party relationships and transactions of which we
are aware.

Other

15.

16.

17.

18.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with,
or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

The Agency has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets, liability, or equity.

We are responsible for compliance with federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and
provisions of contracts and grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits, debt
contracts, and IRS arbitrage regulations; and we have identified and disclosed to you all federal,
state, and local laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we
believe have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts
or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, including legal and contractual
provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

There are no:

a. Violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, federal, state, and local laws or
regulations (including those pertaining to adopting, approving and amending budgets),
provisions of contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt
covenants whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as
a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance, except those
already disclosed in the financial statement, if any.

b. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

c. Rates being charged to customers other than the rates as authorized by the applicable
authoritative body.



Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
October 9, 2018
Page 4

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.
28.

29.

In regards to the nonattest services performed by you listed below, we have 1) accepted all
management responsibility; 2) designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or
experience to oversee the services; 3) evaluated the adequacy and results of the services
performed, and 4) accepted responsibility for the results of the services.

a. Microsoft Dynamics Great Plains system utilization

None of these nonattest services constitute an audit under generally accepted auditing
standards, including Government Auditing Standards.

The Agency has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on
such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

The Agency has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material
effect on the financial statement in the event of noncompliance.

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) are
properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

We believe that we have properly identified all derivative instruments and any embedded
derivative instruments that require bifurcation. The utility’s hedging activities, if any, are in
accordance with its documented and approved hedging and risk management policies. The
utility follows the valuation, accounting, reporting and disclosure requirements outlined in
GASB No. 53. We believe the timing, nature, and amounts of all forecasted transactions are
probable of occurring. The fair values of all derivatives and hedged items have been
determined based on prevailing market prices or by using financial models that we believe are
the most appropriate modeis for valuing such instruments and that incorporate market data
and other assumptions that we have determined to be reasonable and appropriate at year end.

Deposits and investments are properly classified, valued, and disclosed (including risk
disclosures, collateralization agreements, valuation methods, and key inputs, as applicable).

Provision, when material, has been made to reduce excess or obsolete inventories to their
estimated net realizable value.

Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported,
and, if applicable, depreciated/amortized. Any known impairments have been recorded and
disclosed.

Tax-exempt bonds issued have retained their tax-exempt status.

The operations and rate setting process meet the condition for application of accounting for
regulated operations as outlined in GASB No. 62. All regulatory items included in the financial
statements have been approved and are being accounted for in accordance with specific action
taken by the regulatory body and as such the expectation of future recovery or refund is
reasonable.

We have accounted for asset retirement obligations in accordance with FASB ASC 410, Asset
Retirement and Environmental Obligations. All legal obligations, including those under the



Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
October 9, 2018
Page5

30.

31

32

doctrine of promissory estoppels, associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assests
have been recognized. These obligations were recognized when incurred using management’s
best estimate of fair value.

We have appropriately disclosed the Agency’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted
or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net position are available and have determined that net position were
properly recognized under the policy.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RS1). The RSl is
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you
any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation

of the RSI.

We assume responsibility for, and agree with, the findings of specialists in evaluating the OPEB
and pension and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining
the amounts and disclosures used in the financial statements and underlying accounting
records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to specialists with respect to the
values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of
any matters that have had impact on the independence or objectivity of the specialists.

Sincerely,

Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations

e S 1)

Signed:

RAN DY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Mo Ha—

MONTY HANKS
Assistant General Manager, Administrative Services/CFO

Signed: ] ,LD -‘l_/

SONDRA AINSWORTH
Treasurer-Controller

o s o it

éﬁwwmtomm ‘ ,

?;('Fe* Tﬁﬂu/ﬁﬂ///d&%

%_ PA Generat Counsel




=7

BAKER TILLY

To the Commissioners of
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations
Roseville, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the combined financial statements of the Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power
Corporations (the Agency) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the combined basic financial statements of the Agency, and
have issued our report thereon dated October 9, 2018.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Agency failed to
comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of the Indentures of Trust for the bonds described in
Attachment A between U.S. Bank and the Agency, insofar as they relate to financial and accounting matters.
However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly,
had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the Agency's
noncompliance with the above-referenced terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of the Indenture, insofar
as they relate to accounting matters.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners of the Agency and
U.S. Bank, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Guko Ty oiom)f oty 1

Madison, Wisconsin
October 9, 2018

-

BAKER TILLY
INTERNATIONAL



Attachment A

> Geothermal Project Number 3 Revenue Bonds, 2009 Series A, dated March 2009

> Geothermal Project Number 3 Revenue Bonds, 2012 Series A, dated September 2012

> Geothermal Project Number 3 Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2016 Series A, dated September 2016

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 1992 Refunding Series A, dated June 1992

> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2008 Refunding Series A & B, dated April 2008
> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2010 Refunding Series A & B, dated April 2010
> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2012 Refunding Series A & B, dated February 2012
> Hydroelectric Project Number One Revenue Bonds, 2018 Refunding Series A & B, dated March, 2018
> Capital Facilities Project Revenue Bonds, 2010 Refunding Series A, dated January 2010

> Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue One, 2010 Series B, dated June 2010

> Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, Issue Two, 2010 Series A & B, dated June 2010

> Lodi Energy Center Revenue Bonds, issue One, 2017 Series A & B, dated December 2017



>

BAKER TILLY

To the Commissioners of
Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power Corporations
Roseville, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the combined financial statements of the Northern California Power Agency and Associated Power
Corporations (the Agency) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the combined basic financial statements of the Agency, and
have issued our report thereon dated October 9, 2018.

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Agency failed to
comply with the terms, covenants, provisions or conditions of the Agency's Investment Policy insofar as they
relate to financial and accounting matters. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining
knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may
have come to our attention regarding the Authority's noncompliance with the Investment Policy insofar as they
relate to accounting matters.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners and management of
the Agency and is not intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Madison, Wisconsin
October 9, 2018

,y

BAKER TILLY
INTERNATIONAL



10/16/2018

BT

BAKER TILLY

INTERNATIONAL

‘Baker Tily refers o Baker Thy Virchow Krause. LLP. Candor. Insight. Resuits.
owned of Baker Tily

-

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results.

Audit overview

Required communication to
Govering Body

Discussion




N

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results.

We view the audit as an opportunity to provide an opinion on the reliability
of financial reporting to the Committee, Customer-Owners and
Outside Parties and to provide value to NCPA

-

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight, Results,

Audit assesses internal controls

*....a means by which an organization's resources are
directed, monitored, and measured. It plays an important role
in preventing and detecting fraud and protecting the
organization’s resources”

Controls must meet the goal and objectives of Operations,
/ Reporting and Compliance

10/16/2018



-

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight, Results.

Audit performed in accordance with Generally Accepted
> Auditing Standards

Audit objective - reasonable assurance that financial
= statements are free from material misstatement

>  Financial statements of NCPA received an
@\ Unmodified Opinion

There were no material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in controls

-

BAKER TILLY

Candor, Insight. Results.

Interviewing employees and documenting
business processes

4 Testing business processes for
weaknesses and adherence to policies

Statistical sampling

10/16/2018



-~

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results.

g

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results.

Controls ;
eviewed  EXPENditures

in key
transaction Payroll
areas

Billing and accounts receivable

Cash, investments and derivatives

Capital assets

Information technology

10/16/2018



-

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results.

-

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results.

We appreciate the help of the NCPA’'s Accounting and
Management teams in assisting in the audit!

10/16/2018



-~

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results.

I~ 1

Discussion

I ]

- 3

BAKER TILLY

Candor. Insight. Results.

Russ Hissom, Partner
D: 608 240 2361
M: 608 628 4020
Russ.Hissom@bakertilly.com

Jeff Stanek, Manager
D: 608 240 2315
M: 608 658 2485

Jeff.Stanek@bakertilly.com

10/16/2018



— =

ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

Date October 17, 2018
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: October 25, 2018

SUBJECT: WSA Engineered Systems, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement to provide equipment, materials and maintenance of brush/ball cleaning system;
Applicable to the following project: NCPA Geothermal facility.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: METHOD OF SELECTION:

Ken S
% jrj/'n%i?rlcfwsﬁw m[l#[!(

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Geothermal

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members [ City of Lodi City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc X City of Ukiah
San F’a“ci;‘;:iﬁa%’r:;:; 00  CityofPaloAlto [0  Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [J
City of Gridley [X City of Roseville Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg X  City of Santa Clara X Other

If other, please specify Turlock

SR: 212:18



WSA Engineered Systems, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
October 25, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 18-84 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with WSA Engineered Systems, Inc. to provide
equipment, materials, and maintenance of brush/ball tube cleaning systems, and consulting
services, including on-site supervision and operator training on new systems, with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall
not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at NCPA's Geothermal facility.

BACKGROUND:

Maintenance of the automatic brush/ball tube cleaning systems is required from time to time at
NCPA’s Geothermal facility to ensure optimal operation of the condenser. WSA Engineered
Systems, Inc. is able to provide NCPA with equipment and materials to maintain this system, as
well as on-site consulting related to start-up commissioning and operator training on new
systems, as needed. Although WSA Engineered Systems is the OEM for the equipment, at the
time maintenance work is needed, bids are solicited in accordance with NCPA procurement
policies and procedures.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years to
be used out of the NCPA approved budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This is an enabling agreement and does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds.
However, in anticipation of the need for these services, Generation Services requested and
received bids from Ovivo (US), Beaudrey AS, and WSA Engineered Systems for ball cleaning
services at Plant 1. WSA Engineered Systems submitted the lowest bid. As a result, this
enabling agreement was prepared to be used for the work identified for Plant 1, and potentially
work needed in the future. Whenever services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of
work consistent with NCPA procurement policies and procedures with as many qualified
providers as possible and issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services
at the time the services are required. In addition, NCPA is working to develop additional
enabling agreements for this scope of work with qualified vendors.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 212:18



WSA Engineered Systems, Inc. — 5 Year MTGSA
October 25, 2018
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

This agreement was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on October 3, 2018, and was
recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar. Since that recommendation, the
NCPA General Counsel modified the scope of the agreement to be used for services requested
by the Geothermal facility only and added clarifying language for the work performed off-site. No
changes have been made to the agreement’s terms and conditions.

Respectfully submitted,

1y 8

RANDY S."HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.

SR: 212:18



RESOLUTION 18-84

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH WSA ENGINEERED SYSTEMS,
INC.

(reference Staff Report #212:18)

WHEREAS, purchasing of equipment, materials, and maintenance of automatic brush/ball tube cleaning
systems, and consulting services including on-site technical supervision, start-up commissioning, and operator
training on new systems, are required from time to time at NCPA’s Geothermal facility; and

WHEREAS, WSA Engineered Systems, Inc. is a provider of this equipment and services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with WSA Engineered
Systems, Inc., to provide such equipment and services as needed in the amount not to exceed $1,000,000 over
five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
WSA Engineered Systems, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, to provide equipment, materials and maintenance
of brush/ball tube cleaning systems, and consulting services, including on-site supervision and operator
training on new systems, for use NCPA’s Geothermal facility.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following vote
on roll cali:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PusL € ageaty

NCPA

NORTHERN CAUFORNIA PDWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
WSA ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, INC.

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc., a
corporation with its office located at 12040 West Feerick Street, Unit G, Wauwatosa, WI 53222
(“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2018
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement.

Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency'’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED ONE MILLION dollars ($1,000,000) for the Work, which shall include all fees,
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency
will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures
under this Agreement.

21

2.2

23

24

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

* The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

=  Work performed;

= The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

= At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 2 of 20



2,5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days
after completlon of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at
its soIe cost and expense, provide all facilities and equrpment that may be necessary to perform
the Work.

Section 4. _ INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS Before begmmng any Work under this
Agreement Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and’ shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers’ Comgensatlon If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000, 000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commerr:lal General and Automobrle Llablll v Insurance.

4.2.1 Commermat General Insurance Contractor shall maintain commercial
general habrlrty insurance for: the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or Ilablhty, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodlly injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of. the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1, 000, 000 per-
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. CommerC|aI general coverage shall
be at least as broad as 1ISO Commercial General Liability form CG-0001
(current edltlon) on "an occurrence” basis covering comprehensive -
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shaII be attached Irmrtmg the coverage.

422 Automoblle Llablllty Contractor shall marntaln automoblle Ilabrhty
insurance form CA 0001 (current edrtlon) for the term of this Agreement
covering. any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned. by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall prowde a minimum limit of $1, 000 000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provrde contractual liability coverlng all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combrnatron of underlying and umbrella policies
as Iong asin comblnatron the limits e_qual or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between ) GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Englneered Systems Inc. o

‘Rev'd 6/8/2018 . )
Page 3 of 20



4.3
4.4

4.5

4.6

Section 5.

5.1

Professional Liability Insurance. Not Applicable

Pollution Insurance. Not Applicable.

All Policies Requirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. Not applicable.

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 durlng this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements reqwred under this Agreement does not relieve. Contractor from
liability under this indemnifi cation and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between : GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 4 of 20



whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

5.2  Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(mcludlng without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of orin connection with any acts or omissions
~by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negllgence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

Section6. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1 pendent Contractor Contractor is an ‘independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwnthstandmg any other Agency, state, or federal pollcy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
othenmse be the respon3|blllty of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensatlon paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of proV|d|ng the Work, including
salarles and beneflts of employees agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall mdemmfy defend, and hold harmiess Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penallties, losses, costs, damages
expense and |Iabl|lty of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or lndlrectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensatlon insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Muiti-Task General Services Agreement between _ GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018
Page 5 of 20



Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3  Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction.

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

6.5 Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

6.6 Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or -
more Malntenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types
of constructlon repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

Section7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

7.1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018 '

Page 6 of 20



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5
7.6

Section 8.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and

‘agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the

work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any)  have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Momtormg by DIR. Not Applicable. This agreement can only be used when no
responsive bids have been recelved from vendors who perform the needed
scope of work at facilities located in the State of California. Consulting services
are not subject to monitoring by DIR.

Registration with_Dl'R.’ Not Applicable.
Pre‘vailyin'g" Wage Rates. Not Applicable.
TERMlNAﬂON AND MODlFlCAT‘lON.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Termmatlon Agency may .cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notlce to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satlsfactorlly completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Am endments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termmatlon of this Agreement

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of

the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the 'Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifieations, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between ) GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 7 of 20



Section 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 8 of 20



Section 10.

9.4.2

9.4.3

9.4.4

reverse englneermg, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Informatlon in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthonzed possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confldentlal Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to prowde prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permltted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party. may seek a protective order, |nclud|ng without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such ‘permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permltted dlsclosures

9.4.3.1 Dlsclosure to employees agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Recelvmg Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response toa vahd order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be reqwred by law; and

9.4.3.3 Dlsclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
Callforma Public Records Act.

Handling of Confldentlal Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Drsclosmg Party in writing. Notwﬂhstandrng the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confi dentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatlves where such copies are
necessary to comply with apphcable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 9 of 20



10.1

10.2

10.3

Section 11.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work ata
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommeodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

11.1

11.2

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, "Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 10 of 20



113

Section 12.

obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanshlp or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Asmgnment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties,; extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of eq uipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and |mplement an acmdent/lnmdent preventlon program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operatlons under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of sucha program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if apphcable the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

121

12.2

12.3

124

12,5

Contractor is responsible for acqumng jOb hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and prov:de a copy to Agency upon request

Contractor is responsible for prowdmg all emp|oyee health and safety tralnlng
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protectlve equipment and
material handllng equrpment

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of an’d wi'II comply with the requ_irements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obllgatlons as estabhshed in the
Agreement_ Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities; until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is
also expressly acknowledged understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems;, Inc.

‘Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 11 of 20



12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

Section 13.

Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site.
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 12 of 20



13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

13.9

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codifi ed at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s
representatlve All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representatlve

Nottces Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

WSA Englneered Systems, Inc

Attention: Dan Barta

Manager Engineering & Technical Services
12040 West Feerick Street Unit G
Wauwatosa wI' 53222 :

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 13 of 20



13.10

Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that

13.12

13.13

cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 ef seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 14 of 20



13.14 Construction of Agreement Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the

drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY WSA ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, INC.

Date Date

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager DANIEL BARTA, Manager Engineering &
Technical Services

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc:

Rev'd 6/8/2018
Page 15 of 20



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK
As requested by the Agency, WSA Engineered Systems, Inc. (“Contractor”) shall provide new
equipment and/or equipment, materials and offsite maintenance labor at the WSA Engineered
Systems facility located in Wauwatosa, Wisconsin, to dismantle, clean, inspect, and provide
miscellaneous required parts for:

e Automatic Brush Tube Cleaning Systems

e Automatic Ball Tube Cleaning Systems

e Automatic Backwash Systems

o Self Flushing Filter
NO MAINTENANCE WORK MAY BE PERFORMED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IN
CALIFORNIA WITHOUT CONTRACTOR'’S PRIOR REGISTRATION WITH DIR.

As requested, Contractor shall provide on-site consulting services including technical
supervision, start-up commissioning, and operator training on new systems at NCPA's
Geothermal facility.

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project
under the California Public Contract Code.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-124
Northern California Power Agency and WSA Engineered Systems, Inc.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 16 of 20



Commission Staff Report

October 17, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

October 25, 2018

SUBJECT: Adoption of Amount of Employer Contribution to CalPERS Medical Plans for
Calendar Year 2019

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

1)

FROM: Vicki L. Cichocki AILO

Department. Human Resources

Human Resources Manager N/A

Division: Administrative Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power
Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X

o o o oOo o

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

o o o o 0o o

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 209:18



CalPERS Medical Plan Contribution Amount 2019
October 17, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 18-83 setting up to 90% of Kaiser Basic Family Sacramento Region Rate,
but not less than the amounts prescribed by Section 22893 (a) (1), plus CalPERS administrative
fees and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments, as the maximum Agency contribution for the
CalPERS Medical Plans for employees and annuitants and their dependents for calendar year
2019; and approve specific CalPERS Resolutions for each employee and/or
employee/annuitant group including Resolution Nos.18-83 A for IBEW Local 1245-Group 200,
18-83 B for HEA-Group 300, 18-83 C for Unrepresented Staff-Group 400, 18-83 D for Power
Generation Employees-NPERS Group 701, 18-83 E for Unrepresented Administrative
Members-NPERS Group 702, 18-83 F for HEA-NPERS Group 703, 18-83 G for IBEW Local
1245-Group 002, 18-83 H for HEA-Group 003, and 18-83 | for Unrepresented Staff-Group 004.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA provides medical coverage for its employees and eligible retirees through CalPERS.
During the 2015 union negotiations, the Agency agreed to pay a maximum medical contribution
of up to 90% of the Sacramento Kaiser family rate per month for all active employees and
eligible retirees (based on hire date and vesting schedules).

For calendar year 2019, the employee and annuitant groups will continue to receive an
employer contribution for CalPERS Medical Plans that is subject to the maximum dollar amount
approved for payment, but not less than the 100/90 formula plus CalPERS administrative fees
and Contingency Reserve Fund assessments, for those retiree medical plans subject to
Government Code (GC) 22893. In order to fix the Agency’s contribution maximum amount, a
CalPERS resolution is required for each employee group.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of the Agency’s contribution for the CalPERS Medical Plans for employees and
annuitants is included in the current fiscal year approved budget. The monthly maximum
contribution for active employees is $1,609.89 for 2019 which is a decrease of $37.38 per
employee from the approved amount of $1,647.27 in 2018. Under GC 22893, the maximum
monthly retiree contribution for family coverage in 2019 is $1,788.00, which is an increase of
$22.00 from $1,766.00 in 2018.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

SR: 209:18



CalPERS Medical Plan Contribution Amount 2019
October 17, 2018
Page 3

Attachments:
e NCPA Commission Resolution 18-83
e CalPERS Resolutions 18-83 A through 18-83 | (9 separate resolutions for each
employee Group)

SR: 209:18



RESOLUTION 18-83

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
ADOPTING THE AMOUNT OF THE AGENCY CONTRIBUTION FOR CALPERS
MEDICAL PLANS FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS FOR CALENDAR YEAR
2019

(reference Staff Report #209:18)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) is an employer participating in
the CalPERS medical plan program under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act
for its employees and annuitants; and

WHEREAS, NCPA desires to change the employer’s contribution toward the cost of
employees’ and annuitants’ medical coverage to an amount equal to or greater than prescribed by
Section 22892(b) as authorized by Section 22892(a) and 22893 of the Government Code; and

WHEREAS, NCPA is fixing its maximum employer contribution under the CalPERS medical
plan at an amount previously negotiated with its labor organizations, IBEW Local 1245 and HEA,
for employees and is providing an equivalent benefit to its unrepresented employees and retirees;
and

WHEREAS, the Agency’s employer contribution for each employee for calendar year 2019
shall be a fixed amount up to 90% of the Kaiser Basic Family Sacramento Region Rate per month
for the enroliment of the employee and his/her dependents, plus CalPERS administrative fees and
Contingency Reserve Fund assessments; and

WHEREAS, the Agency’s employer contribution for each annuitant for calendar year 2019
shall be a fixed amount up to 90% of the Kaiser Basic Family Sacramento Region Rate per month,
but not less than the amounts prescribed (100/90 formula), plus CalPERS administrative fees and
Contingency Reserve Fund assessments, for the enroliment of the annuitant and his/her
dependents; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect
change in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065
the California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency adopts the fixed amount of 90% of the Kaiser Sacramento Region Family Rate, as the
maximum Agency contribution for the CalPERS Medical Plans for employees and annuitants and
their dependents and approves an amount up to the Section 22893(a)(1) limit for annuitants for
calendar year 2019; and approve specific CalPERS Resolutions for each employee and/or
employee/annuitant group including Resolution Nos.18-83 A for IBEW Local 1245-Group 200, 18-
83 B for HEA-Group 300, 18-83 C for Unrepresented Staff-Group 400, 18-83 D for Power
Generation Employees-NPERS Group 701, 18-83 E for Unrepresented Administrative Members-
NPERS Group 702, 18-83 F for HEA-NPERS Group 703, 18-83 G for IBEW Local 1245-Group
002, 18-83 H for HEA-Group 003, and 18-83 | for Unrepresented Staff-Group 004.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018, by the
following vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



RESOLUTION NO. 18-83 A
FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION UNDER SECTION 22893
OF THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT
WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

WHEREAS, (1) Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (the
“Act”) for participation by members of IBEW Local 1245 (Group 200); and

WHEREAS, (2) Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency has filed a resolution with the
Board of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System to provide a
postretirement health benefits vesting requirement to employees who retire for service
in accordance with Government Code Section 22893; and

RESOLVED, (a) That the employer contribution for each annuitant subject to vesting shall be the
amount necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enroliment of
family members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of 90% of Kaiser Basic
Family Sacramento Region Rate per month, but not less than the amounts prescribed
by Section 22893(a)(1), plus Administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund
assessments; and be it further,

RESOLVED, (b) Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

RESOLVED, (c) That the participation of the employees and annuitants of Northern California Power
Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality of
the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a
governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code,
upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section. If it is determined that
Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality of
the state or political subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System may be obligated, and reserves the right to
terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer; and be it further

RESOLVED, (d) That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,
General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, this day
of ,2018.

VESTING 22893 — CHANGE, ALL BY GROUP OR BY GROUP, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



Signed:

ROGER FRITH, NCPA Comission Chair

Attest:

CARY A. PADGETT, Assistant Secretary

VESTING 22893 — CHANGE, ALL BY GROUP OR BY GROUP, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 18-83 B
FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION UNDER SECTION 22893
OF THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT
WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

WHEREAS, (1) Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (the
“Act”) for participation by members of Hydroelectric Employees Association
(Group 300); and

WHEREAS, (2) Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency has filed a resolution with the
Board of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System to provide a
postretirement health benefits vesting requirement to employees who retire for service
in accordance with Government Code Section 22893; and

RESOLVED, (a) That the employer contribution for each annuitant subject to vesting shall be the
amount necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enroliment, including the enroliment of
family members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of 90% of Kaiser Basic
Family Sacramento Region Rate per month, but not less than the amounts prescribed
by Section 22893(a)(1), plus Administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund
assessments; and be it further,

RESOLVED, (b) Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

RESOLVED, (c) That the participation of the employees and annuitants of Northern California Power
Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality of
the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a
governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code,
upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section. If it is determined that
Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality of
the state or political subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System may be obligated, and reserves the right to
terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer; and be it further

RESOLVED, (d) That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,
General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, this day of
,2018.

VESTING 22893 — CHANGE, ALL BY GROUP OR BY GROUP, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



Signed:

ROGER FRITH, NCPA Commission Chair

Attest:

CARY A. PADGETT, Assistant Secretary

VESTING 22893 — CHANGE, ALL BY GROUP OR BY GROUP, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 18-83 C
FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION UNDER SECTION 22893
OF THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT
WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

WHEREAS, (1) Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (the
“Act”) for participation by members of Unrepresented Staff (Group 400); and

WHEREAS, (2) Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency has filed a resolution with the
Board of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System to provide a
postretirement health benefits vesting requirement to employees who retire for service
in accordance with Government Code Section 22893; and

RESOLVED, (a) That the employer contribution for each annuitant subject to vesting shall be the
amount necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enroliment, including the enroliment of
family members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of 90% of Kaiser Basic
Family Sacramento Region Rate per month, but not less than the amounts prescribed
by Section 22893(a)(1), plus Administrative fees and Contingency Reserve Fund
assessments; and be it further,

RESOLVED, (b) Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

RESOLVED, (c) That the participation of the employees and annuitants of Northern California Power
Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an “agency or instrumentality of
the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible to participate in a
governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code,
upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section. If it is determined that
Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency or instrumentality of
the state or political subdivision of a State under such final Regulations, the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System may be obligated, and reserves the right to
terminate the health coverage of all participants of the employer; and be it further

RESOLVED, (d) That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,
General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, this day of
, 2018.

VESTING 22893 — CHANGE, ALL BY GROUP OR BY GROUP, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



Signed:

ROGER FRITH, NCPA Commission Chair

Attest:

CARY A. PADGETT, Assistant Secretary

VESTING 22893 — CHANGE, ALL BY GROUP OR BY GROUP, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 18-83 D

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS
UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

WHEREAS, (1)

WHEREAS, (2)

WHEREAS, (3)

RESOLVED, (a)

RESOLVED, (b)

RESOLVED, (c)

RESOLVED, (d)

WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and

Hospital Care Act (the “Act”) for participation by members

of Power Generation Employees (NPERS Group 701); and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount
necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enroliment, including the enroliment of family
members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of 90% of Kaiser Basic Family
Sacramento Region Rate per month, plus administrative fees and Contingency Reserve
Fund assessments; and be it further

Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of

Northern California Power Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an
“agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible
to participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.
If it is determined that Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency
or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health
coverage of all participants of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,
General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, this day of
,2018.

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



Signed:

ROGER FRITH, NCPA Commission Chair

Attest:

CARY A. PADGETT, Assistant Secretary

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 18-83 E

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS
UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

WHEREAS, (1)

WHEREAS, (2)

WHEREAS, (3)

RESOLVED, (a)

RESOLVED, (b)

RESOLVED, (c)

RESOLVED, (d)

WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and

Hospital Care Act (the “Act”) for participation by members

of Unrepresented Administrative Members (NPERS Group 702); and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount
necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enroliment of family
members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of 90% of Kaiser Basic Family
Sacramento Region Rate per month, plus administrative fees and Contingency Reserve
Fund assessments; and be it further

Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of

Northern California Power Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an
“agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible
to participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.
If it is determined that Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency
or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health
coverage of all participants of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,
General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, this day of
, 2018.

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



Signed:

ROGER FRITH, NCPA Commission Chair

Attest:

CARY A. PADGETT, Assistant Secretary

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 18-83 F

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS
UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

(1)

(2)

3)

(b)

(c)

(d)

WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and

Hospital Care Act (the “Act”) for participation by members

of Hydroelectric Employees Association (NPERS Group 703); and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount
necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enroliment, including the enroliment of family
members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of 90% of Kaiser Basic Family
Sacramento Region Rate per month, plus administrative fees and Contingency Reserve
Fund assessments; and be it further

Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of

Northern California Power Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an
“agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible
to participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.
If it is determined that Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency
or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health
coverage of all participants of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,
General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, this day of
, 2018.

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



Signed:

ROGER FRITH, NCPA Comission Chair

Attest:

CARY A. PADGETT, Assistant Secretary

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 18-83 G -

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS
UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

WHEREAS, (1)

WHEREAS, (2

WHEREAS, (3)

RESOLVED,  (a)

RESOLVED, (b)

RESOLVED, (c)

RESOLVED,  (d)

WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and

Hospital Care Act (the “Act”) for participation by members

of IBEW Local 1245 (Group 002); and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount
necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enroliment of family
members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of 90% of Kaiser Basic Family
Sacramento Region Rate per month, plus administrative fees and Contingency Reserve
Fund assessments; and be it further

Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of

Northern California Power Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an
“agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible
to participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.
If it is determined that Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency
or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health
coverage of all participants of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,
General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, this
,2018.

day of

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



Signed:

ROGER FRITH, NCPA Commission Chair

Attest:

CARY A. PADGETT, Assistant Secretary

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 18-83 H

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS
UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

RESOLVED,

(1)

(2)

(3)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and

Hospital Care Act (the “Act”) for participation by members

of 003 Hydroelectric Employees Association (Group 003); and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount
necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enrollment of family
members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of 90% of Kaiser Basic Family
Sacramento Region Rate per month, plus administrative fees and Contingency Reserve
Fund assessments; and be it further

Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of

Northern California Power Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an
“agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible
to participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.
If it is determined that Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency
or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health
coverage of all participants of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,
General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under the Act.

Adopted at a regualr meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, this day of
, 2018.

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



Signed:

ROGER FRITH, NCPA Commisssion Chair

Attest:

CARY A. PADGETT, Assistant Secretary

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



RESOLUTION NO. 18-83 |

FIXING THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS
UNDER THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT

WHEREAS, (1)

WHEREAS, (2)

WHEREAS, (3)

RESOLVED, (a)

RESOLVED, (b)

RESOLVED, (c)

RESOLVED, (d)

WITH RESPECT TO A RECOGNIZED EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION

Northern California Power Agency is a contracting agency under Government Code
Section 22920 and subject to the Public Employees’ Medical and

Hospital Care Act (the “Act”) for participation by members

of Unrepresented Staff (Group 004); and

Government Code Section 22892(a) provides that a contracting agency subject to Act
shall fix the amount of the employer contribution by resolution; and

Government Code Section 22892(b) provides that the employer contribution shall be an
equal amount for both employees and annuitants, but may not be less than the amount
prescribed by Section 22892(b) of the Act; and

That the employer contribution for each employee or annuitant shall be the amount
necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enroliment, including the enroliment of family
members, in a health benefits plan up to a maximum of 90% of Kaiser Basic Family
Sacramento Region Rate per month, plus administrative fees and Contingency Reserve
Fund assessments; and be it further

Northern California Power Agency has fully complied with any and all applicable
provisions of Government Code Section 7507 in electing the benefits set forth above;
and be it further

That the participation of the employees and annuitants of

Northern California Power Agency shall be subject to determination of its status as an
“agency or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State” that is eligible
to participate in a governmental plan within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code, upon publication of final Regulations pursuant to such Section.
If it is determined that Northern California Power Agency would not qualify as an agency
or instrumentality of the state or political subdivision of a State under such final
Regulations, CalPERS may be obligated, and reserves the right to terminate the health
coverage of all participants of the employer.

That the executive body appoint and direct, and it does hereby appoint and direct,
General Manager to file with the Board a verified copy of this resolution, and to perform
on behalf of Northern California Power Agency all functions required of it under the Act.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the NCPA Commission at Roseville, this day of
, 2018.

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



Signed:

ROGER FRITH, NCPA Commission Chair

Attest:

CARY A. PADGETT, Assistant Secretary

CHANGE - BY GROUP, EQUAL, 1 FIXED (REV. 6/2017)



Commission Staff Report

October 17, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

October 25, 2018

SUBJECT: Authorize NCPA to join California State Association of Counties Excess
Insurance Authority to gain volume purchasing capability for the Agency’s Health

and Welfare plans

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

o

FROM:  Vicki L. Cichocki } /Zt:,’

Department: Human Resources

Human Resources Manager N/A

Division: Administrative Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power
Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

o o o o o K

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 213:18



Authorize Membership in CSAC EIA
October 17, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 18-85 authorizing NCPA to join California State Association of Counties
(CSAC) Excess Insurance Authority (EIA) for the purpose of enabling the Agency to leverage
group purchasing power arrangements. CSAC EIA has various benefit carriers, such as Delta
Dental, Vision Service Plan, and Managed Health Network.

BACKGROUND:

CSAC EIA was established in 1979 as a risk sharing pool dedicated to helping California public
agencies control losses and provide effective risk management solutions. Current CSAC EIA
membership includes 95% of counties, 60% of cities, as well as, numerous other public entities.
Several of the Agency’s members including Alameda, Lompoc, Redding, Roseville, Santa Clara,
and the Port of Oakland are all associated with CSAC EIA. Joining CSAC EIA offers NCPA the
ability to buy benefits, such as dental, vision, life, and employee assistance program (EAP)
benefits leveraging CSAC EIA’s larger subscriber volume.

Under CSAC EIA, NCPA can buy benefits leveraging subscriber volumes ranging from 37,300
to 134,000 subscribers, depending on the type of insurance, as compared to the Agency’s
approximately 160 employees. The Agency’s broker, Alliant insurance, shopped NCPA's
dental, vision, life, disability, and EAP benefits and identified that CSAC EIA offered NCPA the
opportunity to provide equal or better dental, vision, and EAP benefits at the same or lower
costs.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Membership in CSAC EIA has no associated cost. The cost of the Agency’s contribution for
dental, vision, and EAP Plans for employees is included in the current fiscal year approved
budget. However, the Agency should see a fiscal year savings (half year) of approximately
$18,000.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

CTspectfully submitted,

RANDY S: HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:
e NCPA Commission Resolution 18-85
MOU Dental Program
Joint Powers Agreement Creating the CSAC Excess Insurance Authority
Delta Dental Group Dental Application

SR: 213:18



RESOLUTION 18-85

COMMISSION OF NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AUTHORIZES NCPA TO JOIN CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES (CSAC)
EXCESS INSURANCE AUTHORITY (EIA)

(reference Staff Report #213:18)

WHEREAS, Article 1, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government Code (Section 6500 et
seq.) permits two or more public agencies by agreement to exercise jointly powers common to the contracting
parties; and

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency desires to join together with the members of the
CSAC EIA for the purpose of jointly funding and/or establishing excess and other insurance programs as
determined; and

WHEREAS, CSAC EIA has determined that it is necessary for each member of CSAC EIA to delegate
to a person[s] or position[s] authority to act on the member’s behalf in matters relating to the member and
CSAC EIA; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
approves NCPA to join CSAC EIA, authorize the General Manager or his designee to execute the CSAC EIA
Joint Powers Agreement, and except as to actions that must be approved by the Commission, and delegates
to the General Manager authority to act in all matters relating to the member and the Authority.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2018 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



GROUP DENTAL APPLICATION Delta Dental of California
100 First Street
San Francisco, California 94105

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Name of Applicant:  Northern California Power Agency Fed. ID/TIN:

Contact: Vicki Cichocki Phone: (916) 781-4209 Fax: (N/A) -

Street Address: 651 Commerce Drive Email: viki.cichocki@ncpa.com o
City: Roseville State: CA  Zip: 95678-6411 County:  Placer

Industry Type: Muncipality ~ Group Type: Employer L Sub-Group Type: Public Agency B
Situs State: CA  Delta Dental Group #: 19822 NAICS #: 221118 ERISA
Contract Term: From: 10/01/2018 Through: 12/31/2019 Applicant understands electronic EOC’s will be provided

X] Applicant understands contract documents and notices will be provided electronically.

Recipient of contract documents and notices: [X] Same as above contact. [_] Other (provide name and email or address or fax number)

PLAN TYPES PLAN FEATURES
[] Delta Dental Premier® [1 PPO/PPO/PPO ] PPO/PRE/PPO X] PPO/PRE/Program Allowance
X Delta Dental PPOSM [] PPO/Program Allowance/Program Allowance [ ] PRE/Program Allowance
(Program Allowance [] standard [] non-standard )
[] Incentive [] Flexible Dual Choice [ ] TOA
BENEFIT DESIGN [ ] See Additional Information
) . Benefit Subcategories Covered As
Dental Service PPO Premier Non-Delta Dental
Category
Diagnostic & Preventive : Crowns/Cast Restorations Major
. 100% 100% 100%
(D&P) Services Endodonti .
Basic Services 100% 85% 85% ndodontics Basic
Major Services 85% 85% 85% Tmplant Mai
: mplants ajor
Orthodontic (Ortho) 70% 0% 20% p ]
Services
Ortho Benefited for:  Adults, Children and Students  Ortho to child age: 26 Oral Surgery Basic
Ortho to student age:26
Annual Deductible $0 Annual Deductible $0 Periodontics Basic
per Enrollee —_— per Family
Annual Deductible Prosthodontics Major
based on Calendar Year [ ] Contract Year ( to )
Sealants Diag and Prev
Lifetime Deductible Orthodontic Lifetime
per Enrollee SNA Deductible per Enrollee SNA Waiting Periods
[X] Deductible Waived for ~ [X] D&P Other NO DEDUCTIBLE Waived for initial enrollees N/A
[[] Deductible 4% quarter carryover applies [ Basic: months
Annual $2000/ Annual Calendar Year L1 Major: months
Maximum Maximum [] Contract Year to .
per Enrollee 2000 based on ( ) [ Orthodontics: months
Orthodontic Lifetime $ 1000 Ortho Annual Cap SN/A [] Other: months
Maximums per Enroliee . . .
Waiting periods applied from the effective
[ ] D&P Maximum Waiver applies to: [] All Providers ] PPO Only date reported for the
] PPO and Premier [ ] Premier Only

DDC-GRP-AP-CA




RATES AND FUNDING

Contribution:
Employees/Members 100% [] Non-Retention [ ] Retention [ ] Guaranteed Administration
Dependents 100% XI ASC Claim settlement: Weekly by  ACH transfer
Required Participation: Fee settlement: Monthly by  ACH transfer
Employees/Members 130 Administrative Service contract type:
Dependents 0o Administrative Percentage of claims 7.2 %
Administration per Employee per Month (PEPM)
Stop Loss: % Prefund: $
Payment Method:
Rates Payment Frequency: If other: Not Applicable
$ EE Only $ EE Only $
EE + 1 Dependent $ EE + Spouse $
EE + 2 or more $ Family $
Dependents EE +1 Child $
EE Only $ EE Only $ EE+Morethan 1 Child
$ $
$
$

ELIGIBILITY INFORMATION []

Census Data Parallel Enrollment []YES [XINO
Name of other Carrier:

Total Number of Eligible Employees/Members: 152

Multiple Plan Options [ ] YES [XINO

Name of other Carrier:

Total Number of Employees/Members: 152
Section 125 [XI YES []NO i

Eligible Individuals: [X] All Employees/Members [ ] Retired Employees [ ] Other:

Eligibility Requirement:
(] First of month following completion of of continuous employment/membership.

] Date of hire/Membership [X] First of the month following Date of Hire/Membership X hours per week Other: 30 hours
B Termination for primary enrollees is end of month. ~ [] Other

Dependent Coverage:
X Spouse/Domestic Partner [X| Termination for spouse is end of month. [] Other

Children to age 26 Students to age 26 [X] Termination for children/students is end of month. [] Other:

] must be unmarried [ ] must be dependent on employee/member for support or [X] regardless of marital, student or support
status

Same Gender Opposite Gender  [X] Children of Domestic Partner [X] Continuation of COBRA for Domestic Partner

DDC-GRP-AP-CA




Additional Information (4drtach additional page if necessary)
This group will be joining the CSAC-EIA Trwst.
PPO program has $2500 PPO cym and $2000 cym for Premier and non-contracted.
Jim Harvath at PBIA is the TPA and will be handling both eligibility and billing,
Denture Repair/Relining/Rebase covered at Major

Application is herewith made for a dental service contract from Delta Dental of California (Delta Dental). Applicant understands that,
regardless of the effective date above, unless and until 1) this Application is executed by a duly authorized officer of Applicant, is
returned to Delta Dental and is accepted by Delta Dental; 2) the premium is paid; and 3) enrollment procedures are completed, no claims
will be paid for Enrollees under the contract. It is understood that this Application is offered as an inducement for issuance of a dental
service contract by Delta Dental. Such contract will be based exclusively on the information given to or acquired by Delta Dental from
this Application and the terms of said contract will be issued separately. The contract will be deemed accepted and approved based on
the Applicant’s payment of premium after delivery of the contract. To that end, the signer of the Application declares that he/she has
read the statements and answers above and that to the best of his/her knowledge that the answers are true. No waiver or modification of
the Application shall be accepted unless in writing and signed by an authorized officer of Applicant.

This plan shall become effective only upon issuance of a written agreement executed by a duly authorized officer of Delta Dental. In
the absence of fraud or intentional misrepresentation of material fact, the statements in this application are deemed to be representations
and not warranties. Any misrepresentation, omission, concealment of fact or incorrect statement which is material to the acceptance of
risk may prevent recovery if, had the true facts been known to Delta Dental we would not in good faith have issued the contract at the
same premium rate.

Except as otherwise limited by the Health Insurance Portability Accountability Act and its administrative simplification regulations
(“HIPAA”), Applicant shall provide Delta Dental with Protected Health Information (“PHI”) for the proper implementation,
administration and management of the group dental contract for which the Applicant is applying. Delta Dental agrees that the PHI will
be held confidential and used or further disclosed only to administer the group dental plan as described in the group dental service
contract or as permitted or required by law. Delta Dental and Applicant shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and
regulations relating to administrative simplification, security, and privacy of PHI, inéluding the terms of any business associate
agreement/addendum that may be required as part of the group dental service contract to be executed between the Applicant and Delta
Dental.

Executed this day of 20 for the Applicant at;

City and State

By: 7 Signature:

Delta Dental Authorized Signature:

Anthony S. Barth, President & CEO

DDC-GRP-AP-CA



AGENT/CONSULTANT INFORMATION (if applicable)

Agency/Agent Name:  Alliant Employee Benefits
Contact Name: Asia Prudholme Contact Email:
Contact Phone:  949-660-5948

State license #: Commission(s): 0

asia.prudholme@alliant.com

SSN/TIN:  33-0785439

Payable to: Alliant Employee Benefits

Commission mailing address: 1301 Dove Street #200

City: Newport Beach State: CA

Agent Signature: NOT REQUIRED

Zip:

92660

Date: N/A

Please provide a W-9 Form

GENERAL AGENT INFORMATION (if applicable)

Agency/Agent Name: n/a

Contact Name: n/a

Contact Phone: n/a

State license #:  n/a Commission(s): n/a

Contact Email:

n/a

SSN/TIN: n/a

Payableto: n/a

Commission mailing address: n/a

City: n/a State: Zip:

Agent Signature: n/a

n/a

Please provide a W-9 Form

Date: n/a

DDC-GRP-AP-CA




Adopted:  October 26, 2009

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
DENTAL PROGRAM

This Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter “Memorandum”) is entered into by and
between the CSAC Excess Insurance Authority (hereafter “Authority”) and the
participating entities (hereafter Members) that are signatories to this Memorandum.

1.

CREATION OF THE PROGRAM. There is hereby created by this Memorandum
the Dental Program (hereafter “Program”).

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT. Except as otherwise provided herein, all terms
used shall be as defined in Article 1 of the Joint Powers Agreement Creating the
CSAC Excess Insurance Authority (hereafter “Agreement’), and all other
provisions of the Agreement not in conflict with this Memorandum shall apply.

PURPOSE. The Program is formed for the purpose of establishing a self-
insured pool and group purchase pool for administrative services related to the
Program.

GOVERNING COMMITTEE. The EIA Employee Benefits Committee (hereafter
“Committee”) shall have full authority to determine all matters affecting the
Program and its members, including, but not limited to, approval of new
members, and premium/rate setting. A majority of members of the Committee
must be members of the Program.

A majority of the members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business. All actions of the Committee shall require the
affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Committee.

Except as otherwise provided herein, the Committee shall be authorized to do
such acts as are reasonably necessary to further the purposes of this
Memorandum and implement its provisions.

The Committee when necessary to fulfill the purposes of this Memorandum,
shall meet on the call of the Chair of the Committee as provided in Article 12 of
the Agreement and Article VI of the Bylaws of the Authority (hereinafter referred
to as the “Bylaws”).

Any meeting of the Committee shall be subject to the applicable provisions of
Government Code §54950 et seq., commonly know as the “Brown Act.”



Dental Program
Memorandum of Understanding Adopted: October 26, 2009

10.

PREMIUM. Initial premiums upon entry into the Program for both Pool members
and Self-Insured Members shall be established by Delta Dental of California
(hereafter “Delta Dental’) in consultation with the Committee, actuaries and/or
other consultants.

MEMBERSHIP. Membership in the Program consists of either of the following:

a. A“Pool Member’ is defined as a Member who joins the Program and is
part of the self-insured pooled Program, or

b. A “Self-Insured Member” is defined as a member who participates in
the group purchase Program for administrative services and is fully
responsible for their own dental Program.

MINIMUM PARTICIPATION LEVEL. The Committee shall establish a minimum
participation level in order for the Program to become effective. The
Memorandum shall not be binding upon any Member uniess the minimum level
of participation is reached to begin the Program. This Memorandum shall remain
in force should the participation level subsequently fall below the minimum
established by the Committee.

PROGRAM PARTICIPATION. Adoption of this Memorandum by a Member
allows for participation in the Program. Participation in the Program may be in
either the Self-Insured Pool or the Group Purchase Pool. A Member shall be
entitled to participate in the Program until it has withdrawn in accordance with the
provisions of paragraph 17 of this Memorandum.

RENEWALS. Renewal rate action will be determined by the Committee with
assistance from Delta Dental, actuarial or other consultants for the Pool
Members. The renewal action for the Self-Insured Member will be determined by
the Member in conjunction with assistance from Delta Dental, actuaries and/or
other consultants. Pool Members that have Legacy Premium Stabilization Funds
(see paragraph 11.a.) may use those funds to offset renewal rate increases.

BILLINGS AND LATE PAYMENTS. Billing dates, payment due dates, and any
late fees and/or penalties will be set by the Committee. All Members will receive
separate notification of any changes in due dates and/or penalty fees at least 30
days prior to effective date of any such change.

Notwithstanding any other provisions to the contrary regarding late payment
of invoices or cancellation from a Program, at the discretion of the Committee,

Page 2 of 5



Dental Program
Memorandum of Understanding Adopted: October 26, 2009

11.

12.

13.

14.

any Member that fails to pay an invoice when due may be given a ten (10)
day written notice of cancellation.

PREMIUM STABILIZATION FUNDS. Premium Stabilization Funds as set forth
apply only to Pool MEMBERS.

a. Legacy Premium Stabilization Fund. Current Delta Dental Member
who are fully insured with Delta Dental are required to have their
stabilization funds (if any) transferred to the EIA upon entry into the
Program. These funds will be accounted for individually for the
Member’s use. If the Member leaves the Program with a fund balance
remaining, those funds remain in the Program and the Member has no
equity rights to those funds.

b. Program Premium Stabilization Fund. The Program Stabilization Fund
shall consist of accumulated excess reserves (in excess of the
required Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and margin requirements)
generated by the Program with all years combined on a go forward
basis. The Committee shall have authority to determine the use of
these funds. These funds are not Member specific and they are
separate from the Legacy Premium Stabilization Funds

STABILIZATION INTEREST. Interest generated by both premium stabilization
funds are available for the Committee to use for any purpose, including
administrative fees, rate offsets, or claim payments.

DIVIDENDS AND ASSESSMENTS (Applicable to Pool Members Only).
Should the Program not be adequately funded for any reason, pro-rata
assessments to the Members may be utilized to ensure the approved funding
level for applicable policy periods. Any assessments, which are deemed
necessary to ensure approved funding levels, shall be made upon the approval
of the Committee in accordance with the following:

a. Any dividends or assessments shall be based upon the preceding
three years of percent of contribution for losses for Pooled
Members only.

b. Self-Insured Members shall not be eligible for dividends or
assessments.

APPROVAL OF NEW MEMBERS - APPLICATION TO THE PROGRAM. Any
public entity wishing to become a Member of the Program shall make application

Page 3 of 5



Dental Program
Memorandum of Understanding Adopted: October 26, 2009

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

to and be approved by a majority vote of the Committee in a manner prescribed
by them. The Committee shall develop specific criteria for accepting new
members.

COVERAGE DOCUMENTS. Coverage documents shall be issued by Delta
Dental to each individual Member and Delta Dental shall determine coverage for
each Member in the Program. Coverage shall be governed in accordance with
these documents. Any changes to the benefits are as determined by the
Member subject to Delta Dental, Committee, actuarial, and/or other consultants
pricing requirements.

CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION. The Committee shall authorize the retention of the
services of Delta Dental to provide claims services for the Program.

WITHDRAWAL. Withdrawal of a Member from the Program shall be as follows:

a. Pool Member. After becoming a participant in the Program a Pool
Member may withdraw from the Program at the end of a policy year
only if it provides the AUTHORITY with sixty (60) days written
notice prior to the end of the policy year.

b. Self-Insured Member. After becoming a participant in the Program
a Self Insured Member may withdraw from the Program at the end
of their specific policy year period by giving the Authority sixty (60)
days written notice prior to the end of their specific policy year
period.

LIASION WITH THE AUTHORITY. Each Member shall maintain staff to act as
liaison with the Authority and Delta Dental and between the Member and the
Authority’s and Delta Dental’'s designated representative

DISPUTES. The Committee shall first determine any question or dispute with
respect to the rights and obligations of the parties to this Memorandum,
however, all final determinations shall be in accordance with Article 31 of the
AGREEMENT.

ADMINISTRATION COSTS. The Authority shall be entitled to assess annual
administration costs associated with the Program. Administrative costs for the
Program shall be determined through the Authority’s budget process. The
source of the funds for the Program will be administrative charges, interest
earnings or a combination of both.

Page 4 of 5



Dental Program
Memorandum of Understanding Adopted:  October 26, 2009

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

Dated:

Dated:

COMPLETE AGREEMENT. Except as otherwise provided herein, this
Memorandum constitutes the full and complete agreement of the Members.

SEVERABILITY. Should any provision of this Memorandum be judicially
determined to be void or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect any
remaining provision.

AMENDMENT OF MEMORANDUM. This Memorandum may be amended by a
majority vote of the Committee and signature on the Memorandum by the
Member's designated representative, or alternate who shall have authority to
execute this Memorandum.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This Memorandum shall become effective on the first
effective date of coverage for the Member and upon approval by the Committee
and the signing of this agreement by the Members and Chief Executive Officer
of the Authority.

EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS. This Memorandum may be executed in
several counterparts, each of which shall be an original, all of which shall
constitute but one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed the Memorandum as
of the date set forth below.

October 26, 2009 M

CSAC Excess Insu rgci@ority
Michael D. Fleming, Chief Executive Officer

Name

Member Entity

Page 5 of 5



| Epsscramy] |

Print

This Endorsement Modifies Your Policy
(Effective At Inception Unless Another Date Shown Below)

RIGGERS LIABILITY EXTENSION ENDORSEMENT
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

SECTION I - COVERAGES , COVERAGE A. BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE
LIABILITY is amended as follows:

2. Exclusions J., Damage to Property, subparagraphs (4) and (5) do not apply to ‘“Property Damage” to
the property of others in the Named Insured’s care, custody or control but only while being raised,
lowered or moved by the use of “mobile equipment” that is owned or used by, or rented or leased to the
Named Insured.

Coverage afforded by this Endorsement does not apply to:

a. Loss, damage, or expense caused by, or resulting from, wear and tear, mechanical
breakdown, inherent vise, latent defect or gradual deterioration.

b. Loss, damage or expense caused by, or resulting from dishonesty of the Named Insured’s
employees or of persons to whom the property may be entrusted; or loss, damage or expense
caused by the dishonesty of any attendant or attendants.

c. Unexplained loss, mysterious disappearance, or shortage disclosed upon taking inventory.

d. Voluntary parting with any property by you or anyone else to whom you have entrusted the
property if induced to do so by any fraudulent scheme, trick, devise or false pretense.

2. The liability of the company afforded under this endorsement for "property damage" shall not exceed
the limits specified below:

a.$ Each Occurrence
b.$ All property in the aggregate during any one policy period.

The above limits are included within the Each Occurrence Limit and General Aggregate Limit of
Liability as stated in the policy declarations. They do not apply in addition to those limits.

All other terms, conditions, limitations and exclusions of this policy are unchanged and applicable.

(Complete this section if endorsement is added after policy is issued.)

Policy No. Endorsement No. End't Effective Date

Signature of Auth. Representative Producet No.

265 002 (07/03) |




Adopted: October 5, 1979
Amended: May 12, 1980
Amended: January 23, 1987
Amended: October 7, 1988
Amended: March 1993
Amended: November 18, 1996
Amended: October 4, 2005
Amended: February 28, 2006

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT
CREATING THE CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AUTHORITY

This Agreement is executed in the State of California by and among those counties and public
entities organized and existing under the Constitution of the State of California which are parties signatory
to this Agreement. The CSAC Excess Insurance Authority was formed under the sponsorship of CSAC.
All such counties, hereinafter called member counties, and public entities, hereinafter called member
public entities, [collectively “members’] shall be listed in Appendix A, which shall be attached hereto and
made a part hereof.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Article 1, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government Code (Section
6500 et seq.) permits two or more public agencies by agreement to exercise jointly powers common to
the contracting parties; and

WHEREAS, Atticle 16, Section 6 of the California Constitution provides that insurance pooling
arrangements under joint exercise of power agreements shall not be considered the giving or lending of
credit as prohibited therein; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.4 provides that a local public entity may
self-insure, purchase insurance through an authorized carrier, or purchase insurance through a surplus
line broker, or any combination of these; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code Section 990.6, the cost of insurance
provided by a local public entity is a proper charge against the local public entity; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.8 provides that two or more local entities
may, by a joint powers agreement, provide insurance for any purpose by any one or more of the methods
specified in Government Code Section 990.4 and such pooling of self-insured claims or losses is not
considered insurance nor subject to regulation under the Insurance Code; and

WHEREAS, the counties and public entities executing this Agreement desire to join together for
the purpose of jointly funding and/or establishing excess and other insurance programs as determined;

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

Page 1 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

“CSAC" shall mean the County Supervisors Association of California, dba California State
Association of Counties.

"Authority" shall mean the CSAC Excess Insurance Authority created by this Agreement.

"Board of Directors" or "Board" shall mean the governing body of the Authority.

"Claim" shall mean a claim made against a member arising out of an occurrence which is
covered by an excess or primary insurance program of the Authority in which the member is a participant.

"Executive Committee” shall mean the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Authority.

"Fiscal year" shall mean that period of twelve months which is established by the Board of
Directors as the fiscal year of the Authority.

"Government Code" shall mean the California Government Code.

“Insurance program” or “program” shall mean a program of the Authority under which
participating members are protected against designated losses, either through joint purchase of primary
or excess insurance, pooling of self-insured claims or losses, purchased insurance or any other
combination as determined by the Board. The Board of Directors or the Executive Committee may
determine applicable criteria for determining eligibility in any insurance program, as well as establishing
program policies and procedures.

"Joint powers law" shall mean Article 1, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 (commencing with Section
6500) of the Government Code.

"Loss" shall mean a liability or potential liability of a member, including litigation expenses,
attorneys' fees and other costs, which is covered by an insurance program of the Authority in which the
member is a participant.

"Member county” shall mean any county which, through the membership of its supervisors in
CSAC, has executed this Agreement and become a member of the Authority. "Member county" shall
also include those entities or other bodies set forth in Article 3 (c).

“Member Public Entity” shall mean any California public entity which does not maintain a
membership in CSAC, has executed this Agreement and become a member of the Authority, “Member
Public Entity” shall also include those entities or other bodies set forth in Article 3(c).

"Occurrence" shall mean an event which is more fully defined in the memorandums of coverage
and/or policies of an insurance program in which the participating county or participating public entity is a
member.

"Participating county" shall mean any member county which has entered into a program
offered by the Authority pursuant to Article 14 of this Agreement and has not withdrawn or been canceled
therefrom pursuant to Articles 20 or 21.

Page 2 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

“Participating public entity” shall mean any member public entity which has entered into a
program offered by the Authority pursuant to Article 14 of this Agreement and has not withdrawn or been
canceled therefrom pursuant to Articles 20 or 21.

"Self-insured retention" shall mean that portion of a loss resulting from an occurrence
experienced by a member which is retained as a liability or potential liability of the member and is not
subject to payment by the Authority.

"Reinsurance” shall mean insurance purchased by the Authority as part of an insurance
program to cover that portion of any loss which exceeds the joint funding capacity of that program.

ARTICLE 2
PURPOSES

This Agreement is entered into by the member counties and member public entities in order to
jointly develop and fund insurance programs as determined. Such programs may include, but are not
limited to, the creation of joint insurance funds, including primary and excess insurance funds, the pooling
of self-insured claims and losses, purchased insurance, including reinsurance, and the provision of
necessary administrative services. Such administrative services may include, but shall not be limited to,
risk management consulting, loss prevention and control, centralized loss reporting, actuarial consulting,
claims adjusting, and legal defense services.

ARTICLE 3
PARTIES TO AGREEMENT

(a) There shall be two classes of membership of the parties pursuant to this Agreement
consisting of one class designated as Member Counties and another class designated as Member Public
Entities.

(b) Each member county and member public entity, as a party to this Agreement, certifies
that it intends to and does contract with all other members as parties to this Agreement and, with such
other members as may later be added as parties to this Agreement pursuant to Article 19 as to all
programs of which it is a participating member. Each member also certifies that the removal of any party
from this Agreement, pursuant to Articles 20 or 21, shall not affect this Agreement or the member’s
obligations hereunder.

(c) A member for purposes of providing insurance coverage under any program of the
Authority, may contract on behalf of, and shall be deemed to include:

Any public entity as defined in Government Code § 811.2 which the member requests to
be added and from the time that such request is approved by the Executive Committee of the Authority.

Page 3 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

Any nonprofit entity, including a nonprofit public benefit corporation formed pursuant to
Corporations Code §§ 5111, 5120 and, 5065, which the member requests to be added and from the time
that such request is approved by the Executive Committee.

(d) Any public entity or nonprofit so added shall be subject to and included under the
member’s SIR or deductible, and when so added, may be subject to such other terms and conditions as
determined by the Executive Committee.

(e) Such public entity or nonprofit shall not be considered a separate party to this
Agreement. Any public entity or nonprofit so added, shall not affect the member’s representation on the
Board of Directors and shall be considered part of and represented by the member for all purposes under
this Agreement.

) The Executive Committee shall establish guidelines for approval of any public entity or
nonprofit so added in accordance with Article 3(c) and (d).

(9) Should any conflict arise between the provisions of this Article and any applicable
Memorandum of Coverage or other document evidencing coverage, such Memorandum of Coverage or
other document evidencing coverage shall prevail.

ARTICLE 4
TERM

This Agreement shall continue in effect until terminated as provided herein.

ARTICLE 5
CREATION OF THE AUTHORITY

Pursuant to the joint powers law, there is hereby created a public entity separate and apart from
the parties hereto, to be known as the CSAC Excess Insurance Authority, with such powers as are
hereinafter set forth.

ARTICLE 6
POWERS OF THE AUTHORITY

The Authority shall have all of the powers common to General Law counties in California, such as
Alpine County and all additional powers set forth in the joint powers law, and is hereby authorized to do
all acts necessary for the exercise of said powers. Such powers include, but are not limited to, the
following:

(a) To make and enter into contracts.

Page 4 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

(b) To incur debts, liabilities, and obligations.

(c) To acquire, hold, or dispose of property, contributions and donations of property, funds,
services, and other forms of assistance from persons, firms, corporations, and government entities.

(d) To sue and be sued in its own name, and to settle any claim against it.

(e) To receive and use contributions and advances from members as provided in

Government Code Section 6504, including contributions or advances of personnel, equipment, or
property.

4] To invest any money in its treasury that is not required for its immediate necessities,
pursuant to Government Code Section 6509.5.

(9) To carry out all provisions of this Agreement.
Said powers shall be exercised pursuant to the terms hereof and in the manner provided by law.

ARTICLE 7
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Authority shall be governed by the Board of Directors, which shall be composed as follows:

a) One director from each member county, appointed by the member county board
of supervisors and serving at the pleasure of that body. Each member county board of supervisors shall
also appoint an alternate director who shall have the authority to attend, participate in and vote at any
meeting of the Board when the director is absent. A director or alternate director shall be a county
supervisor, other county official, or staff person of the member county, and upon termination of office or
employment with the county, shall automatically terminate membership or alternate membership on the
Board.

b) Ten directors consisting of seven directors and three alternate directors chosen
in the manner specified in the Bylaws from those participating as public entity members. A director or
alternate public entity director shall be an official, or staff person of the public entity member, and upon
termination of office or employment with the public entity, shall automatically terminate membership or
alternate membership on the Board.

c) Member county directors shall consist of a minimum of 80% of the eligible voting
members on the Board. The public entity member directors shall be reduced accordingly to ensure at
least 80% of the Board consists of county director members (By way of example, if the number of county
members is reduced from the current 54 by member withdrawals to a level of 28, then county members
would be at the 80% level, 28/35. If the county members go to 27, then the public entity members would
lose one seat and would only have 6 votes).

Any vacancy in a county director or alternate director position shall be filled by the appointing
county's board of supervisors, subject to the Provisions of this Article. Any vacancy in a public entity
director position shall be filled by vote of the public entity members.

Page 5 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

A majority of the membership of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business. Each member of the Board shall have one vote. Except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement or any other duly executed agreement of the members, all actions of the Board shall require
the affirmative vote of a majority of the members; provided, that any action which is restricted in effect to
one of the Authority's insurance programs, shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of those Board
members who represent counties and public entities participating in that program. For purposes of an
insurance program vote, to the extent there are public entity members participating in a program, the
public entity Board members as a whole shall have a minimum of one vote. The public entity Board
members may in no event cast more votes than would constitute 20% of the number of total county
members in that program (subject to the one vote minimum). Should the number of public entity Board
votes authorized herein be less than the number of public entity Board members at a duly noticed
meeting, the public entity Board members shall decide among themselves which Board member shall
vote. Should they be unable to decide, the President of the Authority shall determine which director(s)
shall vote.

ARTICLE 8
POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors shall have the following powers and functions:

(a) The Board shall exercise all powers and conduct all business of the Authority, either
directly or by delegation to other bodies or persons unless otherwise prohibited by this Agreement, or any
other duly executed agreement of the members or by law.

(b) The Board of Directors may adopt such resolutions as deemed necessary in the exercise
of those powers and duties set forth herein.

(© The Board shall form an Executive Committee, as provided in Article 11. The Board may
delegate to the Executive Committee and the Executive Committee may discharge any powers or duties
of the Board except adoption of the Authority's annual budget. The powers and duties so delegated shall
be specified in resolutions adopted by the Board.

(d) The Board may form, as provided in Article 12, such other committees as it deems
appropriate to conduct the business of the Authority. The membership of any such other committee may
consist in whole or in part of persons who are not members of the Board; provided that the Board may
delegate its powers and duties only to a committee of the Board composed of a majority of Board
members and/or alternate members. Any committee which is not composed of a majority of Board
members and/or alternate members may function only in an advisory capacity.

(e) The Board shall elect the officers of the Authority and shall appoint or employ necessary
staff in accordance with Article 13.

® The Board shall cause to be prepared, and shall review, modify as necessary, and adopt
the annual operating budget of the Authority. Adoption of the budget may not be delegated.

Page 6 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

(9) The Board shall develop, or cause to be developed, and shall review, modify as
necessary, and adopt each insurance program of the Authority, including all provisions for reinsurance
and administrative services necessary to carry out such program.

(h) The Board, directly or through the Executive Committee, shall provide for necessary
services to the Authority and to members, by contract or otherwise, which may include, but shall not be
limited to, risk management consulting, loss prevention and control, centralized loss reporting, actuarial
consulting, claims adjusting, and legal services.

(i) The Board shall provide general supervision and policy direction to the Chief Executive
Officer.

()] The Board shall receive and act upon reports of the committees and the Chief Executive
Officer.

(k) The Board shall act upon each claim involving liability of the Authority, directly or by
delegation of authority to the Executive Committee or other committee, body or person, provided, that the
Board shall establish monetary limits upon any delegation of claims settlement authority, beyond which a
proposed settlement must be referred to the Board for approval.

()] The Board may require that the Authority review, audit, report upon, and make
recommendations with regard to the safety or claims administration functions of any member, insofar as
those functions affect the liability or potential liability of the Authority. The Board may forward any or all
such recommendations to the member with a request for compliance and a statement of potential
consequences for noncompliance.

(m) The Board shall receive, review and act upon periodic reports and audits of the funds of
the Authority, as required under Articles 15 and 16 of this Agreement.

(n) The Board may, upon consultation with a casualty actuary, declare that any funds
established for any program has a surplus of funds and determine a formula to return such surplus to the
participating counties and participating public entities which have contributed to such fund.

(o) The Board shall have such other powers and duties as are reasonably necessary to carry
out the purposes of the Authority.

ARTICLE 9
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a) The Board shall hold at least one regular meeting each year and shall provide for such
other regular meetings and for such special meetings as it deems necessary.

(b) The Chief Executive Officer of the Authority shall provide for the keeping of minutes of
regular and special meetings of the Board, and shall provide a copy of the minutes to each member of the
Board at the next scheduled meeting.

Page 7 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

(c) All meetings of the Board, the Executive Committee and such committees as established
by the Board pursuant to Article 12 herein, shall be called, noticed, held and conducted in accordance
with the provisions of Government Code Section 54950 et seq.

ARTICLE 10
OFFICERS

The Board of Directors shall elect from its membership a President and Vice President of the
Board, to serve for one-year terms.

The President, or in his or her absence, the Vice President, shall preside at and conduct all
meetings of the Board and shall chair the Executive Committee.

ARTICLE 11
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors shall establish an Executive Committee of the Board which shall consist
of eleven members: the President and Vice President of the Board, and nine members elected by the
Board from its membership.

The terms of office of the nine non-officer members shall be as provided in the Bylaws of the
Authority.

The Executive Committee shall conduct the business of the Authority between meetings of the
Board, exercising all those powers as provided for in Article 8, or as otherwise delegated to it by the
Board.

ARTICLE 12
COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors may establish committees, as it deems appropriate to conduct the
business of the Authority. Members of the committees shall be appointed by the Board, to serve two year
terms, subject to reappointment by the Board. The members of each committee shall annually select one
of their members to chair the Committee.

Each committee shall be composed of at least five members and shall have those duties as
determined by the Board, or as otherwise set forth in the Bylaws.

Each committee shall meet on the call of its chair, and shall report to the Executive Committee

and the Board as directed by the Board.

Page 8 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

ARTICLE 13
STAFF

(a) Principal Staff. The following staff members shall be appointed by and serve at the
pleasure of the Board of Directors:

1) Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer shall administer the
business and activities of the Authority, subject to the general supervision and policy direction of the
Board of Directors and Executive Committee; shall be responsible for all minutes, notices and records of
the Authority and shall perform such other duties as are assigned by the Board and Executive
Committee.

2 Treasurer. The duties of the Treasurer are set forth in Article 16 of this
Agreement. Pursuant to Government Code Section 6505.5, the Treasurer shall be the county treasurer
of a member county of the Authority, or, pursuant to Government Code Section 6505.6, the Board may
appoint one of its officers or employees to the position of Treasurer, who shall comply with the provisions
of Government Code Section 6505.5 (a-d).

3) Auditor. The Auditor shall draw warrants to pay demands against the Authority
when approved by the Treasurer. Pursuant to Government Code Section 6505.5, the Auditor shall be the
Auditor of the county from which the Treasurer is appointed by the Board under (2) above, or, pursuant to
Government Code Section 6505.6, the Board may appoint one of its officers or employees to the position
of Auditor, who shall comply with the provisions of Government Code Section 6505.5 (a-d).

(b) Charges for Treasurer and Auditor Services. Pursuant to Government Code Section
6505, the charges to the Authority for the services of Treasurer and Auditor shall be determined by the
board of supervisors of the member county from which such staff members are appointed.

(¢ Other Staff. The Board, Executive Committee or Chief Executive Officer shall provide
for the appointment of such other staff as may be necessary for the administration of the Authority.

ARTICLE 14
DEVELOPMENT, FUNDING AND IMPLEMENTATION
OF INSURANCE PROGRAMS

(a) Program Coverage. Insurance programs of the Authority may provide coverage,

including excess insurance coverage for:

Q) Workers' compensation;

(2) Comprehensive liability, including but not limited to general, personal injury,
contractual, public officials errors and omissions, and ingidental malpractice liability;

3) Comprehensive automobile liability;

4) Hospital malpractice liability;

(5) Property and related programs;

Page 9 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

and may provide any other coverages authorized by the Board of Directors. The Board shall determine,
for each such program, a minimum number of participants required for program implementation and may
develop specific program coverages requiring detailed agreements for implementation of the above
programs.

(b) Program and Authority Funding. The members developing or participating in an
insurance program shall fund all costs of that program, including administrative costs, as hereinafter
provided. Costs of staffing and supporting the Authority, hereinafter called Authority general expenses,
shall be equitably allocated among the various programs by the Board, and shall be funded by the
members developing or participating in such programs in accordance with such allocations, as hereinafter
provided. In addition, the Board may, in its discretion, allocate a share of such Authority general expense
to those members which are not developing or participating in any program, and require those counties
and public entities to fund such share through a prescribed charge.

@) Development Charge. Development costs of an insurance program shall be
funded by a development charge, as established by the Board of Directors. The development charge
shall be paid by each participant in the program following the program’s adoption by the Board.
Development costs are those costs actually incurred by the Authority in developing a program for review
and adoption by the Board of Directors, including but not limited to: research, feasibility studies,
information and liaison work among participants, preparation and review of documents, and actuarial and
risk management consulting services. The development charge may also include a share of Authority
general expenses, as allocated to the program development function.

The development charge shall be billed by the Authority to all participants in the
program upon establishment of the program and shall be payable in accordance with the Authority’s
invoice and payment policy.

Upon the conclusion of program development: any deficiency in development
funds shall be billed to all participants which have paid the development charge, on a pro-rata or other
equitable basis, as determined by the Board; any surplus in such funds shall be transferred into the
Authority's general expense funds.

(2) Annual Premium. Except as provided in (3) below, all post-development costs
of an insurance program shall be funded by annual premiums charged to the members participating in the
program each policy year, and by interest earnings on the funds so accumulated. Such premiums shall
be determined by the Board of Directors upon the basis of a cost allocation plan and rating formula
developed by the Authority with the assistance of a casualty actuary, risk management consultant, or
other qualified person. The premium for each participating member shall include that participant’s share
of expected program losses including a margin for contingencies as determined by the Board, program
reinsurance costs, and program administrative costs for the year, plus that participant’s share of Authority
general expense allocated to the program by the Board.

3) Premium Surcharge

(i) If the Authority experiences an unusually large number of losses under a
program during a policy year, such that notwithstanding reinsurance coverage for large individual losses,

Page 10 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

the joint insurance funds for the program may be exhausted before the next annual premiums are due,
the Board of Directors may, upon consultation with a casualty actuary, impose premium surcharges on all
participating members; or

(i) If it is determined by the Board of Directors, upon consultation with a
casualty actuary, that the joint insurance funds for a program are insufficient to pay losses, fund known
estimated losses, and fund estimated losses which have been incurred but not reported, the Board of
Directors may impose a surcharge on all participating members.

(iii) Premium surcharges imposed pursuant to (i) and/or (ii) above shall be in
an amount which will assure adequate funds for the program to be actuarially sound; provided that the
surcharge to any participating member shall not exceed an amount equal to three (3) times the member’s
annual premium for that year, unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors.

Provided, however, that no premium surcharge in excess of three times
the member’s annual premium for that year may be assessed unless, ninety days prior to the Board of
Directors taking action to determine the amount of the surcharge, the Authority notifies the governing
body of each participating member in writing of its recommendations regarding its intent to assess a
premium surcharge and the amount recommended to be assessed each member. The Authority shall,
concurrently with the written notification, provide each participating member with a copy of the actuarial
study upon which the recommended premium surcharge is based.

(iv) A member which is no longer a participating member at the time the
premium surcharge is assessed, but which was a participating member during the policy year(s) for which
the premium surcharge was assessed, shall pay such premium surcharges as it would have otherwise
been assessed in accordance with the provisions of (i), (ii), and (iii) above.

(9] Program Implementation and Effective Date. Upon establishment of an insurance
program by the Board of Directors, the Authority shall determine the manner of program implementation
and shall give written notice to all members of such program, which shall include, but not be limited to:
program participation levels, coverages and terms of coverage of the program, estimates of first year
premium charges, program development costs, effective date of the program (or estimated effective date)
and such other program provisions as deemed appropriate.

(d) Late Entry Into Program. A member which does not elect to enter an insurance
program upon its implementation, pursuant to (c) above, or a county or public entity which becomes a
party to this Agreement following implementation of the program, may petition the Board of Directors for
late entry into the program. Such request may be granted upon a majority vote of the Board members,
plus a majority vote of those board members who represent participants in the program. Alternatively, a
county or public entity may petition the Executive Committee for late entry into the program, or a program
committee, when authorized by an MOU governing that specific program, may approve late entry into that
program. Such request may be granted upon a majority vote of the Executive Committee or program
committee.

As a condition of late entry, the member shall pay the development charge for the
program, as adjusted at the conclusion of the development period, but not subject to further adjustment,

Page 11 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

and also any costs incurred by the Authority in analyzing the member’s loss data and determining its
annual premium as of the time of entry.

(e) Reentry Into A Program. Any county or public entity that is a member of an insurance
program of the Authority who withdraws or is cancelled from an insurance program under Articles 21 and
22, may not reenter such insurance program for a period of three years from the effective date of
withdrawal or cancellation.

ARTICLE 15
ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS

(a) Annual Budget. The Authority shall annually adopt an operating budget pursuant to
Article 8 of this Agreement, which shall include a separate budget for each insurance program under
development or adopted and implemented by the Authority.

(b) Funds and Accounts. The Auditor of the Authority shall establish and maintain such
funds and accounts as may be required by good accounting practices and by the Board of Directors.
Separate accounts shall be established and maintained for each insurance program under development
or adopted and implemented by the Authority. Books and records of the Authority in the hands of the
Auditor shall be open to inspection at all reasonable times by authorized representatives of members.

The Authority shall adhere to the standard of strict accountability for funds set forth in
Government Code Section 6505.

(© Auditor's Report. The Auditor, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the
close of each fiscal year, shall give a complete written report of all financial activities for such fiscal year
to the Board and to each member.

d) Annual Audit. Pursuant to Government Code Section 6505, the Authority shall either
make or contract with a certified public accountant to make an annual fiscal year audit of all accounts and
records of the Authority, conforming in all respects with the requirements of that section. A report of the
audit shall be filed as a public record with each of the members and also with the county auditor of the
county where the home office of the Authority is located and shall be sent to any public agency or person
in California that submits a written request to the Authority. The report shall be filed within six months of
the end of the fiscal year or years under examination. Costs of the audit shall be considered a general
expense of the Authority.

ARTICLE 16
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FUNDS AND PROPERTY

(a) The Treasurer shail have the custody of and disburse the Authority's funds. He or she
may delegate disbursing authority to such persons as may be authorized by the Board of Directors to
perform that function, subject to the requirements of (b) below.

(b) Pursuant to Government Code Section 6505.5, the Treasurer shall:

Page 12 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

1) Receive and acknowledge receipt for all funds of the Authority and place them in
the treasury of the Treasurer to the credit of the Authority.

(2) Be responsible upon his or her official bond for the safekeeping and
disbursements of all Authority funds so held by him or her.

3) Pay any sums due from the Authority, as approved for payment by the Board of
Directors or by any body or person to whom the Board has delegated approval authority, making such
payments from Authority funds upon warrants drawn by the Auditor.

4) Verify and report in writing to the Authority and to members, as of the first day of
each quarter of the fiscal year, the amount of money then held for the Authority, the amount of receipts
since the last report, and the amount paid out since the last report.

(c) Pursuant to Government Code Section 6505.1, the Chief Executive Officer, the
Treasurer, and such other persons as the Board of Directors may designhate shall have charge of, handle,
and have access to the property of the Authority.

(d) The Authority shall secure and pay for a fidelity bond or bonds, in an amount or amounts
and in the form specified by the Board of Directors, covering all officers and staff of the Authority, and all
officers and staff who are authorized to have charge of, handle, and have access to property of the
Authority.

ARTICLE 17
RESPONSIBILITIES OF MEMBERS

Members shall have the following responsibilities under this Agreement.

(a) The board of supervisors of each member county shall appoint a representative and one
alternate representative to the Board of Directors, pursuant to Article 7.

(b) Each member shall appoint an officer or employee of the member to be responsible for
the risk management function for that member and to serve as a liaison between the member and the
Authority for all matters relating to risk management.

(c) Each member shall maintain an active safety program, and shall consider and act upon
all recommendations of the Authority concerning the reduction of unsafe practices.

(d) Each member shall maintain its own claims and loss records in each category of liability
covered by an insurance program of the Authority in which the member is a participant, and shall provide
copies of such records to the Authority as directed by the Board of Directors or Executive Committee, or
to such other committee as directed by the Board or Executive Committee.

(e) Each member shall pay development charges, premiums, and premium surcharges due
to the Authority as required under Article 14. Penalties for late payment of such charges, premiums
and/or premium surcharges shall be as determined and assessed by the Board of Directors. After
withdrawal, cancellation, or termination action under Articles 20, 21, or 23, each member shall pay
promptly to the Authority any additional premiums due, as determined and assessed by the Board of

Page 13 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

Directors under Articles 22 or 23. Any costs incurred by the Authority associated with the collection of
such premiums or other charges, shall be recoverable by the Authority.

® Each member shall provide the Authority such other information or assistance as may be
necessary for the Authority to develop and implement insurance programs under this Agreement.

(9) Each member shall cooperate with and assist the Authority, and any insurer of the
Authority, in all matters relating to this Agreement, and shall comply with all Bylaws, and other rules by
the Board of Directors.

(h) Each member county shall maintain membership in CSAC.

(i) Each member shall have such other responsibilities as are provided elsewhere in this
Agreement, and as are established by the Board of Directors in order to carry out the purposes of this

Agreement.

ARTICLE 18
ADMINISTRATION OF CLAIMS

(a) Subject to subparagraph (e), each member shall be responsible for the investigation,
settlement or defense, and appeal of any claim made, suit brought, or proceeding instituted against the
member arising out of a loss.

- (b) The Authority may develop standards for the administration of claims for each insurance
program of the Authority so as to permit oversight of the administration of claims by the members.

(c) Each participating member shall give the Authority timely written notice of claims in
accordance with the provisions of the Bylaws.

(d) A member shall not enter into any settlement involving liability of the Authority without the
advance written consent of the Authority.

(e) The Authority, at its own election and expense, shall have the right to participate with a
member in the settiement, defense, or appeal of any claim, suit or proceeding which, in the judgment of
the Authority, may involve liability of the Authority.

ARTICLE 19
NEW MEMBERS

Any California public entity may become a party to this Agreement and participate in any

insurance program in which it is not presently participating upon approval of the Board of Directors, by a
majority vote of the members, or by majority vote of the Executive Committee.

Page 14 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

ARTICLE 20
WITHDRAWAL

(a) A member may withdraw as a party to this Agreement upon thirty (30) days advance
written notice to the Authority if it has never become a participant in any insurance program pursuant to
Article 14, or if it has previously withdrawn from all insurance programs in which it was a participant.

(b) After becoming a participant in an insurance program, a member may withdraw from that
program only at the end of a policy year for the program, and only if it gives the Authority at least sixty
(60) days advance written notice of such action.

ARTICLE 21
CANCELLATION

(a) Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 20, the Board of Directors may:

1) Cancel any member from this Agreement and membership in the Authority, on a
majority vote of the Board members. Such action shall have the effect of canceling the member's
participation in all insurance programs of the Authority as of the date that all membership is canceled.

(2) Cancel any member's participation in an insurance program of the Authority,
without canceling the member's membership in the Authority or participation in other programs, on a vote
of two-thirds of the Board members present and voting who represent participants in the program.

The Board shall give sixty (60) days advance written notice of the effective date
of any cancellation under the foregoing provisions. Upon such effective date, the member shall be
treated the same as if it had voluntarily withdrawn from this Agreement, or from the insurance program,
as the case may be.

(b) A member that does not enter one or more of the insurance programs developed and
implemented by the Authority within the member’s first year as a member of the Authority shall be
considered to have withdrawn as a party to this Agreement at the end of such period, and its membership
in the Authority shall be automatically canceled as of that time, without action of the Board of Directors.

(c) A member which withdraws from all insurance programs of the Authority in which it was a
participant and does not enter any program for a period of six (6) months thereafter shall be considered to
have withdrawn as a party to the Agreement at the end of such period, and its membership in the
Authority shall be automatically canceled as of that time, without action of the Board of Directors.

(d) A member county that terminates its membership in CSAC shall be considered to have
thereby withdrawn as a party to this Agreement, and its membership in the Authority and participation in
any insurance program of the Authority shall be automatically canceled as of that time, without the action
of the Board of Directors.

Page 15 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

ARTICLE 22
EFFECT OF WITHDRAWAL OR CANCELLATION

(a) If a member's participation in an insurance program of the Authority is canceled under
Article 21, with or without cancellation of membership in the Authority, and such cancellation is effective
before the end of the policy year for that program, the Authority shall promptly determine and return to
that member the amount of any unearned premium payment from the member for the policy year, such
amount to be computed on a pro-rata basis from the effective date of cancellation.

(b) Except as provided in (a) above, a member which withdraws or is canceled from this
Agreement and membership in the Authority, or from any program of the Authority, shall not be entitled to
the return of any premium or other payment to the Authority, or of any property contributed to the
Authority. However, in the event of termination of this Agreement, such member may share in the
distribution of assets of the Authority to the extent provided in Article 23 provided; however, that any
withdrawn or canceled member which has been assessed a premium surcharge pursuant to Article 14 (b)
(3) (i) shall be entitled to return of said member's unused surcharge, plus interest accrued thereon, at
such time as the Board of Directors declares that a surplus exists in any insurance fund for which a
premium surcharge was assessed.

(c) Except as provided in (d) below, a member shall pay any premium charges which the
Board of Directors determines are due from the member for losses and costs incurred during the entire
coverage year in which the member was a participant in such program regardless of the date of entry into
such program. Such charges may include any deficiency in a premium previously paid by the member,
as determined by audit under Article 14 (b) (2); any premium surcharge assessed to the member under
Article 14 (b) (3); and any additional amount of premium which the Board determines to be due from the
member upon final disposition of all claims arising from losses under the program during the entire
coverage year in which the member was a participant regardless of date of entry into such program. Any
such premium charges shall be payable by the member in accordance with the Authority's invoice and
payment policy.

(d) Those members which who have withdrawn or been canceled pursuant to Articles 20
and 21 from any program of the Authority during a coverage year shall pay any premium charges which
the Board of Directors determines are due from the members for losses and costs which were incurred
during the county's participation in any program.

ARTICLE 23
TERMINATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS

(a) A three-fourths vote of the total voting membership of the Authority, consisting of member
counties, acting through their boards of supervisors, and the voting Board members from the member
public entities, is required to terminate this Agreement; provided, however, that this Agreement and the

Page 16 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

Authority shall continue to exist after such election for the purpose of disposing of all claims, distributing
all assets, and performing all other functions necessary to conclude the affairs of the Authority.

(b) Upon termination of this Agreement, all assets of the Authority in each insurance
program shall be distributed among those members which participated in that program in proportion to
their cash contributions, including premiums paid and property contributed (at market value when
contributed). The Board of Directors shall determine such distribution within six (6) months after disposal
of the last pending claim or other liability covered by the program.

(c) Following termination of this Agreement, any member which was a participant in an
insurance program of the Authority shall pay any additional amount of premium, determined by the Board
of Directors in accordance with a loss allocation formula, which may be necessary to enable final
disposition of all claims arising from losses under that program during the entire coverage year in which
the member was a participant regardless of the date of entry into such program.

ARTICLE 24
LIABILITY OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, COMMITTEE MEMBERS
AND LEGAL ADVISORS

The members of the Board of Directors, Officers, committee members and legal advisors to any
Board or committees of the Authority shall use ordinary care and reasonable diligence in the exercise of
their powers and in the performance of their duties pursuant to this Agreement. They shall not be liable
for any mistake of judgment or any other action made, taken or omitted by them in good faith, nor for any
action taken or omitted by any agent, employee or independent contractor selected with reasonable care,
nor for loss incurred through investment of Authority funds, or failure to invest.

No Director, Officer, committee member, or legal advisor to any Board or committee shall be
responsible for any action taken or omitted by any other Director, Officer, committee member, or legal
advisor to any committee. No Director, Officer, committee member or legal advisor to any committee
shall be required to give a bond or other security to guarantee the faithful performance of their duties
pursuant to this Agreement.

The funds of the Authority shall be used to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Authority
and any Director, Officer, committee member or legal advisor to any committee for their actions taken
within the scope of the authority of the Authority. Nothing herein shall limit the right of the Authority to
purchase insurance to provide such coverage as is hereinabove set forth.

Page 17 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

ARTICLE 25
BYLAWS

The Board may adopt Bylaws consistent with this Agreement which shall provide for the
administration and management of the Authority.

ARTICLE 26
NOTICES

The Authority shall address notices, billings and other communications to a member as directed
by the member. Each member shall provide the Authority with the address to which communications are
to be sent. Members shall address notices and other communications to the Authority to the Chief
Executive Officer of the Authority, at the office address of the Authority as set forth in the Bylaws.

ARTICLE 27
AMENDMENT

A two-thirds vote of the total voting membership of the Authority, consisting of member counties,

acting through their boards of supervisors, and the voting Board members from member public entities, is
required to amend this Agreement.

ARTICLE 28
PROHIBITION AGAINST ASSIGNMENT

No member may assign any right, claim or interest it may have under this Agreement, and no

creditor, assignee or third party beneficiary of any member shall have any right, claim or title to any part,
share, interest, fund, premium or asset of the Authority.

ARTICLE 29
AGREEMENT COMPLETE

This Agreement constitutes the full and complete Agreement of the parties.

Page 18 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

ARTICLE 30
EFFECTIVE DATE OF AMENDMENTS

Any amendment of this Agreement shall become effective upon the date specified by the Board
and upon approval of any Amended Agreement as required in Article 27. Approval of any amendment by
the voting boards of supervisors and public entity board member's must take place no later than 30 days
from the effective date specified by the Board.

ARTICLE 31
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

When a dispute arises between the Authority and a member, the following procedures are to be
followed:

(a) Request for Reconsideration. The member will make a written request to the Authority
for the appropriate Committee to reconsider their position, citing the arguments in favor of the member
and any applicable case law that applies. The member can also, request a personal presentation to that
Committee, if it so desires.

(b) Committee Appeal. The committee responsible for the program or having jurisdiction
over the decision in question will review the matter and reconsider the Authority’s position. This
committee appeal process is an opportunity for both sides to discuss and substantiate their positions
based upon legal arguments and the most complete information available. If the member requesting
reconsideration is represented on the committee having jurisdiction, that committee member shall be
deemed to have a conflict and shall be excluded from any vote.

(c) Executive Committee Appeal. If the member is not satisfied with the outcome of the
committee appeal, the matter will be brought to the Executive Committee for reconsideration upon
request of the member. If the member requesting reconsideration is represented on the Executive
Committee, that Executive Committee member shall be deemed to have a conflict and shall be excluded
from any vote.

(d) Arbitration. If the member is not satisfied with the outcome of the Executive Committee
appeal, the next step in the appeal process is arbitration. The arbitration, whether binding or non-binding,
is to be mutually agreed upon by the parties. The matter will be submitted to a mutually agreed arbitrator
or panel of arbitrators for a determination. If Binding Arbitration is selected, then of course the decision of
the arbitrator is final. Both sides agree to abide by the decision of the arbitrator. The cost of arbitration
will be shared equally by the involved member and the Authority.

(e) Litigation. If, after following the dispute resolution procedure paragraphs a-d, either party
is not satisfied with the outcome of the non-binding arbitration process, either party may consider litigation
as a possible remedy to the dispute.

Page 19 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

ARTICLE 32
FILING WITH SECRETARY OF STATE

The Chief Executive Officer of the Authority shall file a notice of this Agreement with the office of

California Secretary of State within 30 days of its effective date, as required by Government Code Section
6503.5 and within 70 days of its effective date as required by Government Code Section 53051.

Page 20 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned party hereto has executed this Agreement on the date
indicated below.

DATE: MEMBER:
(Print Name of Member)

BY:
(Authorized signature of Member)

o
@
o

Page 21 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

APPENDIX A
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT
CSAC EXCESS INSURANCE AUTHORITY

(AS OF JANUARY 1, 2016)

ALAMEDA COUNTY TULARE COUNTY

ALPINE COUNTY TUOLUMNE COUNTY

AMADOR COUNTY VENTURA COUNTY

BUTTE COUNTY YOLO COUNTY

CALAVERAS COUNTY YUBA COUNTY

COLUSA COUNTY ACCEL

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY ALAMEDA HEALTH SYSTEM

DEL NORTE COUNTY AMADOR TRANSIT

EL DORADO COUNTY BAHARMA (Bay Area Housing Authority RMA)
FRESNO COUNTY BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MGMT DISTRICT
GLENN COUNTY BERKELEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
HUMBOLDT COUNTY BICEP

IMPERIAL COUNTY CADA

INYO COUNTY CALIFORNIA FAIR SERVICES AUTHORITY
KERN COUNTY CA MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES AUTHORITY
KINGS COUNTY CALIFORNIA STATE LEGISLATURE

LAKE COUNTY CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY RISK
LASSEN COUNTY MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY (CSURMA)
MADERA COUNTY CAMPBELL UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
MARIN COUNTY CAMPBELL UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
MARIPOSA COUNTY CAPRI

MENDOCINO COUNTY CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MERCED COUNTY CATALINA ISLAND MEDICAL CENTER
MODOC COUNTY CENTRAL COUNTY FIRE DEPARTMENT
MONO COUNTY CENTRAL SIERRA CHILD SUPPORT AGENCY
MONTEREY COUNTY CITY OF ALAMEDA

NAPA COUNTY CITY OF ATASCADERO

NEVADA COUNTY CITY OF ATWATER

ORANGE COUNTY CITY OF BAKERSFIELD

PLACER COUNTY CITY OF BEAUMONT

PLUMAS COUNTY CITY OF BELL

RIVERSIDE COUNTY CITY OF BELMONT

SACRAMENTO COUNTY CITY OF BERKELEY

SAN BENITO COUNTY CITY OF BUENA PARK

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY CITY OF BURLINGAME

SAN DIEGO COUNTY CITY OF CALABASAS

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CITY OF CALEXICO

SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY CITY OF CAPITOLA

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY CITY OF CARLSBAD

SANTA CLARA COUNTY CITY OF CARMEL BY THE SEA

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY CITY OF CHICO

SHASTA COUNTY CITY OF CHULA VISTA

SIERRA COUNTY CITY OF CLAREMONT

SISKIYOU COUNTY CITY OF CONCORD

SOLANO COUNTY CITY OF CORONA

SONOMA COUNTY CITY OF COSTA MESA

STANISLAUS COUNTY CITY OF COVINA

SUTTER COUNTY CITY OF CUPERTINO

TEHAMA COUNTY CITY OF CYPRESS

TRINITY COUNTY CITY OF DALY CITY

Page 22 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA

CITY OF DEL MAR

CITY OF DOWNEY

CITY OF EL CAJON

CITY OF EL CENTRO

CITY OF EL MONTE

CITY OF ELK GROVE
CITY OF ESCALON

CITY OF ESCONDIDO
CITY OF FAIRFIELD

CITY OF FOLSOM

CITY OF FONTANA

CITY OF FREMONT

CITY OF FRESNO

CITY OF GALT

CITY OF GARDEN GROVE
CITY OF GOLETA

CITY OF HANFORD

CITY OF HAWTHORNE
CITY OF HAYWARD

CITY OF HEMET

CITY OF HUNTINGTON BEACH
CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH
CITY OF IONE

CITY OF IRVINE

CITY OF LANCASTER
CITY OF LEMON GROVE
CITY OF LIVE OAK

CITY OF LIVERMORE
CITY OF LOMPOC

CITY OF LOS ALTOS

CITY OF MAYWOOD

CITY OF MENLO PARK
CITY OF MERCED

CITY OF MILL VALLEY
CITY OF MILLBRAE

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO
CITY OF MONTEBELLO
CITY OF MORENO VALLEY
CITY OF MURRIETA

CITY OF NAPA

CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
CITY OF NEEDLES

CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH
CITY OF NOVATO

CITY OF OAKLAND

CITY OF OCEANSIDE
CITY OF OROVILLE

CITY OF PACIFICA

CITY OF PASO ROBLES
CITY OF PERRIS

CITY OF PLEASANTON
CITY OF POMONA

CITY OF PORT HUENEME
CITY OF RANCHO CORDOVA
CITY OF RANCHO SANTA MARGARITA

Amended: February 28, 2006

CITY OF REDDING

CITY OF REDWOOD CITY

CITY OF RIALTO

CITY OF RICHMOND

CITY OF RIDGECREST

CITY OF ROSEVILLE

CITY OF SACRAMENTO

CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO

CITY OF SAN BRUNO

CITY OF SAN BUENAVENTURA

CITY OF SAN CLEMENTE

CITY OF SAN DIEGO

CITY OF SAN JACINTO

CITY OF SAN LEANDRO

CITY OF SANTA CLARA

CITY OF SANTA ROSA

CITY OF SIMI VALLEY

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA

CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO

CITY OF STANTON

CITY OF STOCKTON

CITY OF SUNNYVALE

CITY OF TORRANCE

CITY OF TWENTYNINE PALMS

CITY OF VACAVILLE

CITY OF VISALIA

CITY OF WALNUT CREEK

CITY OF WATSONVILLE

CITY OF WEST SACRAMENTO

CITY OF WHITTIER

CITY OF YUBA CITY

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
OF L.A. COUNTY

CONTRA COSTA CO IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY

COUNCIL OF SAN BENITO CO. GOVERNMENTS

CSAC EIA

CSRM

CVAG

DEL NORTE IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY

DUBLIN SAN RAMON SERVICES DISTRICT

EAST BAY REGIONAL PARK DISTRICT

EAST SAN GABRIEL VALLEY ROP

ERMAC

EVERGREEN SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIRST FIVE CONTRA COSTA CHILDREN &
FAMILIES COMMISSION

FIRST FIVE SACRAMENTO COMMISSION

GOLD COAST TRANSIT DISTRICT

GOLDEN EMPIRE TRANSIT DISTRICT

GREAT BASIN UNIFIED AIR POLLUTION
CONTROL DISCTRICT

GSRMA

GSRMA JPA

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF RIVERSIDE COUNTY

Page 23 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA

HUMBOLDT IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY

HUMBOLDT TRANSIT AUTHORITY

HUNTINGTON BEACH UNION HSD

IMPERIAL COUNTY IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY

INLAND EMPIRE HEALTH PLAN

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

KERN HEALTH SYSTEMS

KERN IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY

KINGS CO. AREA PUBLIC TRANSIT AGENCY

KINGS WASTE & RECYCLING AUTHORITY

LAKE ELSINORE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

LAWCX

MADERA IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

MENDOCINO COAST DISTRICT HOSPITAL

MILITARY DEPT. OF THE STATE OF CA

MONTEREY BAY AREA SELF INSURANCE
AUTHORITY (MBASIA)

MONTEREY SALINAS TRANSIT

MORONGO BASIN TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Amended: February 28, 2006

SAN JOSE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SAN LUIS OBISPO RTA

SAN MATEO COUNTY SCHOOLS INS. GROUP

SANDPIPA

SANTA BARBARA METRO TRANSIT DISTRICT

SANTA CLARA CO. LIBRARY DISTRICT JPA

SANTA CLARA CO. OFFICE OF EDUCATION

SANTA CLARA CO VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY FIRE AGENCIES
INSURANCE GROUP

SANTA CRUZ METRO TRANSIT DISTRICT

SCHOOLS EXCESS LIABILITY FUND (SELF)

SDRMA

SHASTA IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY

SIRMA

SOLANO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

SONOMA COUNTY ERA

SOUTH BAY AREA SCHOOLS INS AUTHORITY

SOUTH COUNTY AREA TRANSIT

SUCCESSOR TO THE SAN FRANCISCO
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

MOUNTAIN COMMUNITIES HEALTHCARE DIST SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, ALPINE COUNTY

MT. DIABLO USD

MUNICIPAL POOLING AUTHORITY (MPA)

NAPA SANITATION DISTRICT

NCCSIF

NCSDIA

OMNITRANS

ORANGE COUNTY FIRE AUTHORITY

ORANGE COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTH.

OTAY WATER DISTRICT

PALO VERDE VALLEY HEALTH CARE
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

PARSAC

PASADENA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

PASIS — SAN DIEGO

PERMA

PLACER COUNTY WATER AGENCY

PLEASANT HILL RECREATION & PARK DIST

PORT OF OAKLAND

REDONDO BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST

RIVERSIDE IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY

RIVERSIDE TRANSIT AGENCY

SACRAMENTO - YOLO MOSQUITO AND
VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

SACRAMENTO COUNTY CONTRACTS

SAFCA

SAN BENITO IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY

SAN BERNARDINO DEPARTMENTS

SAN BERNARDINO IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY

SAN DIEGO IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY

SAN DIEGO HOUSING COMMISSION

SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYS

SAN DIEGO UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, AMADOR COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, BUTTE COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, CALAVERAS CO.
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, COLUSA COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, CONTRA COSTA CO
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, DEL NORTE COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, EL DORADO COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, LAKE COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, LASSEN COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, MERCED COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, ORANGE COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, PLACER COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, SAN BENITO CO.
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, SAN LUIS OBISPO
COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, SANTA BARBARA
COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, SANTA CRUZ CO.
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, SHASTA COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, SONOMA COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, STANISLAUS CO.
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, TRINITY COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, TUOLUMNE COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, YOLO COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT OF CA, YUBA COUNTY
SUTTER IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY
THE SPORTS AND OPEN SPACE AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF SANTA CLARA
TORRANCE USD
TOWN OF COLMA
TOWN OF YOUNTVILLE
TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR AGENCIES
TRINDEL INSURANCE FUND

Page 24 of 25



JPA, CSAC-EIA Amended: February 28, 2006

TURLOCK IRRIGATION DISTRICT

UC HASTINGS COLLEGE OF LAW

UPLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

VAN HORN REGIONAL TREATMENT FACILITY

WEST SAN GABRIEL LIABILITY & PROPERTY JPA

WEST SAN GABRIEL WC JPA

WESTERN RIVERSIDE COUNCIL OF
GOVERNMENTS (WRCOG)

YOLO PARMIA

Page 25 of 25



ANNIVERSARY

Commission Staff Report

October 17, 2018

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  October 25, 2018

SUBJECT:

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

Overview of Budget Process and Approach — Request for Guidance of
FY2019/20 NCPA Operating Budget Directions

n

Monty Hanks U\}é\

FROM: METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant General
Manager/CFO N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake []
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San Francisco Bay Area . .
Rapid Transit O City of Palo Alto [ Plumas-Sierra REC [
City of Biggs [J City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [J Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Healdsburg [1 City of Santa Clara [] Other [
If other, please specify

SR: 211:18



Overview of Budget Process and Approach — Request for Guidance of FY20 NCPA Operating Budget Directions
October 17, 2018
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the Commission provide guidance and direct staff to prepare the FY2019/20
Operating Budget in accordance with the accepted directions.

BACKGROUND:

As part of the budget process, staff is seeking Commission guidance of budget directions prior
to budget preparation for the next fiscal year (FY2019/20). Staff discussed the budget review
process and specific budget directions/targets with the Utility Directors at their meeting on
October 9, 2018. No changes were suggested by the Utility Directors.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Direction provided in this presentation will provide budget guidance for FY2019/20. Specific
fiscal impact is not known at this time. Actual fiscal impact will be presented at the time of final
approval of the FY2019/20 Operating Budget, currently scheduled for April 2019.
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

The requested Commission direction would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable

indirect change in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of
Section 21065 the California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

R spectfully submltted

DY S“HOWARD

General Manager

Attachments: Operating Budget for FY2019/20 Proposed Process and Recommendations

SR: 211:18



EPA Operating Budget for FY20

Proposed Process and Recommendations
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Monty Hanks
Commission Meeting
October 25, 2018

MCPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY-

Strategic Plan 2016-2021

Mission

- To provide our members cost effective wholesale power, energy-related services, and
advocacy on behalf of public power consumers through joint action.

Vision
To be the premier provider of energy services to public entities.

Strategies

- Attract, develop and retain professional, high quality staff.

- Maintain position as credible, solution-oriented coalition builder and leader in state and federal
legislative and regulatory policy arenas.

- Develop and maintain diverse generation resource portfolio in accordance with renewable
portfolio standard and capacity obligations.

+ Protect, utilize and build on the strengths and unique aspects of JPA structure to benefit
NCPA’s members.

- Develop/maintain strategies to control costs and minimize risks while maximizing the value of
assets.

+ Grow new revenue and/or reduce member costs by exploring new members/participants and
expansion of current services.

+ Help articulate and promote the value of NCPA and public power utilities to member

communities. )




A'{ICPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Proposed Budget Process

Continued approach to review draft budgets through
Facilities and L&R Committees, UD Meetings, etc.

Budget is prepared on a project/program basis.

Allocation for all allocated costs (Power Management,
Legislative & Regulatory, Judicial Action, Administrative
and General and direct allocations) will use previously
approved methods — no changes proposed.

Continued focus on NCPA controllable costs and
additional sharing of costs (economies of scale).

3

MCPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Issues Impacting FY2019/20 Budget

Union contracts end December 2018

+ Looking to control future OPEB and benefit costs for new
hires

« Full year impact for any salary adjustments

Pension and OPEB Costs
+ Should be relatively flat/small growth

CPI Index as of August 2018 was 2.7%

Reduced transmission costs?




Al{lCPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
Issues Impacting FY2019/20 Budget (continued)
Capital & Maintenance of Assets
 Purpose to keep assets in great, working condition

FY18 results are not the norm

- Refund due to: salary vacancies, insurance premium
savings, interest income, FEMA/insurance
reimbursements, reduced debt service, additional PM
services revenue, staff being prudent with their budgets

Additional PM business?

+ South Feather? CCAs?

« Update to the control room?

+ Additional Staff?

AI<ICPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Power Management Services Revenue Detail

FY18 FY19 FY20
Actual Budget Est. Budget
Merced Irrigation District $ 390,000 |$ 399,750 | $ 409,744
Placer County Water Agency 205,000 415,125 425,503

Pioneer Community Energy 177,083 429,250 437,835
East Bay Community Energy 53,333 642,133 654,976
San Jose Clean Energy - - 640,500

Total| $ 825,417 | $1,886,258 | $ 2,568,558




MCPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Budget Recommendations for 2019/20

Pass-throughs

« All of the following will be based on information from
outside entities:
- Membership dues, subscriptions, transmission services, WREGIS,

and other member services projects, etc.
Legal
+ Judicial action and all other legal expenses will be rolled
over based on previous year budget

Capital Outlay

- Capital projects for plants and Headquarters/Information
Services to be specifically reviewed by Facilities
Committee/LEC Participants

7

Ar{lcpA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Budget Recommendations for 2019/20
Plant costs
- Debt service as scheduled plus trustee & administrative costs
+ Fuel, as required for estimated plant operations
- Regular operating & maintenance —target 2.7% increase
+ Special maintenance projects — reviewed specifically with
participants (Facilities Committee & LEC Participants)
Salaries and Benefits
- Based on negotiated contracts, amortization schedules
- Requesting new positions but subject to future PM services

All other operating expenses

« Target no more than 2.7% increase from previous year base
budget s




AK‘CPA NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Recommendation

Commission approval of the budget guidelines for
FY2019/20 as outlined in this report




	Item_2_Draft_Commission_Meeting_Min_092818_and_Draft Special_Commission_Meeting_Min_100418
	Item_5_Facilities_Committee_Meeting_Minutes_Oct_3_2018 - Copy
	Item_6_Draft_Special_Finance_Committee_Meeting_Min_Oct_9_18 - Copy
	Item_10_Sept_2018_Financial_Report - Copy
	Item_11_Treasurers_Report_Month_Ended_Sept_30_2018 - Copy
	Item_12_Proposed_2019_Committee_Meeting_Calendar
	Item_13_Annual_Financial_Statements_Assoc_Audit_Report_Years_Ending_June_30_2018_And_2017
	Item_14_WSA_Engineered_Systems_Five_Year_MTGSA_GEO
	Item_15_Adoption_Of_Amt_Employers_Contribution_CALPERS_Calendar_Year_2019
	Item_16_Authorize_NCPA_Join_Calif_State_Assoc_Counties_Excess_Ins_Authority
	Item_17_Overview_Of_Budget_Process_Approach_Guidance_FY2019_&_20_NCPA_Operating_Budget_Direction

